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March 20, 2003

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS RE@E%E%@

MAR 21 7003
Ms. Pam Bonrud g
Executive Director SOUTH f,y«i(‘f“}m;’ij gBLEC
Capitol Building UTILITIES COMISSION
First Floor
500 East Capitol Avenue

Pierre, SD 57501-0570

Re:  C III Communications Operations, LLC Application for Certificate of Authority
and Notification About The Transfer of Assets and Customers Broadwing ‘
Communications Services, Inc. and Broadwing Telecommunications, Inc. To C
III Communications Operations, LLC

Dear Ms. Bonrud:

Enclosed please find an original of the above referenced matter. I have enclosed an
additional copy of the pleading without the attachments to be date-stamped and returned in the

self-addressed federal express envelope. If you have any questions, please contact the
undersigned.

Sincerely,

2L

Robert E. Stup, Jr.

Enclosures

WDC 328769v1



TC03-058

Before the ' RE%E@@E@

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION e
MAR 2 1 2003

In the Matter of SOUTH DAKOTA PUSBLIC

UTILITIES COMMISSION

C III Communications Operations, LLC
Case

Application for Certificate of Authority

APPLICATION

C I Communications Operations, LLC ("C III Ops" or “Applicant™) hereby
applies to the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission for a Certificate of Authority
(“COA”) to provide interexchange services in South Dakota.

On February 22, 2003, C III Ops and its parent company, C III Communications,
LLC (“C III"”) (collectively C III Ops, C III and its affiliates shall be referred to as the “C
III Companies™”) entered into a purchase agreement with Broadwing Communications
Services Inc. (“Broadwing-CSI”) to acquire its broadband business, including the assets
and customers of Broadwing Telecommunications (“Broadwing-TT”) (collectively
Broadwing-CSI and Broadwing-TI shall be referred to as the “iBroadwing Companies”).
Concurrently with the filing of this Application, C III, C III Ops and the Broadwing
Companies have filed a notification with the Commission regarding the transfer of assets
from the Broadwing Companies to C IIT Ops. The operating authority requested in this
Application is necessary in order for C III Ops to take ownership and control of those
assets and continue providing services to the customers currently served by the

Broadwing Companies.



In support of this Application, the Applicant states as follows:

A.

B.

Background

1.

The proposed transaction contemplates that Broadwing-CSI would sell to
C III its entire broadband business, which includes interstate and intrastate
long distance and private line services. C III, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, C III Ops, would continue to provide service to all of
Broadwing-CSI’s and Broadwing-TI’s existing customers under the trade
name “Broadwing.” In addition, C III Ops would retain all of Broadwing-
CSI’s current employees.l

The proposed transaction must be structured as an asset sale rather than a
transfer of control because of federal and state income tax implications.
As a result, substantially all of the assets of Broadwing-CSI, including all
of the assets and customers of its wholly owned subsidiary, Broadwing-TI,
shall be transferred to C III Ops. Attached hereto, as Attachment 1, are
organization charts depicting the proposed transaction. As shown in the
charts, C III Ops would hold the operating authority and the customer
contracts. Four special purpose entities, which are wholly owned
subsidiaries of C III Ops, have been organized to hold the acquired assets

and the employees.

The Parties

3.

C II is a privately held Delaware limited liability company. C III is the
parent company of C III Ops. C III does not currently hold any authority

to provide telecommunications services. Upon closing of the proposed

Broadwing-TI does not retain separate employees.



transaction, C III would be renamed Broadwing, LLC. Attached hereto as
Attachment 2 is the current and proposed ownership of C III.

4. C III Ops is a Delaware limited liability company, which was incorporated
on February 20, 2003, that is wholly owned by C III. Attached hereto as
Attachment 3 is C III Ops’ Articles of Incorporation with amendments. C
IIT Ops does not have a principal office in South Dakota, but its registered
agent information is set forth in Attachment 3 and its contact information
for any questions or regulatory issues that may arise pending the closing of
this transaction and/or the resolution of this application is set forth below
in paragraphs 22 and 23. C III Ops would be the licensed service provider
and enter into contracts with customers for the provisioning of services. C
Il Ops does mnot currently hold any authority to provide
telecommunications services in South Dakota or any other state.
Accordingly, as a condition precedent to the closing of the proposed
transaction, C III Ops is seeking authority to provide competitive
telecommunications services throughout the United States, including
South Dakota. In addition, C IIT Ops is seeking all necessary authority
from the Federal Communications Commission. The Federal tax
identification number of C III Ops is 75-310520. Upon closing of the
proposed transaction, C III Ops would be renamed Broadwing

Communications, LLC.2 A copy of the Certificate of Good Standing for C

z Applicant seeks the COA in the name of C III Communications Operations, LLC.

Following the closing of the proposed transaction C III Ops would submit to the Commission a
request for name change on the COA.



III Ops from the State of Delaware is attached hereto as Attachment 4. A
copy of the Certificate of Authority to Do Business in South Dakota is
attached hereto as Attachment 5. Attached hereto as Attachment 6 are the
names, telephone numbers and business addresses of each the officers and
directors of C III Ops. Also Attached hereto as Attachment 7 are the
names, telephone numbers and business addresses of the officers and
directors of C III, which wholly owns C III Ops.
Corvis Corporation (“Corvis™) is the majority and controlling shareholder
of C III, and the only shareholder of Corvis with more than a 20%
ownership in Corvis is David R. Huber (24.8% of Corvis’ voting
securities) whose title and contact information follows below:

David R. Huber - Director and

Chairman of the Board

Corvis Corporation

7015 Albert Einstein Drive

Columbia, MD 21046

Tel: (443) 259-4000

Fax: (443) 259-4444
Corvis, a Delaware corporation, is a publicly-traded company
(NASDAQ:CORYV). Corvis is a world leader in the provision of optical
network solutions. Corvis is the majority and controlling owner of C IIL.
From point-to-point links to all-optical networks to transoceanic systems,
Corvis delivers innovative optical network solutions that drive carrier
profitability faster than any other vendor. Headquartered in Columbia,

Maryland, Corvis provides carriers with scalable optical networking

solutions and services that dramatically reduce the overall expenses



associated with building and operating networks. Carriers deploying
Corvis' optical network solutions can provision new wavelength-based
services and tailor dynamic service-level agreements for rapid revenue
generation. Corvis does not currently hold any authority to provide
telecommunications services. For more information about Corvis, please

visit its website at www.corvis.com.

Cequel III, LLC (“Cequel III") was founded in January 2002 as a privately
held Delaware limited liability company. Cequel III is a minority owner of
C III and would control less than one percent of the voting interests of C
III. Cequel III’s mission is to acquire or invest in, and subsequently
manage, growth-oriented firms in the telecommunications and cable
industries, focusing on those companies that offer platforms for future
acquisitions and industry consolidation. In May 2002, Cequel III made
equity investments in and assumed management of AAT Communications
Corporation, which owns or manages more than 6,000 tower sites across
the United States, leasing tower space for wireless voice and data services
to a broad tenant base. On February 12, 2003, Cequel III announced that it
had assumed management of and agreed to invest in Classic
Communications, a cable provider with approximately 325,000
subscribers. On February 21, 2003, Cequel III announced that, subject to
regulatory approvals and customary closing conditions, it had entered into

an agreement with certain affiliates of Shaw Communications, Inc., to



purchase that company's Texas-based cable systems, which serve
approximately 27,000 customers.

Broadwing-TI, a Delaware corporation, is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Broadwing-CSI, a Delaware Corporation. Broadwing-CSI is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Broadwing Communications Inc. (“Broadwing
Communications”), a Delaware corporation, which in turn is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Broadwing Inc. an Ohio corporation. Broadwing
Inc., a publicly-traded company (NYSE: BRW), is an integrated
communications company comprised of Broadwing Communications and
Cincinnati Bell. Broadwing Inc. is headquartered in Cincinnati, Ohio.
Broadwing Inc. would have a minority (less than three percent) non-voting
interest in C III. After the closing of the proposed transaction, Broadwing
Inc., Broadwing Communications, Broadwing-CSI and Broadwing-TI
would be renamed to a name that does not include “Broadwing.” For
more information about Broadwing Inc., please visit its website at

www.broadwing.com. Broadwing-CSI is authorized to provide intrastate

interexchange services in forty-eight states, including South Dakota.
Broadwing-CSI currently does not serve end-user customers, but serves as
a wholesale provider of service to other carriers. Broadwing-TI is
authorized to provide resold intrastate interexchange services in forty-

eight states, including South Dakota.



C.

Financial, Managerial and Technical Qualifications of C IT Ops

9.

10.

The financial, managerial and technical qualifications of C III Ops to
provide competitive telecommunications in the South Dakota will be met
through the proposed acquisition of the businesses of Broadwing-CSI and
Broadwing-TT and is thus largely a matter of South Dakota Public Utilities
Commission record. The South Dakota Public Utilities Commission has
already found Broadwing-CSI and Broadwing-TI to be qualified to
provide competitive telecommunications in South Dakota. Broadwing-
CSI’s existing employees, who already have a proven track record, would
be employed by C III Ops, thus assuring operational continuity.’” In
addition, the proposed transaction would enhance these existing
qualifications because of the additional financial, managerial and technical
abilities to be contributed by the ultimate owners of C III Ops -- Corvis
and Cequel I1I.

Financial Qualifications. When the companies were initially granted their

COAs, Broadwing-CSI and Broadwing-TI were found by the South
Dakota Public Utilities Commission to be financially qualified to provide
telecommunications services in South Dakota. Attached hereto as
Attachment 8 are unaudited financial statements of Broadwing-CSI and

4

Broadwing-TI for the past two years.” While the companies have had

significant operating losses over the last two years, the results from

3

4

The employees would be employed by C III Communications Employees, Inc., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of C III Ops. All references herein to transferring employees to C III Ops shall
mean C III Communications Employees, Inc.

Audited financial statements are not available because the companies are part of a large
publicly held corporation that prepares consolidated financial statements.



11.

operations have been improving because Broadwing-CSI has previously
taken the necessary steps to reduce operating expenses and capital
expenditures. Furthermore, certain income statement and balance sheet
items are not applicable to C III Ops. For example, C III Ops is not
acquiring any of the existing debt of Broadwing-CSI or Broadwing-TI. In
addition the value of long term assets, including associated depreciation
and amortization, as well as long term liabilities and shareholder’s equity
will be determined and allocated once the transaction is closed. Such
valuations will be based on the purchase price of the assets and not the
historical costs.

More importantly, the additional financial resources available to the
business as a result of the proposed transaction would better ensure its
continued viability. Corvis and Cequel III plan to invest substantial
capital to purchase the assets of Broadwing-CSI and Broadwing-TI. The C
III Ops investors negotiated the proposed transaction at arms-length.
Combined, Corvis and Cequel III would pay approximately $129 million
in cash and have every incentive to ensure the financial success of C III
Ops and a positive return on their investment. Towards that end, Corvis
has committed to making a working capital infusion of up to $50 million,
as needed, but in any event not later than December 31, 2003. This would
provide C III Ops with additional financial resources in case of any

unforeseen operating deficits or to further expand services.



12.

13.

14.

15.

Attached hereto as Attachment 9 is the most recent 10-Q filing of Corvis,
as well as its annual reports for the prior two years which are attached
hereto as Attachment 10. This filing demonstrates that Corvis has the
financial resources necessary to contribute the $50 million in working
capital and is otherwise qualified to be the controlling owner of a provider
of competitive telecommunications services in South Dakota.

In short, if the financial resources of Corvis were combined with the
operations of Broadwing-CSI and Broadwing-TI, the financial
qualifications of the resulting business would be greatly improved. C III
Ops would be better positioned than Broadwing-CSI or Broadwing-TT to
continue to provide and expand service offerings to their South Dakota
customers.

Technical Qualifications. The proposed transaction would have no

negative impact on C III Ops’ technical ability to continue to operate,
maintain and expand the services currently offered by Broadwing-CSI and
Broadwing-TT in South Dakota. All of the technical personnel, including
the Chief Technology Officer, network engineers and field technicians
employed by Broadwing-CSI would be transferred to C III Ops.

In addition, Corvis is a world leader in the design, manufacture and
support of high-performance ‘all-optical and electrical/optical
communications systems. The network that would be transferred to C III
Ops 1s primarily designed around Corvis equipment. All of the technical

expertise of Corvis would be available to C III Ops. There is simply no



16.

17.

better qualified company to support C III Ops’ network. Accordingly, the
technical qualifications of C III Ops and Corvis would be sufficient to
operate, maintain, and expand its telecommunications services in South
Dakota. Attached hereto as Attachment 11 are the resumes of the primary
technology personnel of C III Ops, including those employees of
Broadwing-CSI who would become employees of C III Ops. In addition,
Attachment 11 includes the resumes of Corvis personnel who would be
available to support C III Ops’ network.

Managerial Qualifications. C III Ops would be run on a day-to-day basis

by its core management team, which would be transferred from
Broadwing-CSI to C III Ops. Accordingly, the proposed transaction
would have no negative impact on any Broadwing-CSI and Broadwing-TI
services currently provided in South Dakota, but would instead allow the
new company -- C III Ops -- to benefit from the combined management
and industry expertise of Broadwing-CSI, Broadwing-TI, Corvis and
Cequel III.

In addition to Corvis’ substantial management expertise with designing,

implementing and supporting state of the art optic networks, Cequel I

has a demonstrated track record with respect to managing
telecommunications and related companies. Jerry Kent (President and
CEO of Cequel IIT) and Howard Wood (Chairman of Cequel III), among
other business ventures, founded Charter Communications and built it into

the nation's fourth-largest cable operator. Under their leadership, Charter

10



18.

led the industry in standard performance metrics for five consecutive
years.

Finally, the new company, with its improved financial position, would be
better positioned to attract additional management talent. Attached hereto
as Attachment 12 are the resumes of the officers, directors and managers
of C III Ops, including the managers of Broadwing—CSI that will be

transferring to C III Ops.

D. Service Provided by C III Ops

19.

C IOI Ops proposes to provide facilities-based and resold interexchange
communications services (switched long distance) and interexchange
private line services. Applicant will provide such services throughout the
state unless restricted by state rule. At the present time, there is no
marketing plan available for C III Ops. Because C III Ops would provide
uninterrupted services to the current customers of the Broadwing
Companies and to ensure the proposed transaction would not result in any
change in the terms, conditions and price of their services, C III Ops
proposes to adopt Broadwing-CSI’s and Broadwing-TI’s currently
effective tariffs.” Accordingly, attached hereto as Attachment 13 are the
initial proposed tariffs of C III Ops. These tariffs are identical in
substance to the tariffs that Broadwing-CSI and Broadwing-TI currently

have on file with the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission. C I

5

As a competitive carrier, however, C III Ops reserves the right to modify its services and

terms and conditions thereof, in accordance with the South Dakota Public Ultilities’
Commission’s rules.

11



20.

21.

Ops will collect deposits per contracts and on credit risks on Carrier and
Retail Customers.

As part of the purchase agreement, C III Ops would purchase the trade
name “Broadwing” and would continue to provide service under that
name. Customer invoices would continue to be issued in the same format
in which they were issued prior to the asset transaction. Attached hereto
as Attachment 14 are sample invoices.

South Dakota customers would be provided service using facilities in
other states than South Dakota, and C IIT Ops will own no facilities in that
state. C III Ops would acquire any facilities in other states through
purchase. A copy of the Purchase Agreement is attached hereto as

Attachment 15.

E. Character Qualifications

22.

23.

24.

To the best of C III Ops’ current knowledge, there are no outstanding
formal or informal complaints pending against it before any state or
federal regulatory commission.

To the best of C III Ops’ current knowledge, neither C III Ops, nor any of
its officers or directors have been involved in any civil or criminal
investigations and/or had judgment entered against them in any civil
matter or convicted of any crimes related to the delivery of
telecommunications services.

Attached hereto is an affidavit from C III Ops’ representative, confirming

the accuracy of the statements made in this filing.

12



25.  After the closing of the proposed transaction, all of the regulatory,
customer and technical contacts of the Broadwing Companies will transfer
to C I Ops. Their contact information, including addresses, telephone
numbers, fax numbers and emails will remain the same. Upon closing, C
III Ops will update all of the Commission’s records as required. In
addition, upon closing, the following toll free number will be available for
customer complaints: 1-800-422-1199. Until closing, the principal
business address, telephone number, and point of contact of C IIT Ops for

all matters, including customer complaints, is as follows:®

C I Ops
Robert E. Stup, Jr.

Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris,
Glovsky and Popeo, L.C.

701 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, D.C. 20004-2608
(202) 661-8711 — Voice

(202) 434-7400 — Facsimile
restup@mintz.com

23.  Correspondence or communications regarding this filing should be

directed to the following:

C III Ops
Robert E. Stup, Jr.

Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris,
Glovsky and Popeo, L.C.

701 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20004-2608
(202) 661-8711 — Voice

(202) 434-7400 — Facsimile
restup@mintz.com

6 C IIT Ops will not provide services until the closing of the proposed transaction. Thus,

there would not be any customer complaints or other regulatory issues requiring the Commission
to contact the Applicant until after the closing of the proposed transaction.

13



26. C III Ops is prepared to answer any questions, present additional
information about their services or provide a copy of this Application to
any interested party requesting a copy and to any persons that the South

Dakota Public Utilities Commission directs by order or by its rules.

WHEREFORE, C III Ops respectfully requests that the Commission grant the

Application, and grant any other relief that it deems appropriate.

Respectfully submitted,

A

Robert E. Stup',’ Ir.

Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky
and Popeo, L.C.

701 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20004-2608

Counsel for the C III Companies

Dated: March 20, 2003

14



AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF MARYLAND

COUNTY OF HOWARD

N N S N
[22]
wn

I, Lynn D. Anderson, declare under penalty of perjury that I am Vice President of
C II Communications, LL.C and C IIl Communications Operations, LLC; that I have read the
foregoing and any attachments and know the contents thereof; that the same are true to the best of
my knowledge, except ‘as to the matters that are therein stated on information or belief, and as to

those matters I believe them to be true.

l’ (A /A.’, Al
/ n D. Anderson

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this Qo day of March, 2003

enegri b

e rrr

st R i O W)
Nancy B, Faber

NOTARY PUBLIC

HOWARD COUNTY

MARYLAND

12506.1
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Current Structure

Shareholders Shareholders Members
Publicly Traded Publicly Traded : Privately Held

Broadwing Inc.

Corvis Corporation Cequel Il LLC

CPCN, Employees, IRUs,

: Other Assets and cl
Broadwing -
Communications Inc. Wholesale Customer Communications,
Contracts LLC

Cogﬁﬁgﬂ?ons C il Communications
Services Inc. CPCN and Retail Operatlons| LLC

Customer Contracts

100%
l 100%

100%
100% ]

100%

100%

Broadwing Broadwin
Communications Telecommunicgtions C lil Communications C Il Communications C Il Communications C.IIl Communications
Real Estate Services Inc Real Estate, LLC IRU, LLC Assets, LLC Employees, Inc.

Inc.

Real Property,
including switching
and transmission
facilities




Proposed Transaction

Members
Privately Held

Shareholders
Publicly Traded

Shareholders
Publicly Traded

Broadwing Inc. Corvis Corporation Cequel Ill, LLC

ci
Communications,
LLC

Broadwing
Communications Inc.
CPCN, Employees, IRUs,

W(gtr;er Alussgts tand /

olesale Customer

100% Contracts | 100%
R

Broadwing
Communications
Services Inc.

C Il Communications
Operations, LLC

/

CPCN and Retail
Customer Contracts

100%

G(S‘ N
Broadwing Broadwin \
Communications Telecommunicgtions \
Real Estate Services Ine 100% 100%

Inc.

\1 00% 100%

Real Property, including
switching and transmission | —__ -
facilities Real prg ~ oati cati oat

Perty C IIl Communications C lIl Communications C llIl Communications C Il Communications

Real Estate, LLC IRU, LLC Assets, LLC Employees, inc.




Shareholders
Publicly Traded

|

Former Broadwing

Proposed Final Structure

Shareholders
Publicly-Traded

Inc. with new name

100%

Former Broadwing
Communications Inc.
with new name

100%

Former Broadwing
Communications
Services Inc. with
new name

100% 100%

Former Broadwing
Communications
Real Estate Services
Inc. with new name

*CPCNs of Broadwing Communications
Services Inc. and Broadwing
Telecommunications Inc. will be surrendered.

Former Broadwing
Telecommunications
Inc. with new name

Corvis Corporation

2.019% Ownership
No Voting Interest

89.852% Ownership
99.279 Voting

Members
Privately Held

Cequel Ill, LLC

8.129% Ownership

0.721% Voting

~N

cl

Holds no CPCN* or -

Communications,
LLC renamed
Broadwing LLC

\

J

assets and provides
no services.

LLC

100%

100%
C Il Communications

Operations, LLC
renamed Broadwing
Communications,

Holds newly acquired CPCN and provides
services formerly provided by former
Broadwing Communications Services inc. and
former Broadwing Telecommunications Inc.

100%

C il Communications C Il Communications

N Real Estate, LLC IRU, LLC
] renamed Broadwing renamed Broadwing
Communications Communications

Real Estate, LLC IRU, LLC

Holds the Real Property,
including transmission and
switching facilities previously
held by Broadwing
Communications Real Estate
Services Inc.

Holds the IRUs previously
held by Broadwing

Communications Services
Inc.

AN N\

00% 100%. 1 |

C Iil Communications C Il Communications

Assets, LLC Employees, Inc.
renamed Broadwing renamed Broadwing
Communications Communications

Assets, LLC Employees, Inc.

Holds asssts
praviously held by Broadwing
Communications Services
Inc. that are not held by C HI
Communications Real Estate,
LLC or C lIl Communications
iRU, LLC

/N

Employs Broadwing
Communications Services
Inc.'s former employses




Corvis Corporation

Cequel II, LLC

Corvis Corporation

Cequel 111, LLC

Broadwing, Inc.

C III's Current and Proposed Ownership Structure

Current Ownership

99 Class A Units (Voting)

I Class A Unit (Voting)

Proposed Ownership

12,018,567 Class A Units (Voting)

87,300 Class A Units (Voting) and
1,000,000 Class C Units (Non-voting)

270,000 Class B Units (Non-voting)



PAGE 1

The First State

I, HARRYET SMITH WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO BEREBY CERTIFY 'TEE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT
COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION OF "C III COMMUNICATIONS

OPERATIONS, LLC", FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON THE TWENTIETH DAY OF
FEBRUARY, A.D. 2003, AT 5 O'CLOCK P.M,

Harrlet Srith Windsor, Secretary of State

3627662 B100 AUTHENTICATION: 2268611

030111245 DATE: 02-21-03



STATEZ OF DELANARR
. SECRETARY OF STATE
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS
FILED 05:00 PM 02/20/2003
030111245 ~ 3627662

CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION
of .
C I Communications Operations, LLC

This Certificate of Formation is bemg duly executed and filed by the
undersigned authorized petrson to form a limited liability company under the Delaware
Limited Liability Company Act (the “Act™). It is hercby certified as follows:

FIRST, The name of the limited liability company (the “Company”) is: C
IN Communications O Operations, LLC.

SECOND. The address of the registered office of the Company in the
State of Delaware is: cfo Corporation Service Company, 2711 Centerville Road, Suite
400, City of Wilmington, County of New Castle, State of Delaware 19808. The name of
the registered agent of the Company at such address is: Corporation Service Company.

JHIRD. The purpose of the Company is to engage in any lawful act or
activity for which a limited Hability company may be orgamzed under the Act,

In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers confermed
by the Act, the Company shall be governed by a limited Hability company agreement.

. The Company shall to the fullest extent permitted by the
provisions of Section 18-108 of the Act, as the same may be amended and supplemented,
indemmify any snd all persons whom it shall have the power to indemnify under said
Section 18-108 from and against any and all matters, and the indemmification provided
for herein shall not be deemed exclusive of any other right to which any person may be
entitled under the Company’s limited liability company agreement, or othexrwise.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned authorized person has _
executed this Certificate of Formation as of February 20, 2003,

Joshua P. Kleiman
Authorized Person

NY53/253061.1
33783.00008




Delaware .. .

The First State

I, HARRIET SMITH WIRDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT
COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF "C III COMMUNICATIONS
OPERATIONS, LLC®, FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON THE TWELFTH DAY OF

MARCH, A.D. 2003, AT 12 O’'CLOCK P.M.

Harriet Smith Windsor, Secretary of State

3627662 8100 AUTHENTICATTION: 2303463

030165122 DATE: 03-12-03



STATE OF DELANARE
SECRETARY OF STATE
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS
FILED 12:00 PM 03/12/2003
030165122 — 3627862

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
TO
CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION
OF
C M Communications Operations, LLC
1. The name of the limited liability company is C Il Communications
Operations, LLC.

2. The Certificate of Formation of the Company is hereby amended by

deleting in its entirety Article SECOND of the Cerlificate of Formation and substituting
the following therefor:

*SECOND. The address of the registered office of the Company in the
State of Delaware is: Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, City of Wilmington,
County of New Castle, State of Delaware 19801. The name of the registered agent of the
Company at such address is: The Corporation Trust Company.”

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the undersigned has execirted this Certificate of
Amendment to Certificate of Formation of C Ilf Communications Operations, LLC this
12th day of March, 2003.

Authorized Person

39611262 02062067




MAR. 7.2003 3:52PM CORPORATE TRUST CENTER NOC20 P

Delaware -

The First State

I, HARRIET SMITH WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY "Q II1 COMMUNICATIONS OPERATIONS,
LLCY IS DULY FORMED TUHDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE AND
I8 IN GOOD YTANDING AND HAS A LEGAL EXISTENCE SO FAR AB THE
RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS9 OF THE SEVENTH DAY OF MARCH,
A.D. 2003.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANKNUAL TAXES HAVE

NOT BEEMN ASSESSED TO DATE.

Harriet Smith Windsor, Secretary of State

3627662 8300

ATUYHENTICATION: 2235856

030153650 DATE: 03-07-03
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OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
Certificate of Authority
Limited Liability Company

ORGANIZATIONAL ID #: FL00154]1

1, Chris Nelson, Secretary of State of the State of South Dakota, hercby certify
that duplicate of the Application for a Certificate of Authority of C I
COMMUNICATIONS OPERATIONS, LLC (DE) to transact
business in this state duly signed and verified pursuant to the provisions of the
South Dakota Limited Liability Company Act, have been received in this office
and are found to conform to law.

ACCORDINGLY and by virtue of the authority vested in me by law, 1 hereby
issue this Certificate of Authority and attach hereto a duplicate of the application
for certificate of authority.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I

ABAL have bereunto set my hand and

L I affixed the Great Seal of the State of

‘ South Dakota, at Pierre, the Capital,
this March 14, 2003.

Chi Nielarn.

Chris Nelson
Secretary of State

CertAuthLLC Metge.doc

SN uEedn
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SECRETARY OF STATE

STATE CAPITOL CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY APPLICATION

500 & CAPITOL AVE. OF A R 1"* ')
et FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

FAX (605) 773-4550 ' , 8, 8% o STATE

1. The name of the foreign Limited Liability Company is:

C I Cotamunications Opetations, LLC §

2. The name of the stpte or country under whose law it is organized is: Delaware ) @ .1‘)3>

3. The street address of its principal office is: \ﬂ/‘yﬂ/j’y

701 Pennsylvania Avenus, NW, Suite 500, Attn: Robert E, Stup, Jr., Waghington, DC 20004

4, The address of its iritial desipnated office in South Dakota is: {Q@'b -
J%
319 South Coteau Street, Pierre, SD 57501 / @Wﬁ'
S,

5. The name and street address of its initial agent for service of process in South Dakota is:

C T CORPORATION SYSTEM, 319 S, Coteau Sizeet, Pitere, South Dakota 57501

6. The date of otganization is: 02/20/2003 , imd the period of duration is: _Petpetual

7. If the company is manager-managed, rather than member-managed, the name and address of cach initial manager:

8. Whether one or more of the membera ofthe company ave to be liable fov its debts and obligations under a provigion similar to
SDCL 47-34A-303 (o). '

‘The application muat be signed by a member if the company is a memher-managed ¢company or by a4 manager if its a
manager-managed company.’ ’

Date March 12, 2003

FILING INSTRUCTIONS:

»  The application for muthority must be accompanicd by the first Apnual Report,
+  One original and onhe exact or sonformed copy must be submited.
® . The application must be accorapanied by an oviginal, currcutly dated Certificare of Gond Standing or Existence from the

Secretary of State in the state whers it is organized,

calle. pdf

5ppd) - 172412 C T Filing Mranger Onlino
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Secrstary of State

State of South Dakota

500 E. Capital -
"Pierre SD 57501-5070

605-773-4845 ‘ :

FIRST ANNUAL REPORT
OF A
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
1. The name of the Limited Liability Company is:
C I Communications Operations, LLC

2 The state or couniry under whose law it is organized is:

Dalaware

3. The address of its registered office and the name and address of its registered agent for service

of process in South Dakota is:
€ T CORPORATION SYSTEM, o/v C T CORPOQRATION SYSTEM, 319 5. Coteau Street, Pierre, South Dakota 57501

4. The address of its principal office is:
701 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Suite 300, Attn: Robert E. Stup, Jr., Washington, DC 20004

5. The names and business addresses of any managers:

6. The dollar amount of the total agreed contributions to the limited liability company is
$100.00 *

V'/‘“-' Ié’“"'w - Member

Date; March 12; 2003

* FILING FEE:

AGREED CONTRIBUTION FEE
Not in excess of $50,000 , $90
$50,001 to $100,000 ' $£150
In excess of $100,000 $150 for first $100,000 plus 3.50

- for each additional $1,000
The maximum amount charged may not exceed sixteen thousand dollars.

S04 - 1424002 C T Filing Macages Online



C III Ops’ Officers and Directors

As a single member limited liability company, C III Ops is managed by its sole member, C III
Communications, LLC and does not have directors.

Jerald L. Kent - President
Cequel III, LLC

12444 Powerscourt Drive
St. Louis, MO 63131
Tel: (314) 965-2020

Fax: (314) 965-0500

Lynn D. Anderson - Vice President
Corvis Corporation

7015 Albert Einstein Drive
Columbia, MD 21046

Tel: (443) 259-4000

Fax: (443) 259-4444

Martin D. Kerckhoff - Vice President
Cequel III, LLC

12444 Powerscourt Drive

St. Louis, MO 63131

Tel: (314) 965-2020

Fax: (314) 965-0500

Kim Larsen - Secretary
Corvis Corporation

7015 Albert Einstein Drive
Columbia, MD 21046
Tel: (443) 259-4000

Fax: (443) 259-4444



C III’s Officers and Directors

David R. Huber - Director and Chairman of the Board
Corvis Corporation

7015 Albert Einstein Drive

Columbia, MD 21046

Tel: (443) 259-4000

Fax: (443) 259-4444

Lynn D. Anderson - Director and Vice President
Corvis Corporation

7015 Albert Einstein Drive

Columbia, MD 21046

Tel: (443) 259-4000

Fax: (443) 259-4444

Kim Larsen - Director and Secretary
Corvis Corporation

7015 Albert Einstein Drive
Columbia, MD 21046

Tel: (443) 259-4000

Fax: (443) 259-4444

John L. Spitos - Director
OCG Ventures

9212 Berger Road
Columbia, MD 21046
Tel: (443)259-0010
Fax: (410) 309-4326

Jerald L. Xent - Director and President
Cequel ITI, LLC

12444 Powerscourt Drive

St. Louis, MO 63131

Tel: (314) 965-2020

Fax: (314) 965-0500

Martin D. Kerckhoff - Director and Vice President
Cequel I, LLC

12444 Powerscourt Drive

St. Louis, MO 63131

Tel: (314) 965-2020

Fax: (314) 965-0500



Broadwing Communications Services Inc.

INCOME STATEMENT
9 Months Ending September 30, 2002
Unaudited
Net Revenues (
Operating Expenses:

Cost of Services

Operations and Administration

Depreciation and Amortization

Other Operating Expenses
Operating Loss

Interest Expense

Equity Interest

Other, Net
Loss Before Income Taxes, Minority Interest and
Change in Accounting Principle

Benefit for Income Taxes
Minority Interest

Change in Accounting Principle

Net Loss

$ 352,307,717

274,643,334
97,174,065
138,529,372
20,961,434

(179,000,488)

(124,674,592)
(13,240,901)
(470,651)

(317,386,632)

141,385,945
245,700
(1,649,861,655)

($1,825,616,642)




Broadwing Communications Services Inc.

BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002
Unaudited

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash And Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
I/C Receivables From Affiliates
Prepaid Assets
Deferred Taxes & Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets, Net

Other Non-Current Assets

Investment In Subsidiaries
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities ' :
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
Taxes Payable
Current Portion Of Long Term Debt
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Total Long Term Debt Less Current Portion
Deferred Tax Liability
Total Other Liabilities
Minority Interest
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Stockholders Equity
Total Retained Earnings
Additional Paid In Capital
Total Stockholders Equity

Total Liabilities And Stockholders Equity

$ 12,992,120
105,774,181
(1,880,761,057)
7,524,840
14,811,284

(1,739,658,632)

813,163,663
798,707,456
(577,454,091)

(705,241,604)

108,391,754
30,337,108
98,238,623

2,113,609
(263,038,356)

(23,957,262)

1,074,228
326,324,410
356,127,940

(523,133)

683,003,445

659,046,183

(3,632,058,370)
2,267,770,583

(1,364,287,787)

($705,241,604)




Broadwing Telecommunications Inc.

INCOME STATEMENT
/9 Months Ending September 30, 2002
I\Jnaudited
Net Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Cost of Services

Operations and Administration
Depreciation and Amortization
Operating Loss

Interest Expense

Other, Net
Loss Before Income Taxes & Change in Accounting
Principal

Benefit for Income Taxes
Change in Accounting Principal

Net Loss

$204,453,503

126,208,678
107,770,788
3,255,290

(32,781,253)

(4,709,431)
(175,499)

(37,666,183)

13,277,465
(357,053,444)

($381,442,162)




Broadwing Telecommunications Inc.

BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2002
Unaudited
ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable

Prepaid Assets

Deferred Taxes

Other Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets, Net

Net Intangible Assets

Other Non-Current Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Taxes Payable
Other Accrued Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liability
Other Long Term Liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Stockholders Equity
Total Retained Earnings
Additional Paid In Capital
Total Stockholders Equity

Total Liabilities And Stockholders Equity

7,178,668
2,050,576
2,624,591
2,572,512

15,426,347

7,597,972
145,031
99,001,799

122,171,149

4,775,663
355,003,216
8,744,641
1,385,852

369,909,372

3,389,297
755,848

4,145,145

374,054,517

(708,706,095)
456,822,727

(251,883,368)

$122,171,149




Broadwing Communications Services Inc.

INCOME STATEMENT
12 Months Ending December 31, 2001
Unaudited
Net Revenues
Operating Expenses:

Cost of Services

Operations and Administration

Depreciation and Amortization

Other Operating Expenses
Operating Loss

Interest Expense
Equity Interest
Other, Net

Loss Before Income Taxes and Minority Interest

Benefit for Income Taxes
Minority Interest

Net Loss

$ 617,242,503

467,098,508
132,767,681
264,265,142
212,305,187

(459,194,015)

(111,794,342)
2,985,494
3,829,467

(564,173,396)

213,057,553
192,124

($350,923,719)




Broadwing Communications Services Inc.

BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2001
Unaudited

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash And Cash Equivalents

$ 11,961,100

Accounts Receivable 69,872,252

I/C Receivables From Affiliates (1,506,181,154)
Prepaid Assets 8,966,310
Deferred Taxes 8,043,714

Total Current Assets (1,407,337,778)

Fixed Assets, Net 933,867,725
Other Non-Current Assets 2,348,247,327
Investment In Subsidiaries (440,070,430)

Total Assets

1,434,706,844

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
Taxes Payable
Current Portion Of Long Term Debt
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-~Current Liabilities
Total Long Term Debt Less Current Portion
Deferred Tax Liability
Total Other Liabilities
Minority Interest
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Stockholders Equity
Total Retained Earnings
Additional Paid In Capital
Total Stockholders Equity

Total Liabilities And Stockholders Equity

172,003,740
39,937,742
(7,324,388)

2,887,592

(78,400,415)

129,104,271

44,646,155
290,499,169
425,384,851

(277,432)

760,252,743

889,357,014

(1,670,735,545)
2,216,085,376

545,349,831

$1,434,706,845




Broadwing Telecommunications Inc.

INCOME STATEMENT
12 Months Ending December 31, 2001
Unaudited

Net Revenues $ 246,772,451

Operating Expenses:
Cost of Services 154,965,477
Operations and Administration 156,540,464
Depreciation and Amortization 24,319,967
Operating Loss (89,053,457)
Interest Expense (14,476,105)
Other, Net (1,857,993)
Loss Before Income Taxes (105,387,555)
Benefit for Income Taxes 32,956,974

Net Loss ($ 72,430,581)




Broadwing Telecommunications Inc.

BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2001
Unaudited

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash And Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Assets
Deferred Taxes
Other Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets, Net

Net Intangible Assets

Other Non-Current Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Taxes Payable
Other Accrued Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liability
Other Long Term Liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Stockholders Equity
Total Retained Earnings
Additional Paid In Capital
Total Stockholders Equity

Total Liabilities And Stockholders Equity

$ 47,322
(60,862,453)
1,814,189
3,162,796
(12,355,382)

(68,193,528)

11,645,403
359,131,210
80,917,949

383,501,034

3,181,269
246,857,682
803,940
400,953

251,243,844

2,324,534
744,859

3,069,393

254,313,237

(327,634,930)
456,822,727

129,187,797

$ 383,501,034




FORM 10-Q

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

[X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 28, 2002

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 "
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 0-12751

Corvis Corporation
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 52-2041343
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

7015 Albert Einstein Drive, Columbia, Maryland 21046-9400
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(443) 259-4000
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed
by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes X No

Number of shares of Common Stock, $0.01 par value, outstanding at October 26, 2002:
412,290,812
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PART I - Financial Information

Item 1. Financial Statements.

CORYVIS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents........oceceeceeerreerrcerrnrerecceescnrenenss rrereeneaen
Short-term INVESHMENLS ...ccueeeceererieieeermieeeseieseeeeersesessssesessessnesseeses
Trade accounts receivable..........ccoveerennnen.
Inventory, Net......covviveirienniccninnrieninns
Other current assets........ccoceveerveversrvverenneres

Total current assets

Restricted cash, Iong-teIT......ccovrmreireerernrsiecnrc et eese s e ssnsanan
Property and equipment, NEt............ccoiviiiiiice e
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net
Other long-1erm asSets, NEL......c.vvveeervereereereererseeeet e reroresesessscs s s essseerssesnssene

TOtal SSELS veveriieereeiereiieerieerieeresrerreesseseaeransesens Ceevrvennns

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities: . :
Notes payable, Current portion ........ceceeveeeeernereeeveeerscseresesnieeeens
Capital lease obligations, current portion.........ceveevvereesscenreseeersnnne
Accounts payable ...t
Accrued expenses and other Habilities .......c.ocevererneerrererererererennnas
Provision for restructuring and other charges .........ccccecovvvevrvrceceene

Total current liabilities........ccovvceeemomnrrnceieeccneeeeenens

Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable, net of current portion........ceeeecereerveecrcenveerrnneecss
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion ..........ceeveeceveneceee
Deferred lease liability and other.........ccoeeeemcernncevncrrneescnnnreecens

Total Habilities.....co e

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock—$0.01 par value; 1,900,000,000 shares
authorized; 362,687,909 shares issued and outstanding as
of December 29, 2001; 412,288,312 shares issued and
outstanding as of September 28, 2002

Additional paid-in capital.........c.ccoocoriinninin

Shareholder notes receivable ........ccvvvieeiiernrereneneiessnsesseseeressens

Accumulated other comprehensive loss:

Foreign currency translation adjustment.........coccovveeeerrcnnas
Accumulated defiCit.......oveceevieireirvenenesisree e
Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’” equity........cccocevvueurecenn.

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

December 29, September 28,
2001 2002
$ 638,872 $ 510,729
21,907 38,014
33,676 6,021
96,426 74,472
17,486 12,544
808,367 641,780
2,417 2,396
134,393 104,852
21,429 58,593
12,219 2,811
$ 978,825 $ 810432
$ 126 $ 105
6,796 3,866
14,488 16,000
36,402 41,629
24,050 19,696
81,862 81,296
2,959 2,587
1,743 167
3,408 2,871
89,972 86,921
3,621 4,117
2,648,955 2,798,275
- (32
(10,796) (8,377)
(1,752,927) (2,070,472)
888,853 723,511
$ 978,825 $ 810432




CORYVIS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

A5 1L [ R
Costs of Revenue:
Product Sales .......coceereeeecrerererererreenneerersanenns
Inventory write-downs and other

Gross profit (1058)...ccceercerrereercrmecrmmeerinecnenanas
Operating expenses:
Research and development, exclusive of
equity-based eXpense.....c....coeeereeceenenrenes
Sales and marketing, exclusive of equity-
based eXpense.......oocveeerreerreseenernemrecnees
General and administrative, exclusive of
equity-based expense........ooviinincnnnen.
Equity-based expense:
Research and development..........ccoeeurenneee
Sales and marketing .......ccceeeeevecveernerncrenens
General and administrative.........cccoceeneeneee
Amortization of intangible assets..................
Purchased research and development.............
Restructuring, impairment and other

Operating loss
Interest income and other, net ..................

Other comprehensive income (loss) — foreign
currency translation adjustment.........cccevevvevireruneen
Comprehensive 1085 ......cveeverereeeescerercesenerenas

Basic and diluted net loss per common share...............

Weighted average number of common shares
OULSEANAING .vveveemrereerereeraeeresresrreee e enernnsesseeeeens

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 29, September 28, September 29, September 28,
2001 2002 2001 2002
24,157 3 1353 § 173,203 $ 13,092
15,554 757 108,999 9,478
- 24,278 99,166 30,324
8,603 (23,682) (34,962) (26,710)
34,827 32,980 117,751 95,123
12,672 10,954 43,185 36,147
7,652 7,231 27,163 24,407
10,940 7,152 36,368 22,209
8,265 2,954 15,560 9,092
8,997 7,601 27,346 23,383
12,014 5,658 113,890 12,833
- - - 34,580
131 31,313 606,866 35,664
95,498 105,843 988,129 293,438
(86,895) (129,525)  (1,023,091) (320,148)
6,269 2,127 19,804 2,603
(80,626)  $ (127,398) $(1,003,287) § (317,545)
11,949 (128) (68,726) 2,419
(68,677) $ (127,756) $(1,072,013)  § (315,126)
(023) % (031) $ (287 $  (0.82)
352,335 410,323 349,490 385,643



CORVIS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
NEL10SS urereerireeererrereerenresessessctsseseesescesssessrestassssssressnsebssses s sassesennrsanasassasass
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization.........coeeeeiiiuimincereinsennenes
Equity-based BXPENSE ....c.c.cvvveeremirimsmmrnccciereneesenessnsssansans
Purchased research and development
Restructuring, impairment and other charges....................
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable..............
Decrease (increase) in inventory, net.........c..ccouvvenee
Decrease (increase) in other assets........ccccevveveueenne
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued
EXPEIISES eueucerserrerencaesecrencmescssssirercmracsinsirsssssnsssasnsnas
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment ...........ccccoveieensennns
Cash acquired in business combination...........ceceecererennens
Purchases and sales of short-term investments, net...........
Decrease (increase) in deposits and other
NON-CUITENL @SSELS couviriitiereinrrrnieeereseenicie e rie s

Net cash used in investing activities.......ceevvecircivcrcnnininenes

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on note payable and capital leases ....c...cceuvenene
Proceeds from the issuance of stock..........coevveemrrrmrccnnns
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities...........
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
EQUIVALEHLS. ...t
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ..........coocenenen.

Cash and cash equivalents—Dbeginning.........cccuveveeesnirenisnsniossrsensecnnnnen

Cash and cash equivalents——ending..........coovvniniicncnnnnn e

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest Paid.......oovvcecmeciniercece et

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Obligations under capital 18ase..........ccceveversvreierncennrrrenenens
Purchase business combinations consideration paid with
COMIIMON SEOCK.c..certeeenscrrurermceenecrecmrassetesemssassssesssesssanens

Nine Months Ended
September 29, September 28,
2001 2002
$ (1,003,287) $ (317,545)
148,245 38,807
79,274 54,684
- 34,580
672,162 48,716
(41,020) 27,655
(30,756) 686
(4,940) 10,191
(20,603) 4918
(200,925) (97,308)
(93,634) (15,150)
- 6,013
- (16,107)
(15,150) 21
(108,784) (25,223)
(3,609) (4,899)
5,420 941
1,811 (3,958)
(1,884) (1,654)
(309,782) (128,143)
1,024,758 638,872
$ 714976 $ 510,729
$ 2,866 3 754
$ 3,299 $ -
- 91,818

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.



CORVIS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

n Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices
(a)  Basis of Presentation

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included herein for Corvis
Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”) have been prepared by the Company, without
audit, pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. In the
opinion of management, the condensed consolidated financial statements included in this report
reflect all normal recurring adjustments which the Company considers necessary for the fair
presentation of the results of operations for the interim periods. Certain information and footnote
disclosures normally included in the annual consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America have
been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. However, the Company
believes that the disclosures are adequate to understand the information presented. The operating
results for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the operating results for the entire
year.

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s December
29, 2001 audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 21, 2002.

(b)  Revenue and Costs of Revenue

Revenue from product sales is recognized upon execution of a contract and the
completion of all delivery obligations provided that there are no uncertainties regarding customer
acceptance and collectibility is deemed probable. If uncertainties exist, revenue is recognized
when such uncertainties are resolved.

Revenue from installation services is recognized as the services are performed unless the
terms of the supply contract combine product acceptance with installation, in which case
revenues for installation services are recognized when the terms of acceptance are satisfied and
installation is completed. Revenues from installation service fixed price contracts are recognized
on the percentage-of-completion method, measured by the percentage of costs incurred to date
compared to estimated total costs for each contract. Amounts received in excess of revenue
recognized are included as deferred revenue in the accompanying condensed consolidated
balance sheets. Revenue from annual maintenance agreements is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the service period.

Costs of revenue include the costs of manufacturing the Company’s products and other
costs associated with warranty and other contractual obligations, inventory obsolescence costs
and overhead related to the Company’s manufacturing, engineering, finishing and installation.
Warranty reserves are determined based upon actual warranty cost experience, estimates of
component failure rates and management’s industry experience.
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(c) Uses of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

2) Inventory

Inventories are comprised of the following:

December 29, September 28,
2001 2002
RAW MALELIALS ..eeeveeeireeiereerieitccvertesrstseseseseesseessssersnssrssssssersesensemnesnsessas b 197,549 3 197,931
WOLKID-PIOCESS -.cuvnveeeevrceremaenereteesnetrerenene e s et sasassbs e s sessssrnssssenees 17,037 5,913
FiniShed 00dS .....cccveriveeecrmceerenirir et eseecsemenesn e seenesasssssesaessns 52,268 40,063
Less: reserve for excess inventory and obsolescence........ JOTUT (170,428) (169,435)
INVENLOTY, DB ..veeerrereerrrerer e erae s sesseereseseesesneseseaesocseneenccnns $ 96,426 $ 74,472

3 Inventory Write-downs, Restructuring and Other Charges

During 2001 and 2002, unfavorable economic conditions resulted in reduced capital
expenditures by telecommunications service providers causing a decline in the demand for the
Company’s products. In response to these conditions, in the second, third and fourth quarters of
2001, the Company implemented restructuring plans designed to decrease the Company’s
operating expenses and to align resources for long-term growth opportunities. These plans
included the closure of the Company’s Canadian operations. Additionally, the Company
evaluated the recoverability of the carrying value of its inventory and long-lived assets in light of
the economic environment, the delay of customer network build-outs and projected sales. Asa
result, the Company recorded charges of approximately $1.0 billion in the year ended December
29,2001. These charges were comprised of $216.5 million in cost of revenue charges associated
with inventory write downs; $77.7 million associated with consolidation of excess facilities,
write-downs of idle equipment and workforce reductions; $711.5 million associated with the
write-down of goodwill generated in the acquisition of Algety Telecom S.A.; and $12.3 million
associated with permanent impairment charges on strategic equity investments carried at cost.

During the nine months ended September 28, 2002, the Company continued to develop
and implement restructuring plans designed to further align resources for long-term growth
opportunities.
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Restructuring efforts included the completion of a multi-year manufacturing outsourcing
agreement with Celestica, a world leader in electronics manufacturing services, in an affected to
improve overall manufacturing flexibility and reduce costs. Under the agreement, the Company
will transition all of its manufacturing capabilities to Celestica with the exception of final
assembly, system integration and testing capabilities. The full transition of affected
manufacturing capabilities is expected to be complete in the second quarter of 2003.

_ In September 2002, the Company completed plans for the reorganization of its French
subsidiary, Corvis Algety. The reorganization will result in the elimination of jobs as well as the
consolidation of facilities and equipment. These actions will result in staff reductions totaling
approximately 165 employees or 80 percent of the local workforce over the next six months.

In light of these activities as well as the continued contraction within the
telecommunications sector, the Company continued to evaluate the carrying value of its
inventory and other assets. These events and analysis have resulted in the following inventory
write-downs, restructuring, impairment and other special charges:
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Interest

Income and
Cost of Revenue Restructuring and Other Charges Other
Special Charges,
Inventory Write-
downs, Contract Total
Losses and Restructuring Impairment
Purchase Workforce Facility Asset and Other of
Commitments Reduction Consolidation Impairments Charges Investments Total
(In thousands)
Restructuring liability as
of December 29, 2001 .... $15,313 $1,146 $7,591 — $8,737 — $24,050
Quarter ended March 30,
2002: —
Restructuring and other
Charges ..ooeeeeeensneneen 4,307 2,599 — — 2,599 — 6,906
Non-cash charges (4,307) (775) — — (775) — (5,082)
Cash payments.........cccu... (5,002) (2,034) (151) — (2,185) — (7,187)
Quarter ended June 29,
2002:
Restructuring and other
charges.....ovveersennnns 6,895 4,232 500 — 4,732 4,771 16,398
Non-cash charges ........... (6,895) (1,847) — — (1,847) @,771) (13,513)
Cash payments..........co.ee. (2,396) (1,394) 176) — (1,570) - (3,966)
Accretion of interest........ — — 127 — 127 — 127
Adjustments of prior
estimates......ccccnrernrennas (5,155) — (2,980) — (2,980) — (8,135) .
Quarter ended September ,
28,2002:
Restructuring and other
charges......ocurerninens 24278 12,516 — 18,832 31,348 — 55,626
Non-cash charges (23,841) —_— — (18,832) (18,832) — (42,673)
Cash payments.........cou.... (908) (1,576) (388) —_ (1,964) — (2,872)
Accretion of interest ....... — — @8n — 81) — (81)
Effect of international
exchange rates ......eovennne 132 — — — — — 132
Adjustments of prior
estimates......cooerersrererenne - _ (34 — (349 — (349
Restructuring liability as .
of September 28, 2002.... 52,421 $12,867 $4,408 — 817,275 — $19,696

GY) Basic and Diluted Net Loss Per Share

Basic and diluted net loss per share are computed as follows (in thousands, except per

share data):
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Three Months Ended
September 29, September 28,
2001 2002
NELIOSS woreereuereeereerrceerrnrreesemsserresesrsessssnsse s aesesacstesensesencantuesssasssnsssstenenen $ (80,626) §  (127,398)
Basic and diluted weighted average common shares ..........ccoevevecreennneee, 352,335 410,323
Basic and diluted net 10ss per cOmmOn ShATe................ceveeerreeereeriesinennns 5 (023) 3 (0.31)
Nine Months Ended
September 29, September 28,
2001 2002
NELIOSS wovereereerireeerreneserresieesrres s seesesevaretsassears seseseeneseensasaeenensacssstraenses $ (@1,003,287) § (317,545)
Basic and diluted weighted average common shares ............cecorceveeeirnennacs 349,490 385,643
Basic and diluted net loss per common share............ e $ 287 § (0.82)

Options and warrants outstanding as of September 28, 2002 to purchase 52.3 million and
7.6 million shares of common stock, respectively, and 1.1 million unvested shares acquired
through the exercise of options were not included in the computation of diluted loss per share for
the three and nine months period ended September 28, 2002 as their inclusion would be anti-
dilutive.

Options and warrants outstanding as of September 29, 2001 to purchase 59.2 million and
7.6 million shares of common stock, respectively, and 6.4 million unvested shares acquired
through the exercise of options were not included in the computation of diluted loss per share for
the three and nine months ended September 29, 2001 as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

o) Dorsal Acquisition

On May 16, 2002, the Company completed its acquisition of Dorsal Networks, Inc., a
privately held provider of next-generation transoceanic and regional undersea optical network
solutions for 41.8 million shares of common stock valued at approximately $91.8 million. The
acquisition was accounted for under the “purchase” method of accounting. Under the purchase
method, the purchase price of Dorsal was allocated to identifiable assets and liabilities acquired
from Dorsal, with the excess being treated as goodwill.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition which is based on an independent valuation.
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CUITENE ASSELS....eveerreeievrerreraeeseresserssesaeetassessesasserestesssesersnesassssssarnasseesesnsnmsasnes $ 6,632
Property and equIPmMEnt......cceccveeenerereeeeminse e e es e s 5,506
OHET ASSELS ..o ceeeuccrencreree ittt esssasase s as s s e sb e s samr e s msasien 577
Patents .....cocceveereccrenneneesense vt feerarerereseee st et et e et se e s snnans s e e eanennerene 30,799
In-process research and development........coovoeevimcnicnncereee, 34,580
GOOAWIIL .. ettt b e bbb s ene 19,089
Total assets ACAUITE .....ccerverrrreececrerrercmsisrimis it 97,183
Current HabilIIES .......coceeererrircecrc s (5,365)
Total liabiliies aSSUME...........c.eeueeerreessesssssnenssssmssensessssssessssssssscseseee (5,365)
Net assets ACQUITEd....c.coueereerreirernniiscii st enens $ 91,818

Acquired patents will be amortized over an estimated life of five years. Goodwill will
have an indefinite life, but will be subject to periodic impairment tests. In process research and
development was expensed during the nine months ended September 28, 2002. Dr. David R.
Huber, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, owned, directly or indirectly,
approximately 31 percent of the outstanding stock of Dorsal.

The following unaudited pro forma data summarizes the results of operations for the
period indicated as if the Dorsal acquisition had been completed as of the beginning of each
period presented. The unaudited pro forma data gives effect to actual operating results prior to
the acquisition, adjusted to include the pro forma effect of amortization of intangibles. These pro
-forma amounts do not purport to be indicative of the results that would have actually been
obtained if the acquisition occurred as of the beginning of the periods presented or that may be
obtained in the future.

. Three Months Ended
September 29, September 28,
2001 2002
REVEIIIES «cuieeeeteceeverreeveereesereebese st ess e sassresassesasbasranessessansesensassarsansanrans $ 24,157 $ 1,353
INEE LOSS ..voveuerevererraesassesrsraeaseantesssebesrastses sastssstatn ot see et sneasseseneutasnsssseesnes (99,443) (127,398)
Basic and diluted net 1058 per Share.........occoveeneeenrvnicierice e 5 (0.28) $ (0.31)
Nine Months Ended
September 29, September 28,
2001 2002
REVEIUES ...c.voeveveiceecereerenieere e st st ssssnesesaesesss et earaas et smesnseesaensosenssnsaos $ 173,203 3 13,092
INEELOSS vvvvvveremrerseressseescesteutsasastenassetasssassesesassastsesasmaennesesessnsesassssuesesnnne (1,059,294) (329,111)
Basic and diluted net 1oss per share...........covmiccciiicnnecicceecineens $ (3.03) $ (0.85)

10
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6) Legal Matters

In July 2000, Ciena Corporation (“Ciena”) informed the Company of its belief that there
is significant correspondence between products that the Company offers and several U.S. patents
held by Ciena relating to optical networking systems and related dense wavelength division
multiplexing communications systems technologies. On July 19, 2000, Ciena filed a lawsuit in
the United States District Court for the District of Delaware alleging that the Company is
willfully infringing three of Ciena’s patents. Ciena is seeking injunctive relief, monetary
damages including treble damages, as well as costs of the lawsuit, including attorneys’ fees. On
September 8, 2000, the Company filed an answer to the complaint, as well as counter-claims
alleging, among other things, invalidity and/or unenforceability of the three patents in question.
On March 5, 2001, a motion was granted, allowing Ciena to amend its complaint to include
allegations that the Company is willfully infringing two additional patents. Although a trial date
has not been set, we believe that a trial will commence in the first quarter of 2003. Based on the
status of the litigation, the Company cannot reasonably predict the likelihood of any potential
outcome.

Between May 7, 2001 and June 15, 2001, nine class action lawsuits were filed in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of New York relating to the Company’s
IPO on behalf of all persons who purchased Company stock between July 28, 2000 and the filing
of the complaints. Each of the complaints names as defendants: the Company, its directors and
officers who signed the registration statement in connection with the Company’s IPO, and
certain of the underwriters that participated in the Company’s IPO. Our directors and officers
have since been dismissed from the case, without prejudice. The complaints allege that the
registration statement and prospectus relating to the Company’s IPO contained material
misrepresentations and/or omissions in that those documents did not disclose (1) that certain of
the underwriters had solicited and received undisclosed fees and commissions and other
economic benefits from some investors in connection with the distribution of the Company’s
common stock in the TPO and (2) that certain of the underwriters had entered into arrangements
with some investors that were designed to distort and/or inflate the market price for the
Company’s common stock in the aftermarket following the IPO. The complaints ask the court to
award to members of the class the right to rescind their purchases of Corvis common stock (or to
be awarded rescissory damages if the class member has sold its Corvis stock) and prejudgment
and post-judgment interest, reasonable attorneys’ and experts witness’ fees and other costs.

By order dated October 12, 2001, the court appointed an executive committee of six

plaintiffs’ law firms to coordinate their claims and function as lead counsel. Lead plaintiffs have
been appointed in almost all of the IPO allocation actions including the Corvis action. On
October 17, 2001, a group of underwriter defendants moved for the judge’s recusal. The judge
denied that application. On December 13, 2001, the moving underwriter defendants filed a
petition for writ of mandamus seeking the disqualification of the judge in the United States Court
of Appeals for the Second Circuit. On April 1, 2002, the Second Circuit denied the moving
underwriter defendants’ application for a writ of mandamus seeking the judge’s recusal from this

11
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action. On April 19, 2002, plaintiffs filed amended complaints in each of the IPO allocation
actions, including the Corvis action. On May 23, 2002, a conference was held at which the court
set a briefing schedule for the filing of motions to dismiss the amended complaints. On July 1,
2002, the underwriter defendants filed their motion to dismiss the amended complaints. On July
15, 2002, the issuer defendants filed their motion to dismiss the amended complaints. The
briefing on the motions to dismiss has recently been completed, and the judge heard oral
arguments on the motions on November 1, 2002. No discovery has occurred.

It is the position of Company management that, at this time, it is not possible to estimate
the amount of a probable loss, if any, that might result from this matter. Accordingly, no
provision for this matter has been made in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

@) Concentrations

The Company has relied on four customers for all of its revenue: Wiltel Communications
Group, Inc. (formally Williams Communications, LLC), Broadwing Communications Services,
Inc., Telefonica de Espana S.A.U. and France Télécom. The Company expects that a significant
portion of its future revenue will continue to be generated by a limited number of customers.
The loss of any one of these customers or any substantial reduction in orders by any one of these
customers could materially adversely affect the Company’s financial condition or operating
results.

8 Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 143 (SFAS 143), “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” in
August 2001. SFAS 143 requires companies to record the fair value of a liability for an asset
retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred, and capitalize the cost by increasing
the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. The Company is required to adopt SFAS 143
on January 1, 2003. The adoption of this standard will not have a material effect on the
company’s results of operations.

The FASB issued SFAS 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections” in April 2002. SFAS 145
clarifies guidance related to the reporting of gains and losses from extinguishment of debt and
resolves inconsistencies related to the required accounting treatment of certain lease
modifications. The provisions of this statement relating to the extinguishment of debt are
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. The
provisions of this statement relating to lease modifications are effective for transactions
occurring after May 15, 2002. The Company does not believe this standard will have a material
impact on its results of operations.

12
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The FASB issued SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities” in June 2002. SFAS 146 nullifies previous guidance on this issue and requires a
liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity to be recognized and measured at
its fair value in the period in which the liability is incurred. The Company is required to adopt
the provisions of this statement for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.
The Company is assessing the impact that the adoption of this standard will have on the
Company’s results of operations.

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”, and SFAS No.
142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 addresses the accounting for
acquisitions of businesses and is effective for acquisitions occurring on or after July 1, 2001.
SFAS No. 142 addresses the method of identifying and measuring goodwill and other intangible
assets acquired in a business combination, eliminates further amortization of goodwill, provides
for classification of workforce intangibles as goodwill and requires periodic evaluations of
impairment of goodwill balances. SFAS No. 141 and 142 are effective January 1, 2002, except
for acquisitions occurring on or after July 1, 2001, for which the provisions of SFAS No. 141 and
142 are applicable. Accordingly, through December 29, 2001, the Company continued to
amortize goodwill.

Had the amortization provisions of SFAS No. 142 been applied as of January 1, 2001, for
all of the Company’s acquisitions, the Company’s income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share
would have been as follows:

Three Months Ended
September 29, 2001 September 28, 2002
Net 1088, a8 18POIted ....e et $ (80,626) $ (127,398)
Goodwill amOortiZatioN......cciecreereeiec e srer e rsres e s ene e e senns 8,982 —
Workforce in place amortization.........c..ccccveeernnssmeesevesecreenns 110 —
Net 1088, a8 adJUSIED ......eevvreeeceer et st s rscseisnes e $ 71,534 $ 127,398
Basic and diluted per share data:
Net loss per common share, as reported........covcvvverirermrecrrennnes 5 (0.23) 5 (0.31)
Goodwill and workforce in place amortization per common
SHATE ...ttt erer et st s a s s s ne s 0.03 —
Net loss per common share, as adjusted.........oooevveeeeriirenieineenns 3 0.20) 3 (0.31)
Nine Months Ended
September 29, 2001 September 28, 2002
Net 1088, @8 18POTE ....cveireceiiicni et $  (1,003,287) $ (317,545)
Goodwill AmMOTtZAtION. ......veeeeeeeiecerereererrerresnreseseeeneeseeesersenns 104,790 —
Workforce in place amortization.........c.coeeecienieinnnennnenisenenns 334 —
Net 1088, 85 AdJUSIE ..vevverevreeeeerenreerceeneree st ensanaes $  (898,163) $ (317,545)
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Nine Months Ended
Basic and diluted per share data: September 29, 2001 September 28, 2002
Net loss per common share, as reported...........oveevveirecrrnennene 5 2.87) 3 (0.82)
Goodwill and workforce in place amortization per common ‘
SHATE ...ttt s 0.30 —
Net loss per common share, as adjusted.........coccvevierccnccrcnens $ (2.57) $ (0.82)

As of January 1, 2002, the Company reclassified approximately $0.7 million of intangible
assets associated with an acquired employee workforce from intangible assets to goodwill, which
in accordance with SFAS No. 142, are no longer separately identifiable from goodwill. As of
September 28, 2002, the Company had approximately $87.9 million of intangible assets ($38.6
million net of accumulated amortization) related to patents and intellectual property, which are
being amortized straight-line over a period of three years. The Company incurred amortization
expense of $12.8 million during the nine months ended September 28, 2002 and anticipates
amortization expense to be the following for the next five years:

Estimated Amortization Expense:

For the year ended 12/28/02: $18,492
For the year ended 12/27/03: $17,771
For the year ended 12/25/04: $10,966
For the year ended 12/24/05: $ 4,141
For the year ended 12/23/06: $ -

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standard Board issued SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. This statement addresses
financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. This
statement supersedes FASB Statement No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of”, and the accounting and reporting
provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations, Reporting the Effects
of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and infrequently Occurring
Events and Transactions”, for the disposal of segments of a business (as previously defined in
that opinion). The adoption of SFAS No. 144 did not have any effect on the Company’s results
of operations.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

You should read the following discussion and analysis along with our unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements and the notes to those statements included
elsewhere in this report and in conjunction with our Form 10-K for the year ended December 29,
2001 filed on March 21, 2002 with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Overview

We design, manufacture and sell high performance all-optical and electrical/optical
terrestrial and undersea communications systems that we believe accelerate carrier revenue
opportunities and lower the overall cost of network ownership for carriers. Our optical products
have enabled a fundamental shift in network design and efficiency by allowing for the
transmission, switching and management of communications traffic entirely in the optical
domain. By deploying our products, carriers eliminate the need for expensive and bandwidth
limiting electrical regeneration and switching equipment, significantly reducing costs, increasing
network capacity and allowing them to provide new services more quickly and efficiently. Our
products also open new market opportunities for carriers by enabling a flexible, in-service
migration path from existing point-to-point and ring electrical/optical networks to all-optical
mesh networks. :

Customers

We currently have six customers, including Broadwing Communications Services, Inc.,
Wiltel Communications Group, Inc. (formally Williams Communications, LLC), Qwest
Communications Corporation, Telefonica de Espana S.A.U., France Telecom and the U.S.
Federal Government.

Broadwing has agreed to purchase at least $200 million of our products and services as
part of a multi-year purchase agreement. Since successfully completing field trials in July 2000,
Broadwing has deployed a wide range of our optically optimized networking products, including
the all-optical switch, to create a national all-optical network that has been in service for over a
year. Sales to Broadwing continue as part of network expansions and maintenance. Cumulative
sales to Broadwing through September 28, 2002 totaled $191.6 million.

In 2001, Wiltel accepted a field trial system and agreed to purchase up to $300 million of
our products and services as part of a multi-year purchase agreement. Firm commitments
totaling approximately $85.0 million must be purchased prior to December 31, 2003. Wiltel has
deployed our switching and transport equipment to create a national all-optical network, which is
currently in service carrying commercial traffic. Cumulative sales to Wiltel through September
28, 2002 total $77.5 million.

On April 22, 2002, we reached an agreement with Qwest Communications Corporation
modifying the terms of our previous purchase agreement. Under the terms of the new
agreement, Qwest agreed to purchase up to $150 million of our products and services over a
multi-year period. Firm commitments totaling $7.0 million must be purchased in 2002 and $5.0
million must be purchased in 2003 subject to certain acceptance criteria. In addition, we have
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agreed with Qwest to enter into two field trials of Corvis ON transport and switching equipment
as well as our Corvis Optical Convergence Switch (OCS). The field trials began in the third
quarter of 2002.

During the first quarter of 2002, we completed the first sales of our XF repeaterless link
product to Telefonica de Espana, which was deployed between the island of Mallorca and
Telefonica’s backbone network in Spain. In April 2002, we sold a XF repeaterless link to France
Telecom to upgrade its link between the European mainland and the island of Corsica. The
relationships with Telefonica and France Telecom are in early stages and the agreements do not
include significant purchase commitment levels, however, we hope to develop these
arrangements into long-term business relationships.

In the third quarter of 2002, we created a wholly owned subsidiary, Corvis Government
Solutions, Inc. (CGSI), to provide optical networking solutions and services to the Federal
marketplace. During the third quarter, CGSI secured its first contract and purchase order from
the U.S. Federal Government.

We have also entered into lab trials and discussions regarding laboratory and field trials
with other carriers for our ON, OCS and transoceanic subsea products. Upon successful
completion of these field trials, we hope to enter into agreements for commercial deployment
with new customers.

Starting in 2001 and continuing in 2002, conditions within the general economy and the
telecommunications sector have resulted in reduced capital expenditures by carriers and a
reduced demand for telecommunications networking systems. As a response to these conditions,
we implemented restructuring plans designed to decrease our business expenses and to align
resources for long-term growth opportunities. Additionally, we evaluated the carrying value of
our inventory and long-term assets. As a result of these steps, we recorded charges totaling
approximately $1.0 billion in the second, third and fourth quarters of 2001. These charges were
comprised of $216.5 million in cost of revenue charges associated with inventory write-downs
and losses on open purchase commitment cancellations; $24.5 million associated with workforce
reductions; $53.2 million associated with consolidation of excess facilities and write-downs of
idle equipment; $711.5 million associated with the write-down of goodwill; and $12.3 million
associated with permanent impairment charges on strategic equity investments.

During the nine months ended September 28, 2002, we continued to develop and
implement additional restructuring plans designed to further align resources for long-term
growth opportunities.

Restructuring efforts included the execution of a multi-year manufacturing outsourcing
agreement with Celestica, a world leader in electronics manufacturing services in an effort to
improve overall manufacturing flexibility and reduce costs. Under the agreement, we will
transition all of our manufacturing capabilities to Celestica with the exception of final assembly,
system integration and test capabilities. The full transition of affected manufacturing capabilities
is expected to be complete in the second quarter of 2003.
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In September 2002, we completed plans for the reorganization of our French subsidiary,
Corvis Algety. The reorganization will result in the elimination of jobs as well as the
consolidation of facilities and equipment. These actions will result in total staff reductions of
approximately 165 employees or 80 percent of the local workforce over the next six months.

In light of these activities as well as continued contraction within the telecommunications
sector, we continued to evaluate the carrying value of our inventory and other assets. These
events and analysis have resulted in the following inventory write-downs, restructuring,
impairment and other special charges:

Interest
Income and
Cost of Revenue Restructuring and Other Charges Other
Special Charges,
Inventory Write-
downs, Contract Total
Losses and Restructuring Impairment
Purchase Workforce Facility Asset and Other of ’
Commitments Reduction Consolidation Impairments Charges Investments Total
N (In thousands)
1
Restructuring liability as
of December 29, 2001 .... $15,313 $1,146 $7,591 — $8,737 — $24,050
Quarter ended March 30, ‘
2002: —
Restructuring and other
Charges ...c.coevereenennns 4,307 2,599 — — 2,599 — 6,906
Non-cash charges ........... (4,307) (775) — — (775) — (5,082)
Cash payments.........c..... (5,002) (2,034) (151) — (2,185) — (7,187)
Quarter ended June 29,
2002:
Restructuring and other
charges.....cvemueveemnane : 6,895 4,232 500 — 4,732 4,771 16,398
Non-cash charges ........... (6,895) (1,847) — — (1,847) @,771) (13,513)
Cash payments................ (2,396) (1,394) 176) — (1,570) — (3,966)
Accretion of interest....... — — 127 — 127 — 127
Adjustments of prior
€Stimates ....eeemericcrererenneene (5,155) — (2,980) — (2,980) — (8,135)
Quarter ended September
28, 2002:
Restructuring and other
charges....cveeenernenne 24,278 12,516 — 18,832 31,348 — 55,626
Non-cash charges ... (23,841) — — (18,832) (18,832) — (42,673)
Cash payments (908) (1,576) (388) —_ (1,964) — 2,872)
Accretion of interest ....... — — (8L) — (81) — (81)
Effect of international
exchange rates................ 132 — — — — — 132
Adjustments of prior
ESHMALES veerereeereerrerseeans — — (34) — (34) — (34)
Restructuring liability as
of September 28, 2002.... $2,421 $12,867 $4,408 — $17,275 —  $19,696
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‘We continue to monitor our financial position and will make strategic decisions as
necessary to position us for long-term success, which may result in additional restructuring
charges. These initiatives could lead to further reductions in our facility and fixed asset needs,
resulting in associated asset impairment and write-down charges.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We have identified the following critical accounting policies that affect the more
significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial
statements. The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and judgments
that affect our reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates,
including those related to asset impairment, revenue recognition, product warranty liabilities,
allowance for doubtful accounts, and contingencies and litigation. We stated these accounting
policies in the notes to our 2001 annual consolidated financial statements and at relevant sections
in this discussion and analysis. These estimates are based on the information that is currently
available to us and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results could vary from those estimates under different assumptions or
conditions.

We believe that the following critical accounting policies affect the more significant
judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue. Revenue from product sales is recognized upon execution of a contract and the
completion of all delivery obligations provided that there are no uncertainties regarding customer
acceptance and collectibility is deemed probable. If uncertainties exist, revenue is recognized
when such uncertainties are resolved. Customer contracts generally include extensive lab and
field trial testing and some include other acceptance criteria.

Our products can be installed by our customers, third party service providers or by us.
Revenue from installation services is recognized as the services are performed unless the terms
of the supply contract combine product acceptance with installation, in which case revenues for
installation services are recognized when the terms of acceptance are satisfied and installation is

completed. To the extent customer contracts include both product sales and installation services,
revenues are recognized based on their respective fair values. Revenues from installation service
fixed price contracts are recognized on the percentage-of-completion method, measured by the
percentage of costs incurred to date compared to estimated total costs for each installation
contract. Amounts received in excess of revenue recognized are included as deferred revenue in
our condensed consolidated balance sheet. Revenue from annual maintenance agreements is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the service period.

Costs of Revenue. Costs of revenue include the costs of manufacturing our products and
other costs associated with warranty and other contractual obligations, inventory obsolescence
costs and overhead related to our manufacturing, engineering, finishing and installation
operations. Warranty reserves are determined based upon actual warranty cost experience,
estimates of component failure rates and management’s industry experience. Inventory
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obsolescence costs are estimated using certain assumptions, including projected sales and sales
mix. Actual results may differ from those estimates. We continually monitor component
failures, technical changes, and levels of on-hand inventory and adjust our estimates accordingly.
If, however, actual results vary significantly from our estimates, we will adjust the assumptions
utilized in our methodologies and reduce or provide for additional accruals as appropriate.

Allowance for Bad Debt. To date, we have relied on four customers for all of our
revenues. We expect that a significant portion of our future revenue will continue to be
generated by a limited number of customers. We monitor the financial conditions of these
customers closely and have concluded that no allowance for bad debt was appropriate as of
September 28, 2002.

Restructuring and Other Charges. Reflecting continued unfavorable economic
conditions and continued lack of expected customer wins and product sales, our Board of
Directors approved plans for the reduction of operations including the consolidation of facilities,
reduction of employees and the outsourcing of a majority of our manufacturing capabilities. In
addition, we evaluated the recoverability of the carrying value of our inventory and long-lived
assets. As a result, we recorded charges associated with estimated excess inventory and open
purchase commitments based on projected sales volumes, sales mix and estimated selling prices.
Facility consolidation costs are based on assumed exit costs and timetables. Asset impairment
charges are based on estimated salvage values and recoverability estimates. Goodwill
impairment charges are based on estimated discounted future cash flows. If actual results differ
significantly from our estimates and assumptions, we will adjust our reserves and allowances
accordingly.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. We have recorded goodwill and intangibles
resulting from our acquisitions. Through December 29, 2001, goodwill and intangibles have
been amortized on a straight-line basis over their respective lives of between 3 and 5 years.
Upon the adoption of SFAS No. 142 on December 30, 2001, we ceased amortizing goodwill and
will perform an annual impairment analysis to assess the recoverability of the goodwill, in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142. Our annual impairment analysis will take
place in the fourth quarter. If we are required to record an impairment charge in the future, it
would have an adverse impact on our results of operations.

Litigation. In July 2000, Ciena Corporation (“Ciena”) informed us of its belief that there
is significant correspondence between products that we offer and several U.S. patents held by
Ciena relating to optical networking systems and related dense wavelength division multiplexing
communications systems technologies. On July 19, 2000, Ciena filed a lawsuit in the United
States District Court for the District of Delaware alleging that we are willfully infringing three of
Ciena’s patents. Ciena is seeking injunctive relief, monetary damages including treble damages,
as well as costs of the lawsuit, including attorneys’ fees. On September 8, 2000, we filed an
answer to the complaint, as well as counter-claims alleging, among other things, invalidity and/or
unenforceability of the three patents in question. On March 5, 2001, a motion was granted,
allowing Ciena to amend its complaint to include allegations that we are willfully infringing two
additional patents. Although a trial date has not been set, we believe that a trial will commence
in the first quarter of 2003. Based on the status of the litigation, we cannot reasonably predict
the likelihood of any potential outcome.
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Between May 7, 2001 and June 15, 2001, nine class action lawsuits were filed in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of New York relating to our initial public
offering on behalf of all persons who purchased our stock between July 28, 2000 and the filing of
the complaints. Each of the complaints names as defendants: Corvis, our directors and officers
who signed the registration statement in connection with our initial public offering, and certain
of the underwriters that participated in our initial public offering. The complaints allege that the
registration statement and prospectus relating to our initial public offering contained material
misrepresentations and/or omissions in that those documents did not disclose (1) that certain of
the underwriters had solicited and received undisclosed fees and commissions and other
economic benefits from some investors in connection with the distribution of our common stock
in the initial public offering and (2) that certain of the underwriters had entered into.
arrangements with some investors that were designed to distort and/or inflate the market price for
our common stock in the aftermarket following the initial public offering. The complaints ask
the court to award to members of the class the right to rescind their purchases of Corvis common
stock (or to be awarded rescissory damages if the class member has sold its Corvis stock) and

prejudgment and post-judgment interest, reasonable attorneys’ and experts witness’ fees and
other costs.

By order October 12, 2001, the court appointed an executive committee of six plaintiffs’
law firms to coordinate their claims and function as lead counsel. Lead plaintiffs have been
appointed in almost all of the IPO allocation actions, including the Corvis action. On October
17,2001, a group of underwriter defendants moved for the judge’s recusal. The judge denied
that application. On December 13, 2001, the moving underwriter defendants filed a petition for
writ of mandamus seeking the disqualification of the judge in the United States Court of Appeals
for the Second Circuit. On April 1, 2002, the Second Circuit denied the moving underwriter
defendants’ application for a writ of mandamus seeking the judge’s recusal from this action. On
April 19, 2002, plaintiffs filed amended complaints in each of the IPO allocation actions,
including the Corvis action. On May 23, 2002, a conference was held at which the court set a
briefing schedule for the filing of motions to dismiss the amended complaints. On July 1, 2002,
the underwriter defendants filed their motion to dismiss the amended complaints. On July 15,
2002, the issuer defendants filed their motion to dismiss the amended complaints. The briefing
on the motions to dismiss has recently been completed, and the judge heard oral arguments on
the motions on November 1, 2002. No discovery has occurred.

Based on the status of the litigation, we cannot reasonably predict the likelihood of any
potential outcome. We continue to monitor the status of the litigation, however we can give no
assurances that an unfavorable outcome will not result in future charges.

Results of Operations
Three months ended September 28, 2002 compared to three months ended September 29, 2001

Revenue. Revenue decreased to $1.35 million for the three months ended September 28,
2002 from $24.2 million for the three months ended September 29, 2001. This decrease in
revenue is primarily due to a reduction in capital spending by telecommunications carriers
resulting in a decline in demand for telecommunications equipment, including our products.
Revenue for the three months ended September 28, 2002 was attributable to two customers.
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Service revenues, including maintenance, training and support totaled approximately $0.9
million.

Gross Profit (loss). Costs of revenue consists of component costs, direct compensation
costs, warranty and other contractual obligations, inventory obsolescence costs and overhead
related to our manufacturing and engineering, finishing and installation operations. In addition,
cost of revenue includes charges associated with our restructuring plans and excess inventories.

Gross profit (loss) decreased to $(23.7) million for the three months ended September 238,
2002 from $8.6 million for the three months ended September 29, 2001. Negative gross margins
are attributable to inventory write-downs of $24.3 million recorded in the three months ended
September 28, 2002. Excluding inventory write-downs and other charges, gross profit and gross
margin were $0.6 million and 44% for the three months ended September 28, 2002 and $8.6
million and 36% for the three months ended September 29, 2001. The increase in gross margin
is primarily due to an increase in the relative proportion of service revenue compared to product
revenues as well as the recognition of certain product revenues which had been deferred pending
final acceptance. We expect that gross margin, excluding inventory write-downs and other
charges, will decrease in the coming quarters as a result of an increase in the relative proportion
of product revenues.

Research and Development, Excluding Equity-Based Expense. Research and
development expense, excluding equity-based expense consists primarily of salaries and related
personnel costs, test and prototype expenses related to the design of our hardware and software
products, laboratory costs and facilities costs. All costs related to product development, both
hardware and software, are recorded as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. Due
to the timing and nature of the expenses associated with research and development, significant
quarterly fluctuations may result. We believe that research and development is critical to
achieving current and future strategic product objectives.

Research and development expenses, excluding equity-based expense decreased to $33.0
million for the three months ended September 28, 2002 from $34.8 million for the three months
ended September 29, 2001. The decrease in expenses was primarily due to lower prototype and
lab materials expense, offset in part by higher labor costs associated with the Dorsal acquisition.

Sales and Marketing, Excluding Equity-Based Expense. Sales and marketing expense,
excluding equity-based expense, consists primarily of salaries and related personnel costs,
laboratory trial systems provided to customers, trade shows, other marketing programs and travel
expenses.

Sales and marketing expense, excluding equity-based expense, decreased to $11.0 million
for the three months ended September 28, 2002 from $12.7 million for the three months ended
September 29, 2001. The decrease in expenses was primarily attributable to the effects of cost
saving initiatives including staff reductions and the curtailment of certain discretionary spending.

General and Administrative, Excluding Equity-Based Expense. General and
administrative expense, excluding equity-based expense, consists primarily of salaries and
related personnel costs, information systems support, recruitment expenses and facility demands
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associated with establishing the proper infrastructure to support our organization. This
infrastructure consists of executive, financial, legal, information systems and other
administrative responsibilities.

General and administrative expenses, excluding equity-based expense, decreased to $7.2
million for the three months ended September 28, 2002 from $7.7 million for the three months
ended September 29, 2001. The decrease in expenses was primarily attributable to staff
reductions and professional service fees.

Equity-based Expense. Equity-based expense consists primarily of charges associated
with employee options granted at below fair market value prior to our initial public offering.

Equity-based expense related to research and development, sales and marketing and
general and administrative functions for the three months ended September 28, 2002 decreased
to $17.7 million from $28.2 million for the three months ended September 29, 2001. The
decrease in equity-based expense resulted from a decrease in employee headcount.

Amortization of Intangible Assets. Amortization of intangible assets relates to the
amortization of certain intangible assets with finite lives. As a result of the issuance of SFAS
No. 142, we no longer record amortization of goodwill, rather goodwill will be tested at least
annually for impairment. There may be more volatility in reported income (loss) than previous
standards because impairment lossés are likely to occur irregularly and in varying amounts.

Amortization of intangible assets expenses decreased to $5.7 million for the three months
ended September 28, 2002 from $12.0 million for the three months ended September 29, 2001.
The decrease was primarily attributable to the discontinuation of amortization of goodwill
resulting from the acquisition of Algety Telecom S.A. that was being amortized over five years.

Interest Income, Net. Interest income, net of interest expense, decreased to $2.1 million
for the three months ended September 28, 2002 from $6.3 million of net interest income for the
three months ended September 29, 2001. The decrease was primarily attributed to lower average
invested cash balances and lower average returns on investments.

Nine months ended September 28, 2002 compared to nine months ended September29, 2001

Revenue. Revenue decreased to $13.1 million for the nine months ended September 28,
2002 from $173.2 million for the nine months ended September 29, 2001. This decrease in
revenue is due to a reduction in capital spending by telecommunications carriers resulting in a
sharp decline in demand for telecommunications equipment, including for our products.
Revenue for the nine months ended September 28, 2002 was attributable to four customers.
Service revenues, including maintenance, training and support totaled $4.3 million.

Gross Profit (loss). Costs of revenue consists of component costs, direct compensation
costs, warranty and other contractual obligations, inventory obsolescence costs and overhead
related to our manufacturing and engineering, finishing and installation operations. In addition,
cost of revenue includes charges associated with our restructuring plans and excess inventories.
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Gross loss decreased to $(26.7) million for the nine months ended September 28, 2002
from $(35.0) million for the nine months ended September 29, 2001. Negative gross margins are
primarily attributable to inventory write-downs of $30.3 million in the nine months ended '
September 28, 2002 and $99.2 million recorded in the nine months ended September 29, 2001.
Excluding inventory write-downs and other charges, gross profit and gross margin were $3.7
million or 28% in the nine months ended September 28, 2002 and $64.2 million or 37% in the
nine months ended September 29, 2001. Due to current competitive and economic pressures, we
expect that gross margin, excluding inventory write-downs and other charges, may continue to
decrease in the coming quarters.

Research and Development, Excluding Equity-Based Expense. Research and
development expense, excluding equity-based expense, consists primarily of salaries and related
personnel costs, test and prototype expenses related to the design of our hardware and software
products, laboratory costs and facilities costs. All costs related to product development, both
hardware and software, are recorded as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. Due
to the timing and nature of the expenses associated with research and development, significant
quarterly fluctuations may result. We believe that research and development is critical to
achieving current and future strategic product objectives.

v

Research and development expenses, excluding equity-based expense, decreased to $95.1
million for the nine months ended September 28, 2002 from $117.8 million for the nine months
ended September 29, 2001. The decrease in expenses was primarily attributable to the reduction
in prototype and lab material expenses.

Sales and Marketing, Excluding Equity-Based Expense. Sales and marketing expense,
excluding equity-based expense, consists primarily of salaries and related personnel costs,

laboratory trial systems provided to customers, trade shows, other marketing programs and travel
expenses.

Sales and marketing expense, excluding equity-based expense, decreased to $36.1 million
for the nine months ended September 28, 2002 from $43.2 million for the nine months ended
September 29, 2001. The decrease in expenses was primarily attributable to the effects of staff
reductions and decreases in professional service fees and transportation expenses.

General and Administrative, Excluding Equity-Based Expense. General and
administrative expense, excluding equity-based expense consists primarily of salaries and related
personnel costs, information systems support, recruitment expenses and facility demands
associated with establishing the proper infrastructure to support our organization. This
infrastructure consists of executive, financial, legal, information systems and other
administrative responsibilities.

General and administrative expenses, excluding equity-based expense, decreased to $24.4
million for the nine months ended September 28, 2002 from $27.2 million for the nine months
ended September 29, 2001. The decrease in expenses was primarily attributable to the effects of
cost saving initiatives including staff reductions, facility consolidations and the curtailment of
certain discretionary spending, offset, in part, by increases in professional service fees.
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Equity-based Expense. Equity-based expense consists primarily of charges associated
with employee options granted at below fair market value prior to our initial public offering.

Equity-based expense related to research and development, sales and marketing and
general and administrative functions for the nine months ended September 28, 2002 decreased to
$54.7 million from $79.3 million for the nine months ended September 29, 2001. The decrease
in equity-based expense resulted from decreases in employee headcount.

Amortization of Intangible Assets. Amortization of intangible assets relates to the
amortization of certain intangible assets with finite lives. As a result of the issuance of SFAS
No. 142, we no longer record amortization of goodwill on a straight-line basis, rather goodwill
will be tested at least annually for impairment. There may be more volatility in reported income
(loss) than previous standards because impairment losses are likely to occur irregularly and in
varying amounts.

Amortization of intangible assets expenses decreased to $12.8 million for the nine
months ended September 28, 2002 from $113.9 million for the nine months ended September 29,
2001. The decrease was primarily attributable to the discontinuation of amortization of goodwill
resulting from the acquisition of Algety Telecom S.A. that was being amortized over five years.

Interest Income, Net. Interest income, net of interest expense, decreased to $2.6 million
for the nine months ended September 28, 2002 from $19.8 million of net interest income for the
nine months ended September 29, 2001. The decrease was primarily attributable to lower
average invested cash balances, lower average returns on investments and the write down of
certain strategic investments.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since inception through September 28, 2002 we have financed our operations, capital
expenditures and working capital primarily through public and private sales of our capital stock,
borrowings under credit and lease facilities and cash generated from product sales. At
September 28, 2002, our cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments totaled $548.8
million.

Net cash used in operating activities was $97.3 million for the nine months ended
September 28, 2002 and $200.9 million for the nine months ended September 29, 2001. Cash
used in operating activities for the nine months ended September 28, 2002 was primarily
attributable to a net loss of $317.5 million, offset in part by non-cash charges including
depreciation and amortization of $38.8 million, equity-based expense of $54.7 million and
purchased research and development expense of $34.6 million associated with our acquisition of
Dorsal Networks in May 2002 and certain non-cash restructuring charges of $48.7 million. Cash
flows from operating activities were further offset by changes in operating assets and liabilities
of $43.7 million, principally a change in accounts receivable of $27.7 million.

Net cash used in investing activities was $25.2 million for the nine months ended
September 28, 2002 and $108.8 million for the nine months ended September 29, 2001. The
decrease in net cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 28, 2002
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was primarily attributable to reductions in capital expenditures offset in part with cash acquired
through our purchase of Dorsal Networks.

Net cash used in financing activities for the nine months ended September 28, 2002 was
$4.0 million, primarily attributable to the repayment of principal on notes and capital leases. Net
cash provided by financing activities for the nine months ended September 29, 2001 was $1.8
million, primarily attributable to proceeds from the exercise of warrants and employee stock
options off-set in part by proceeds from the issuance of common stock.

As of September 28, 2002 long-term restricted cash totaled $2.4 million associated with
outstanding irrevocable letters of credit relating to lease obligations for various manufacturing
and office facilities and other business arrangements. These letters of credit are collateralized by
funds in our operating account. Various portions of the letters of credit expire at the end of each
respective lease term or agreement term.

‘ On October 24, 2002, we announced that our Board of Directors has authorized a share
repurchase program under which we can acquire up to $25 million of our common stock in the
open market. The purchases will be executed at times and prices considered appropriate by us
during the next two years. The share repurchase program may be implemented at such future
date as we may determine and may be suspended at any time and from time-to-time without prior
notice. The repurchase program will be funded using our existing cash balances and the
repurchases shares may be used for corporate purposes in compliance with applicable law.

Due to current economic conditions, we have and may be required to sell our product to
future customers at lower margins or be required to provide customers with financing which
could result in reduced gross margins, extended payment terms or delayed revenue recognition,
all of which could have a negative impact on our liquidity, capital resources and results of
operations.

Our liquidity will also be dependent on our ability to manufacture and sell our products.
Changes in the timing and extent of the sale of our products will affect our liquidity, capital
resources and results of operations. We currently have a limited number of customers that could
provide substantially all of our revenues for the near future and these customers are operating in
a troubled economic environment. The loss of any of these customers, any substantial reduction
in current or anticipated orders or an inability to attract new customers, could materially
adversely affect our liquidity and results of operations. We plan to diversify our customer base
by seeking new customers both domestically and internationally.

If we experience delays or disruptions in manufacturing output or we are unable to
successfully manufacture our products and to develop alternative manufacturing sources in a
timely manner, our sales, financial position and results of operations would be adversely
affected.

We believe that our current cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and cash

generated from product sales will satisfy our expected working capital, capital expenditure and
investment requirements through at least the next twelve months.
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If cash on hand and cash generated from operations is insufficient to satisfy our liquidity
requirements, we may seek to sell additional equity or debt securities. To the extent that we raise
additional capital through the sale of equity or debt securities, the issuance of such securities
could result in dilution to our existing shareholders. If additional funds are raised through the
issuance of debt securities, the terms of such debt could impose additional restrictions on our
operations. Additional capital, if required, may not be available on acceptable terms, or at all. If
we are unable to obtain additional financing, we may be required to reduce the scope of our
planned product development and sales and marketing efforts, which could harm our business,
financial condition and operating results. Increasingly, as a result of the financial demands of
major network deployments, carriers are looking to their suppliers for financing assistance.

From time to time, we have and may continue to provide or commit to extend credit or credit
support to our customers as we consider appropriate in the course of our business.

Dorsal Networks

On May 16, 2002, we completed our acquisition of Dorsal Networks, Inc., a privately
held provider of next-generation transoceanic and regional undersea optical network solutions
for 41.8 million shares of common stock valued at approximately $91.8 million. The acquisition
was accounted for under the “purchase” method of accounting. Under the purchase method, the
purchase price of Dorsal was allocated to identifiable assets and liabilities acquired from Dorsal,
with the excess being treated as goodwill. The acquisition resulted in an in-process research and
development charge of approximately $34.6 million as well as the recognition of certain
intangible assets of $30.2 million, which will be amortized over an estimated life of five years.
In addition, the acquisition will result in goodwill of approximately $19.1 million, which will
have an indefinite life, but will be subject to periodic impairment tests. Dr. David R. Huber, our
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, owned, directly or indirectly, approximately 31 percent
of the outstanding stock of Dorsal.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The following discussion about our market risk disclosures involves forward-looking
statements. Actual results could differ materially from those projected in forward-looking
statements. We maintain instruments subject to interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate
risk. We categorize all of our market risk sensitive instruments as non-trading or other
instruments.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

We maintain a portfolio of cash equivalents and short-term investments in a variety of
securities including: commercial paper, certificates of deposit, money market funds and
government and non-government debt securities. Substantially all amounts are in money market
funds as well as high grade, short-term commercial paper and certificates of deposit, the value of
which is generally not subject to interest rate changes. We believe that a 10% increase or decline
in interest rates would not be material to our investment income or cash flows. Our long-term
debt obligations bear fixed interest rates. As such, we have minimal cash flow exposure due to
general interest rate changes associated with our long-term debt obligations.
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Foreign Rate Sensitivity

We primarily operate in the United States; however, we have expanded operations to
include research and development and sales offices in various European countries. As a result,
we may have sales in foreign currencies exposing us to foreign currency rate fluctuations. For
the nine months ended September 28, 2002, we recorded limited sales in a foreign currency. We
are exposed to the impact of foreign currency changes, associated with the Euro, for financial
instruments held by our European subsidiaries. These instruments are limited to cash and cash
equivalents and trade receivables. It is the policy of management to fund foreign operations on a
monthly basis, thus minimizing average cash and overnight investments in the Euro. At
September 28, 2002, our European subsidiaries maintained cash and cash equivalents and trade
accounts receivable of approximately (Euro) 6.2 million. We believe that a 10% increase or
decline in the Euro exchange ratio would not be material to cash and cash equivalent balances,
interest income, or cash flows from consolidated operations.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and Rule 13a—14 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1923 (“Exchange Act”) promulgated thereunder, our chief executive officer
and chief financial officer have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the date of the filing of this report (the
“Evaluation Date™) with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Based on such evaluation,
‘our chief executive officer and chief financial officer have concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective as of the Evaluation Date to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms. In addition,
a Disclosure Committee has been established consisting of key legal, financial and business unit
leaders to review the Company’s public filings and to insure accurate and timely disclosure of
required information.

Except for the establishment of a Disclosure Committee, there have been no significant
changes in the internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect our internal
controls subsequent to the date of their most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions
with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

By letter dated July 10, 2000, Ciena Corporation (“Ciena™) informed us of its belief that
there is significant correspondence between products that we offer and several U.S. patents held
by Ciena relating to optical networking systems and related dense wavelength division
multiplexing communications systems technologies. On July 19, 2000, Ciena filed a lawsuit in
the United States District Court for the District of Delaware alleging that we are willfully
infringing three of Ciena’s patents. Ciena is seeking injunctive relief, monetary damages
including treble damages, as well as costs of the lawsuit, including attorneys’ fees. On
September 8, 2000, we filed an answer to the complaint, as well as counter-claims alleging,
among other things, invalidity and/or unenforceability of the three patents in question. On
March 5, 2001, a motion was granted, allowing Ciena to amend its complaint to include
allegations that we are willfully infringing two additional patents. Although a trial date has not
been set, we believe that a trial will commence in the first quarter of 2003.

We have designed our products in an effort to respect the intellectnal property rights of
others. We intend to defend ourselves vigorously against these claims and we believe that we
will prevail in this litigation. However, there can be no assurance that we will be successful in
the defense of the litigation, and an adverse determination in the litigation could result from a
finding of infringement of only one claim of a single patent. We may consider settlement due to
the costs and uncertainties associated with litigation in general, and patent infringement litigation
in particular, and due to the fact that an adverse determination in the litigation could preclude us
from producing some of our products until we were able to implement a non-infringing
alternative design to any portion of our products to which such a determination applied. Even if
we consider settlement, there can be no assurance that we will be able to reach a settlement with
Ciena. An adverse determination in, or settlement of, the Ciena litigation could involve the
payment of significant amounts by us, or could include terms in addition to payments, such as a
redesign of some of our products, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

We believe that defense of the lawsuit may be costly and may divert the time and
attention of some members of our management. Further, Ciena and other competitors may use
the existence of the Ciena lawsuit to raise questions in customers’ and potential customers’
minds as to our ability to manufacture and deliver our products. There can be no assurance that
questions raised by Ciena and others will not disrupt our existing and prospective customer
relationships.

4

Between May 7, 2001 and June 15, 2001, nine class action lawsuits were filed in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of New York relating to our initial public
offering on behalf of all persons who purchased our stock between July 28, 2000 and the filing of
the complaints. Each of the complaints names as defendants: Corvis, our directors and officers
who signed the registration statement in connection with our initial public offering, and certain
of the underwriters that participated in our initial public offering. Our directors and officers have
since been dismissed from the case, without prejudice. The complaints allege that the
registration statement and prospectus relating to our initial public offering contained material
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misrepresentations and/or omissions in that those documents did not disclose (1) that certain of
the underwriters had solicited and received undisclosed fees and commissions and other
economic benefits from some investors in connection with the distribution of our common stock
in the initial public offering and (2) that certain of the underwriters had entered into
arrangements with some investors that were designed to distort and/or inflate the market price for
our common stock in the aftermarket following the initial public offering. The complaints ask
the court to award to members of the class the right to rescind their purchases of Corvis common
stock (or to be awarded rescissory damages if the class member has sold its Corvis stock) and

prejudgment and post-judgment interest, reasonable attorneys’ and experts witness’ fees and
other costs.

By order dated October 12, 2001, the court appointed an executive committee of six
plaintiffs’ law firms to coordinate their claims and function as lead counsel. Lead plaintiffs have
been appointed in almost all of the IPO allocation actions, including the Corvis action. On
October 17, 2001, a group of underwriter defendants moved for Judge Scheindlin’s recusal.
Judge Scheindlin denied that application. On December 13, 2001, the moving underwriter
defendants filed a petition for writ of mandamus seeking the disqualification of Judge Scheindlin
in the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit. On April 1, 2002, the Second
Circuit denied the moving underwriter defendants’ application for a writ of mandamus seeking
Judge Scheindlin’s recusal from this action. On April 19, 2002, plaintiffs filed amended
complaints in each of the actions, including the Corvis action. On May 23, 2002, a conference
was held at which the court set a briefing schedule for the filing of motions to dismiss the
amended complaints. On July 1, 2002, the underwriter defendants filed their motion to dismiss
the amended complaints. On July 15, 2002, the issuer defendants filed their motion to dismiss
the amended complaints. The briefing on the motions to dismiss has recently been completed,
and the judge heard oral arguments on the motions on November 1, 2002. No discovery has
occurred. We intend to vigorously defend ourselves.

Item 2. Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds

(a) None.
(b) None.
(c) None.

(d)  Not applicable.

Item 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities.

None.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
(@ None.

(b) None.
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(c) None.

(@ None.

Item 5. Other Information

None.

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) Certification under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

®) On August 13, 2002, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 2002 containing
the certification required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CoRVIS CORPORATION

Date: November 12, 2002 /s/ Lynn D. Anderson

Lynn D. Anderson
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer

Date: November 12, 2002 /s/ Timothy C. Dec

Timothy C. Dec
Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
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CERTIFICATE

I, David R. Huber, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Corvis Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information
included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this quarterly report;

The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures
as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this quarterly report (the
"Evaluation Date"); and

) presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation
Date;

The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which
could adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees
who have a significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this quarterly report
whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that
could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent
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evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses.

Date: November 12, 2002

/s/ David R. Huber
Name: David R. Huber
Title: Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATE

I, Lynn D. Anderson, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Corvis Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information
included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of] and for, the periods
presented in this quarterly report;

The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures
as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of/ this quarterly report (the
"Evaluation Date"); and

c) presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation
Date; :

The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which
could adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves ménagement or other employees
who have a significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this quarterly report
whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that
could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent
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evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses.

Date: November 12, 2002

/s/ Lynn D. Anderson

+ Name: Lynn D. Anderson
Title: Senior Vice President,

Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
No. Description
99.1 Certificate of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amonnts)

Jannary 1, December 30,
OPERATIONS 2000 2000
Revenue $ — $ 68,898
Gross Profit — 225,955 -
Ner Loss (71,270) (283,611
Pro Forma Net Loss (a) (66,126) : ‘(961'277)
Pro Forma Net Loss per share (a) (2.16) 0.6
FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash and Cash Equivalents 244,597 1,024,758
Inventory, Net 15,869 219,414
Total Assets 307,279 2,381,836
Stockholders’ Equity 239,626 2,186,593
OTHER INFORMATION
Working Capital $ 236,839 $1,172,040
Total Employees 355 1,452

{a) Excludes other intangible asset amortization expense, equity-based expense and purchased research and development expense.



DRIVEN BY A VISION

TOh OUR SHAREHOLDERS

THE YEAR 2000 waAS A REMARKABLE YEAR for Corvis
and the entire optical communications induscry. It was the
year in which Broadwing Communications installed Corvis
products, including the first commercial all-optical switch, in
their necwork, demonstrating that all-oprical networks can be
a commercial reality. In addition, Williams Communications
used Corvis products in its next-generation network to demon-
strate for che first time chat ultra-long discance optical crans-
mission and Raman amplification technology can be used to
deploy highly efficient, terrestrial networks. Also, we won a
large contract from Qwest Communications to deploy Corvis
products in its high-performance network. Finally, Corvis buile
state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities, expanded its research
and development capabilities, increased its global presence and
launched the most successful IPO in history for a venture-backed,
technology start-up company.

Researchers predict that communications service provider
spending for optical networking equipment will continue to
grow from $21 billion in 2000. We believe that this spending
will be targeted strategically roward technologies that enable
service providers to compete more effectively in a marketplace
that is transitioning from yesterday’s shore-distance, voice servic-
es to tomorrow's longer-distance, data-intensive services. Corvis

is uniquely positioned to deliver these technologies.

OuURrR VISION
Our vision is clear. We believe that optical technologies can
provide higher capacity, lower-cost and more efficient commu-
nication networks. This vision has been shared by engineers
and scientists for many years. In fact, Alexander Graham Bell
is said to have considered optical communications more than
a century ago, bue he discarded it in favor of elecerical com-
munications because optics technologies were not yet feasible.
But now, all-oprical necworks are feasible and we see the
dawn of a new era in communications. We see the power
of light transporting information over thousands of miles,
uninhibited by the electrical equipment that has congested
communication necworks in the past. We see our customers
deploying necworks that eliminate excess equipment,
enabling them to deliver innovative services at a fraction of

today’s costs.

THE CUSTOMERS' NEED

In the early 1990s, I, along with many dedicated engineers and
scientists in the industry, developed the first commercial dense
wavelength division multiplexing (DWDM) systems, which
began to deliver on the promise of optical technology. DWDM
systems allow information to be transmitted using mulciple col-
ors of light on a single fiber between electrical switches in a net-
work. DWDM systems dramatically increased the transmission
capacity and lowered the cost of communications at a time when
data-intensive applications and the Internet were just taking off.

However, DWDM systems only began to address the chal-
lenges faced by the industry. These DWDM systems were
designed for voice traffic, cransmitting information up to 360
miles. While these systems were a significant improvement,
the growth in the demand for capacity is driven by data traffic,
which researchers indicare must be transmitted in excess of
1,400 miles on average chrough the networks and across mul-
tiple fiber links. As a result, service providers were forced to
install systems that require excess signal processing equipment
to accommodate the long-distance requirements of these new
data demands,

In addirtion, because long-distance dara traffic has to travel
over multiple links, it became necessary for service providers to
install excess electrical signal processing equipment and electri-
cal switches merely to allow data traffic to continue onto the
next link. The burden of operationally supporting all of this
excess equipment in the network has made it difficult for service
providers to scale their networks to meet the growing demand

for longer distance data services.

THE TECHNDLOGY

We started Corvis with our vision that optical technology
could be used to eliminate this excess equipment from com-
munication necworks. Our customers would then be able to
provide cost-effective, innovative services required for dara-
intensive applications and grow cheir networks and business
unencumbered by the electrical {egacy of voice traffic net-
works. To accommodate data traffic in the network without
excess equipment, ultra-long-distance all-optical cransmission
was required. Also, to accommodate the flow of data craffic

across multiple fiber links, all-optical switching had to replace



“THE ALL-OPTICAL NETWORK IS5 NOT MERELY AN IMPROVEMENT OVER

ELECTRICAL NETWORKS, BUT A CONVERGENCE OF NEXT-GENERATION

TECHNOLOGIES THAT ENABLE NETWORKING TO BE VIEWED IN AN

ENTIRELY NEW LIGHT.”

electrical swicching and be integrated with che transmission
equipment. In addicion, it was necessary to provide an inte-
grated network management system that could control and
configure the network in a flexible manner. In summary, we
aimed to pur together che technology that would make the
vision of an intelligent, all-optical network a reality.

After three years of incredibly hard work by a dedicated team
of talented people, Corvis has delivered the world’s first com-
mercial all-optical necwork, the CorWave ON, and now stands
alone as the only company offering networks designed for the
communication industry’s present and fucure traffic demands.
We believe, and others are beginning to recognize, that
DWDM was just the beginning of the optical communications
era and that electrical networks patched togecher with DWDM
systems are vestiges of the past.

The all-oprical necwork is not merely an improvement over
electrical networks, but a convergence of next-generation tech-
nologies that enable networking to be viewed in an entirely
new light. Our all-oprtical switch not only eliminates excess
electrical signal processing and switching equipment from the
network, bur also provides far greacer switching capacities. In
doing so, the all-oprical switch consumes only a fraction of the
electrical power, real estate and overall operational budget
consumed by electrical switches. Our optical network gate-
ways, optical amplifiers and optical add/drop multiplexers
allow light to travel much longer distances ac higher capacities
and lower costs. These technologies also eliminate excess
equipment and its associated operational costs from our cus-
tomers’ networks and enables them to tailor their network
capacity to their service demands. In addition, our network
management software enables our customers to provision
services rapidly without costly, time-consuming installation

trips for excess equipment.

THE FUTURE

The future is bright for technologies such as ours, that make
communications networks more efficient, scalable and cost-
effective. Recently, we announced two new product lines, the
CorWave LR and CorWave XL/XF, that have been designed to
provide high capacity transmission and eliminate excess equip-

ment in regional nerworks.

We believe we are the only company offering a full suite of

optical networking products designed for the present and
future craffic patterns of our customers. In addition, we plan to
continue to enhance our current product lines, as well as expand
our product offering.

In che near term, we see the growth of service provider
spending slowing and competition among service providers
intensifying. We believe Corvis is well-positioned with prod-
ucts chat enable our customers to compete by delivering inno-
vative services cost-effectively and efficiencly.

In looking back at 2000, we express our sincere thanks to
our customers, our shareholders, our suppliers and our employ-
ees for contributing to a successful year. Your commitment and
support have brought our vision to a commercial reality.

The year 2001 should prove to be another exciting year for
Corvis and the communications industry. We look forward to

sharing our progress with you over the next year.

DaviD R. HUBER
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
MARCH 30, 2001
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Corvis CORWAVE PRODUCTS

THE CORWAVE ON IS A FULLY-INTEGRATED SUITE OF OPTICAL NETWORKING PROD-
LUCTS THAT ENABLE SERVICE PROVIDERS TO BUILD INTELLIGENT, ALL-OPTICAL
MESH NETWORKS. THE DIAGRAM TO THE RIGHT ILLUSTRATES HOW INFORMATION
CAN BE TRANSMITTED FROM LOS ANGELES THROUGH DENVER TO CHICAGQO USING
COoRVIS' CORWAVE ON PRODUCTS. THE CORWAVE ON SUITE INCLUDES OPTICAL
NETWORK GATEWAYS, OPTICAL AMPLIFIERS, OPTICAL ADD/DROP MULTIPLEXERS
AND OPTICAL SWITOHES, WHICH ARE INTEGRATED WITH THE CORMANAGER
NETWORK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AND CAN BE DEPLOYED WITH OUR OFTICAL
PROTECTOR.

OPTICAL NETWORK GATEWAY (ONBG)

Like a highway's on and off ramps, the Oprtical Network Gateway provides access to an all-oprical network. The
Optical Network Gateway currently provides up to 400 gigabits per second in each direction that can be trans-
mitted up to 3,200 kilometers, or approximately 2,000 miles, without electronic regeneracion over diverse fiber

types. Capacity can be added incrementally by inserting transmicters and receivers into che Optical Network
Gateway. Our Oprical Network Gateway can be integrated with our Oprical Add/Drop Muoltiplexers and Oprical
Switches, which can provide flexible traffic management, high network efficiency and rapid restoration of services.

OPTICAL AMPLIFIER (OA)

The Optical Amplifier employs various amplification technologies to support high-capacity, ultra-long trans-

mission over diverse fiber types. Our Raman amplification technologies enable us to tailor our amplifiers to our
customer’s fiber plant and establish ultra-long transmission patchs through che network. Our Optical Amplifiers
currently support up to 400 gigabits per second in each direction and transmission discances of up to 3,200
kilometers, or approximately 2,000 miles, without electrical regeneration.

DOPTIiCAL ADD/DROP MULTIPLEXER (OADM)

The Optical Add/Drop Multiplexer enables traffic to enter and exit the network at a network interseccion with-

out requiring an oprical-to-electrical-to-oprical conversion of all craffic passing through the intersection. The
Optical Add/Drop Multiplexer can be integrated with the Optical Network Gateway to allow traffic to enter or
exit the necwork, up to the full capacity of each fiber in each direction, at each network intersection.

OpPTICAL SWITCH (OS)

The Optical Swicch functions like a highway's cloverleaf, enabling traffic to move becween highways without

exiting. The Optical Switch provisions routes and optically swicches up to 2.4 terabits per second of traffic
between fibers to provision services, reconfigure the network and rescore services. The Oprical Swicch optically
interconnects multiple fibers to switch traffic between one or more fibers entirely in the optical domain. In
addition, the Optical Switch can be integrated with the Oprical Network Gateway to allow traffic to enter or
exit the fibers.

OFPTICAL PROTECTOR (OP)

The Optical Protector provides optical layer protection and restoration to ensure necwork reliability against
major failures such as fiber cuts and equipment failures. The Optical Protector meets the industry benchmark
of 50 milliseconds protection switch time to ensure carrier-grade performance. The Optical Protector also pro-
vides bit rate-transparent and protocol-independent open interfaces, which support 2.5 and 10 gigabits per sec-
ond applications, and SONET/SDH, Ethernet, IP and ATM protocol applications. The Optical Protector can be
deployed with CorWave ON, CorWave LR, CorWave XL/XF systems, as well as interoperate with existing ven-
dor equipment deployed in a service provider's network.
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SOFTWARE PRODUCTS

CORMANAGER NETWORK
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The CorManager Network Management
System includes four applications — Corvis
Wave Planner, Corvis Provisioning Tool,
Corvis Network Manager, Corvis Element
Interface — that help service providers effi-
ciently and quickly plan, provision and
manage their network traffic. By incegrat-
ing its hardware and software designs,
Corvis gives service providers the ability to
provision services with the "point and
click” of a mouse, as opposed to taking
many months to plan and insrall addition-
al equipment in the necwork.

CORVIS WAVE PLANNER
(CWP)

The Corvis Wave Planner enables service
providers to plan the deployment of trans-
mission and switching equipment in the
network using current and future traffic
patterns. In addition, service providers can
evaluate and plan the redeployment of
deployed network capacity to meet evolv-
ing capacity demands in the necwork.

CORVIS PROVISIONING TOOL
(CPT)
The Corvis Provisioning Tool enables serv-

ice providers to verify their network config-

uration and to provision their network
traffic with a “point and click” of a mouse.

COorvis NETWORK MANAGER
(CNM)

The Corvis Network Manager enables a
comprehensive view of the network, as well
as fault, configuration, performance and
security management in the necwork.

CoORvVIs ELEMENT INTERFAGE
(CED

The Corvis Element Interface provides
detailed views of the Corvis products
either using the Corvis Nerwork Manager
or by direct access to the Corvis product.

NEwW PRODUCTS

CorRWavE LR

The CorWave LR system provides up

to 3.2 terabits per second in each direc-
tion that can be transmitred up to 2,000
kilometers, or approximately 1,240
miles, without electrical regeneration
over diverse fiber cypes. Capacity can be
added incrementally by inserting trans-
mitters and receivers into the syscem.
The CorWave LR system provides for
transmission of 320 10 gigabits per sec-
ond channels in each direction.

CorRWAVE XL/XF

The CorWave XL/XF system provides up
to 800 gigabits per second in each direc-
tion that can be transmicted up to 350
kilometers, or approximately 220 miles,
without the use of in-line amplificarion
equipment (i.e., repeaterless). Capacity
can be added incrementally by inserting

transmitters and receivers inco the system.

CORVIS AT A GLANCE

CoRvIS CORPORATION isthe

first company to make the all-optical ‘net-
work a commercial reality. The company’s
solutions enable telecommunications service
providers to construct manageable optical
nerworks that will accommodate the contin-:
uing growth of Internet, video, voice and: -
other data traffic.

EM PLOYEES
As of December 30, 2000, Corvis employed
1,452  peaple, of whom 675 were primarily

_ engaged in manufacruring, 484 in research

and development dctivities and 293in
sales, marketing, customer service and-sup-

- port and ‘general administrative services;

LOCATIONS
Corporate headquarters, research and:-

relopment and manufaceuring facilicies

. are based in Columbia; Maryland:
3 Manufacturmg and research and develop-
' ~‘ment facilities are. located in: Lannion;

;;France, and Quebec, Canada. Customer

service facilities are lgcated in Columbia,

: ykMé;ryland, ‘and Lannion; France.

CUSTOMERS ,
Telecommunications service: prowders
mcludmg Broadwing - Communications,
Williams Communications and Qwest
Communications Int_evrv_na;ibnal, Inc

MARKET LEADERSHIP

Corvis’ all- optical networking solutions,
ultra-hxgh ~capacity, :long-reach solunons
and repeaterless solutlons enable cus-
tomers. to: eliminate excessive equxpment

“and operatlonal Costs throughout ”hexr
: backbone networks. :







“0OUR GOAL AT CORVIS IS TO PROVIDE THE CUSTOMER
WITH SUPERIOR SERVICE. WE HAVE DEDICATED TEAMS
THAT PROVIDE KNOWLEDGEABLE, TAILORED AND
RESPONSIVE SERVICE TO EACH CUSTOMER TO

ACHIEVE THIS GOAL.”

VICE PRESIDENT, CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

CORVIS
SWITCHING
PRODUCTS

CUSTOMER
SATISFACTION IS
AN IMPERATIVE
AT COrRvIs

KRISTINE M. BOSCHERT

HE YEAR ZO00 WAS EXHILARATING FOR DOrvisS DORPORATION as we worked
wich Broadwing Communications to enable che world’s first commercial all-oprical network. The
Austin-based company deployed our full suite of CorWave products, including the first commer-
cially available all-optical swicch. During 2000, Broadwing signed a $200-million, rwo-year
agreement with Corvis. Employees of Corvis who designed, built and deployed products to

Broadwing were particularly excited to witness the debut of all-optical switching products:

Corvis OPTiIcAL SwiTcH: In cthe simplest terms, the all-oprical swiech provides higher
capacity switching art a lower cost than electrical switches. The Corvis Oprical Switch directs opi-
cal signals among fibers without performing electrical conversions, thereby eliminating excess
electrical signal processing and switching equipment, while providing unmatched flexibilicy for
addressing a wide range of traffic requirements. The Corvis Optical Switch not only outperforms
electrical switches in terms of capacity, bur also consumes only a fraction of che electrical power,

real estate and overall operational budget dedicated to electrical switches.

Coavis OrTicat AposDropr MuLTirLexer: The Corvis Optical Add/Drop Multiplexer,
or OADM as it is called, allows optical signals to be selectively added and dropped wichout con-
verting every optical signal into an electrical signal. The OADM accommodates local and long-

distance traffic, rapid service provisioning and reduced costs, thereby enhancing the flexibility of

the necwork.

According to Kristine Boschere, Vice President, Customer Satisfaction, keeping a customer satis-
fied means providing fast and efficient quality service. Kristine has built a team thar is focused on
eliminating both the frustration and omissions she experienced at her previous job as a buyer of
network equipment. She knows from personal experience: “Customer satisfaction and cuscomer
service go hand in hand.” So, it's not unusual for Kristine to pull together within minuces individ-

uals of all levels to find a solution to a customer's particular needs.
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The Corvis CorManager
software team works
closely with customers to
efficiently plan and

manage their networks.
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By leveraging its

R&D expertise,

Coruvis can continue to
deliver cutting-edge
network performance. ¥

THE BOTTOM LINE

THE CORE OPTICAL SWITCHING MARKET

“Corvis’ delivery of the
industry’s first all-oprical
switch has made it possible for us
to become cthe first provider to actually

switch light and create the first generation of lighrwave services to our
customers,” says Rick Ellenberger, Broadwing President and CEO,
“Corvis provides a best-of-breed solution that enables carriers to build
the next-generation of broadband networks that delivers speed and

capacity in the most cost-effective manner.”

the deployment of the
all-optical switch,

(dollars in billions)

.
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“THE CORVIS EXPERIENCE HAS BEEN GREAT.
IT'S IMPORTANT TO ME TO WORK FOR A HIGH-TECH

COMPANY THAT CARES ABOUT QUALITY.”

CDORVIS PRODUCTS
PROVIDE WHAT
CUSTOMERS

NEED MOST

CORvVIS
TRANSPFPORT
PRODUCTS

LORETTA JEFFERSON
MANUFACTURING INSPECTOR

N EXDITING OFPORTUNITY FOR GCORvVIS has been to work wich Williams
Communications, a leader in providing broadband services. The Tulsa-based telecom provider
completed its 33,000-mile U.S. necwork in 2000 and is looking to Corvis to add capacity

cost-effectively.

In January 2001, Williams completed an excensive field trial of Corvis’ products and extended
its contract with the company to a multi-year, $300-million agreement. The field trial included
the induscry’s longest all-optical transmission on a terrestrial nerwork traveling over 3,800 miles,

or 6,400 kilometers, which is more than the distance from Boston to San Diego.

“The deployment of Corvis' all-optical technology will reduce our time-to-market in offering
new optical services to our customers and allow them to reap the benefits of revolutionary rech-
nology without significant capital expense,” says Jeff Storey, Senior Vice President and Chief

Operations Officer for Williams Communications' network unit.

Ultra-long-haul transport is important to telecom providers like Williams because roughly 80
percent of all network craffic is sent over long distances. Corvis' ultra-long-haul transport prod-

ucts include the Optical Network Gateway and Optical Amplifier:

Carvis OpPTicaL NeTwDRrK GEaTeway: This produce provides access to an all-optical net-
work from other networks. The Optical Network Gateway currently provides up to 400 gigabits
per second in each direction chat can be transmicted up to 3,200 kilometers withour eleceronic

regeneration over diverse fiber types. Our Optical Network Gateway can be integrated with our

Optical Add/Drop Multiplexer and Optical Switch to provide flexible access to the nerwork.

Corvis OpTiIcaL AmeLiFier: This product supports error-free transmission up to 3,200
kilometers, without electronic regeneration over a variety of fiber types. The Corvis Optical
Amplifiers employ Raman amplification technology that allows them to be tailored to a cus-

tomer's fiber plant to enable ultra-long distance transmission in cheir network.



4 Corvis’ world-class
R&D group is delivering
rapid, record-breaking
all-optical performance.

Employees like Loretra Jefferson are crucial to
building high-performance products for customers
like Williams. Lorecta performs quality assurance test-
ing of the Oprical Network Gateway circuit boards. Her

experience at various stages of the manufacturing cycle enables
her and her team to perform the detailed inspections necessary
to maintain the high quality standards for Corvis products. In-
house manufacturing is strategic, giving Corvis a compertitive

advantage in terms of quality control and time to marker.

THE BoTToM LINE “We are commicted to finding technologies, such as che Corvis

equipment, that assure our customers the same high level of
Corvis technicians are

trained to rapidly
deploy Corvis solutions.

network reliability they have come to expect from Williams,”

says Jeff Storey.

v

THE NORTH AMERICAN OPTICAL TRANSPORT
EQUIPMENT MARKET
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Corvis has scaled
aperations 1o meet the
demands of building
nationwide all-

optical networks.
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“1 JOINED CORVIS BECAUSE | WAS VERY IMPRESSED
WITH GCORVIS' TECHNIGCAL VISION AND FELT LIKE
| WOULD BE PARTIGCIPATING IN THE INFORMATION

REVOLUTION. WE'RE WORKING ON CONCEPTS TO

MAKE BANDWIDTH

CORVIS PRODULGCTS
ARE BASED ON
EXTENSIVE R&D

CORVIS EXTENDS
NEXT-GENERATION
OPTICAL NETWORKING

ALMOST INFINITE.”

DRrR. STEPHEN GRrRUBB
EXECUTIVE ENGINEER

leader in broadband Internet communicacions. In 2000, Qwest signed a $150-million, multi-year

agreement with Corvis for next-generation transmission equipment.

Customers like Qwest are relying on companies like Corvis to develop leading-edge, next genera-
tion technologies to build more efficient networks. Therefore, research and development is eriti-
cal. Corvis has 484 people working in research and development. Many are recognized leaders in
their fields; many have Ph.Ds. The company has R&D facilities in Columbia, Maryland, as well as

in Lannion, France, and Quebec, Canada.

“Although we are researchers working on cutting-edge technologies, we always think of ourselves
as engineers,” says Dr. Stephen Grubb, “That title implies executing and ensuring that products

get to market quickly.”

Such was the case wicth the CorWave ON all-optical products that Corvis deployed last year. “It
went from a concept prototype to a new architecture commercially deployed in a national network

in less than two years—lightning speed,” Stephen says.

Corvis will continue to invest in marker-driven R&D initiatives to expand the CorWave product
family. Recently, we announced two new product lines, the CorWave LR and the CorWave
XL/XEF, that have been designed to provide high-capacity transmission and eliminate excess signal

processing equipment in regional networks.

The CorWave LR system provides up to 3.2 terabits per second in each direction that can be
transmitted up to 2,000 kilometers withour electrical regeneration over diverse fiber types.
The CorWave LR system provides for 10 gigabits per second transmission of 320 channels in

each direction.

Our CorWave XL products for terrestrial links and CorWave XF products for undersea festoon
links will enable service providers to deploy high-capacity, repeaterless systems rhat address a
broader range of applications in existing networks and to develop new market opportunities. The
CorWave XL/XF products will enable service providers to transmic up to 800 gigabits per sec-

ond in each direction for distances up to 350 kilometers wichout the use of in-line amplification




Corvis Algety
employees are always
pushing limits of

optical transmission

technologies in order
to drive efficiencies to
the end customer.



Corvis Algety is »
driving new industry
standards with its
multi-terabit soliton

transport technologies.

equipment (also referred to
as a repeaterless link). The elimi-

nation of in-line amplification equipment in

regional networks curs operational costs dramatically, speeds regional
network deployment and helps service providers to generace revenue

more rapidly.

THE BOTTOM LINE “Corvis is a good fit for us because their optical equipment will help
us meet our customers’ demands,” said Mike Perusse, Qwest’s Senior
Vice President of Network Engineering. “Corvis' unique combination of
scalability and forward-looking, all-optical architecture will support Qwest's
cost-effective necwork and help meet the strong demand for broadband

applications and services.”

Corvis has successfully scaled

INTERNET BACKBONE TRAFFIC the company to deploy complete
nationwide networks.

(eapacity in kTeraBytes/month)
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Period from June 2, 1997

Year Ended

(Amounts in thousands. except per share amonnts) (inception) to December 31, December 31, January 1, December 30,
STATEMENT Of OPERATIONS DATA: 1997 1998 2000 2000
Revenue $ - 3 - ] - $ 68,898
Cost of revenue - - - 42,943
Gross profit — - - 25,955
Operating expenses:
Research and development, excluding
equity-based expense 249 15,746 41,565 88,874
Sales and marketing, excluding equity-based expense - 167 3,422 : 50,871
General and administrative, excluding equity-based expense 288 3,190 18,993 31,127
Equity-based expense: o
Research and development - - 126 28,050
Sales and marketing - - 4,845 52,417
. General and administrative - - - 17,891
Amortization of intangible assets - - 173 46,746
Purchased research and development - - — 42,230
Total operating expenses 537 19,103 69,124 338,206
Operarting loss (537) (19,103) (69,124) . (312,251)
Interest income (expense), net 43 (357) 2,146y - :28;640_
Net loss $  (494) $ (19,460) $ (71,270) § (283,611)
Basic and diluted ner loss per common share $ (0.02) $  (0.86) 3 (2.33) $ (1:80)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 21,600 22,638 30,599 : ’157",3‘49
December 31, December 31, January 1, December 30,
BALANCE SHEET DATA: 1997 1998 2000 2000
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,620 $ 4,041 $ 244,597 $ 1;024,75’8‘
Working capital 1,552 (1,474) 236,839 1;172,040
Total assecs 2,652 8,488 307,279 2,381,836
Notes payable and capital lease obligations, net of current portion - 5,800 38,771 45,909
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) 2,506 (2,968) 239,626 2,186,593
CoMMON STOCK MARKET DATA:
Price Range
Fiscal Year 2000 Quarters High Low
First - -
Second - -
Third $ 108.06 $ 61.05
Fourth 70.56 19.50




You should read the following discussion and analysis along with
our consolidated financial statements and the notes to those stace-
ments included elsewhere in this report. This discussion contains
forward-looking statements chat involve risks and uncertainties.
Our acrual resulcs could differ marterially from those anticipated in
the forward-looking statements as a result of various factors includ-
ing the risks discussed in "Factors That May Affect Qur Future
Resules” below.

OVERVIEW

We design, manufaccure and market high performance optical
communications systems chat lower the overall cost of network
ownership for service providers. Our all-oprical products enable

a fundamental shift in the design and efficiency of backbone nec-
works by allowing for the transmission, switching and manage-
ment of communications traffic entirely in the optical domain.
Our products enable the creation of all-oprical backbone networks
that support transmission over long distances and eliminate the
need for expensive and bandwidch-limiting electrical regeneration
and switching equipment.

From our inception on June 2, 1997 uncil July 2000, we were
a development stage company. Our operating activities consisted
primarily of research and development, product design, manufac-
turing and testing. We also recruited and crained our administra-
tive, financial, marketing and customer support organization and
established a direct sales force.

We currently have three cuscomers, Broadwing, Williams
Communications and Qwest. During the first half of 2000, we
shipped, installed and activated laboratory ctrial systems and field
trial systems for boch Broadwing and Williams Communications
to allow for cuscomer testing and inspection. In July 2000, we
successfully completed the Broadwing Communications field trial
and Broadwing agreed to purchase $200 million of our products
and services over a two-year period. Throughout the remainder of
2000, we began the deploymenc of both transmission and switch-
ing equipment to Broadwing and builc up finished goods inven-
tory necessary to support custcomer orders in early 2001.

In January 2001, the field crial system provided ro Williams
Communications was accepted and Williams Communications
agreed to purchase up to $300 million of our products and services
over a multi-year period.

Qwest has agreed to purchase $150 million of our products,
some of which are currencly under development, over a two-year
period beginning on the date chac the products meet agreed-upon
technical requirements. Qwest's purchase obligations are subject to
our products being competitively priced and our ability to make
products that meet agreed-upon technical requirements by the end
of 2001.

We are in discussions with other service providers to begin field
trials and to purchase our products and services.

ReveNUE. Revenue from product sales is recognized upon exe-
cution of a contract and the completion of all delivery obligations,
provided that there are no uncertainties regarding customer
acceptance and collectibility is deemed probable. If uncerwinties
exist, revenue is recognized when such uncertainties are resolved.
Costs of revenues include the costs of manufacturing the Com-
pany’s products and other costs associated with warranty and other

contraccual obligations, inventory obsolescence costs and overhead
related ro che Company’s manufacturing, engineering, finishing
and installation operations. Warranty reserves are determined
based upon actual warranty cost experience, estimates of compo-
nenc failure rates and managemenc’s induscry experience. Due

to our limited customer base, significant quarterly flucruations in
revenue may result.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOFPMENT, EXCLUDING
EQUITY-BASED EXPENSE. Research and development,
excluding equity-based expense consists primarily of salaries and
relaced personnel costs, test and prototype expenses relaced to che
design of our hardware and sofcware produces, laboratory unics and
facilities costs. All costs related to product development, both
hardware and software, are recorded as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred. Due to the timing and nature of cthe expenses
associared with this process, significant quarcterly fluctuacions may
result. We believe that research and development is critical in
achieving current and future strategic product objectives. We expect
that research and development expenses will concinue to increase
in the future as we continue to enhance our existing products and
explore new or complementary technologies, and pursue various
cost reduction strategies.

S[ALES AND MARKETING, EXBLUDING EQUITY-
BAsED EXPENSE. Sales and marketing, excluding equiry-
based expense consists primarily of salaries and related personnel
costs, laboratory trial syscems provided to cuscomers, trade shows,
other marketing programs and travel expenses. We intend to con-
tinue to adjust our sales operations in order to increase markec
awareness and acceprance of our products. We also expecr to initi-
are additional marketing programs to support our current prod-
ucts. Our success depends on establishing and maintaining key
customer relationships. In order to achieve this objective, we expect
to expand our customer service and support organization. We
anticipate that our sales and marketing expenses will continue to
increase in che future, but at lower rates than seen in prior periods.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE, EXCLUDING EQUITY-
BaseEp ExXPENSE. General and administrative, excluding
equity-based expense consists primarily of salaries and related per-
sonnel costs, information systems support, recruitment expenses
and facilicy demands associated with establishing the proper
infrastructure to support our organization. This infrastrucrure con-
sists of executive, financial, legal, informarion systems and other
administrative responsibilities. We anticipate that these costs will
continue to increase in the future, but at lower rates than seen in
prior periods.

Since our inception, we have incurred significant losses, and as
of December 30, 2000, we had an accumulated deficic of $374.8
million. We do not expect to be cash flow positive before at least
2002. We have a lengthy sales cycle for our products and accord-
ingly expect to incur significant research and development, sales
and marketing and general and administracive expenses before we
realize related revenue. As a result, we will need to generace sig-
nificanc revenue to achieve and maintain proficability.

During 1999, we changed our accounting reporting period from
a calendar year-end to a manufacturing 52- or 53-week fiscal year-
end, ending on the Saturday closest to December 31 in each year.



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended December 30, 2000 compared to year ended
January 1, 2000

ReveNue. Revenue increased to $68.9 million for che fiscal
year ended December 30, 2000 from zero for the fiscal year ended
January 1, 2000. The increase in revenue is accribucable to che
acceprance of a field crial system and the subsequent sale of net-
wark hardware and software to Broadwing under a $§200 million
two-year purchase agreement.

Bross ProriT. Costs of revenue consists of component costs,
direct compensation costs, warranty and other contractual obliga-
rions, inventory obsolescence costs and overhead related to our
manufacturing and engineering, finishing and installation opera-
cions. Gross profit was $26.0 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 30, 2000. Gross margin as a percentage of revenues was 37.7%.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, EXCLUDING
EQuiTy-BaseEn ExpreNseE. Research and development ex-
penses, excluding equity-based expense, increased to $88.9 million
for the year ended December 30, 2000 from $41.6 million for the
year ended January 1, 2000. The increase in expenses was primari-
ly areriburable o significant increases in headcounct and increased
expenses associated with prototype development and laboratory
macerials.

SALES AND MARKETING, EXCLUDING EQuUiTY-
BaseD EXPENSE. Sales and markering expenses, excluding
equity-based expense, increased to $30.9 million for the year
ended December 30, 2000 from $3.4 million for the year ended
January 1, 2000. The increase in expenses was primarily accribura-
ble co significanc increases in headcount, increases in promotional
and trade show activities and expenses related to laboratory systems
provided to current and potential cuscomers.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE, EXCLUDING
EQuITY-BaseDd ExpeNsEeE. General and adminiseracive ex-
penses increased to $31.1 million for the year ended December 30,
2000 from $19.0 million for the year ended January 1, 2000. The
increase in expenses was primarily attributable to increases in
salaries and related benefits due to the hiring of additional person-
nel and increased expenses incurred during the development of
manufacturing processes.

EQUITY-BASED EXPENSE. Equity-based expense related to
research and development, sales and marketing and general and
administrarive functions for the year ended December 30, 2000
increased to $98.4 million from $5.0 million in the year ended
January 1, 2000. The increase in equity-based compensation
resulted from options granted with exercise prices below fair value
ac che date of granc as well as expenses recognized upon the waiv-
ing of certain forfeiture provisions contained in warrants granted
to certain customers.

AMORTIZATION OF INTANGISLE ASSETS. Amortization
of intangible assers expenses increased to $46.7 million for the
year ended December 30, 2000 from $0.2 million for the year
ended January 1, 2000. The increase was primarily actributable to
the amortization of intangibles resulting from our recent acquisi-
tion of Algety Telecom S.A., which resulted in approximarely
$876.7 million in goodwill that is being amortized over five years.

INTEREST INCOME (EXPENSE), NET. Interest income,
nec of incerest expense, increased to $28.6 million for the year
ended December 30, 2000 from $2.1 million of net interest
expense for the year ended January 1, 2000. The increase was pri-
marily ateributable to higher invested cash balances from the pro-
ceeds of the initial public offering and other private placements,
offset in part by interest incurred under various credit facilirties.

Year ended January 1, 2000 compared to year ended
December 31, 1998

ReveNue. We recognized no revenue in eicher period.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, EXCLUDING
EQUITY-BaseED ExpeNsSE. Research and development
expenses, excluding equity-based expense, increased to $41.6 mil-
lion for the year ended January 1, 2000 from $15.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 1998. The increase in expenses was pri-
marily atcribucable to salaries and related benefits due to the hir-
ing of addicional personnel, prototype and laboratory materials,
facilities coscs and informacion systems support costs.

SALES AND MARKETING, EXCLUDING EQUITY-
BaseDp ExFeNSE. Sales and markecing expenses, excluding
equity-based expense, increased to $3.4 million for che year

ended January 1, 2000 from $0.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 1998. The increase in expenses was primarily actrib-
utable to salaries and related benefits due to the hiring of addicion-
al personnel, promotional and trade show expenses.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE, EXCLUDING
EnuiTy-Basen ExPeENSE. General and adminiscrative ex-
penses, excluding equicy-based expense, increased to $19.0 million
for the year ended January 1, 2000 from $3.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 1998. The increase in expenses was primarily
arcributable co professional fees, personnel and related benefits

due to the hiring of additional personnel and information system
SUPPOIT COSS. . -

EQUITY-BASED ExPENSE. Equity-based expense relaced

to research and development and sales and marketing for the year
ended January 1, 2000 increased to $5.0 million from zero in the
year ended December 31, 1998. The increase in equity-based com-
pensation resulted from expenses recognized upon che waiving of
certain forfeiture provisions contained in warrants granced co cer-
tain cuscomers as well as options granced wich exercise prices
below fair value at the date of grant.

AMORTIZATION OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS. Amortization
of intangible assets expenses increased to $0.2 million for the year
ended January 1, 2000 from zero for the year ended December 31,
1998. The increase was primarily actributable to amortization
associated with our acquisition of Kromafbre, Inc.

INTEREST INCOME (EXPENSE), NET. Interest expense,
net of interest income, increased to $2.1 million for the year ended
January 1, 2000 from $0.4 million for the year ended December
31, 1998. Interest expense increased for the year ended January 1,
2000 as a result of increased borrowings under new and existing
credit facilicies, offset in parc by an increase in interest income
primarily aceributable to proceeds from private placements.



LiQuinpiTy AnD CAPITAL RESOURCES

Since inception through December 30, 2000, we have financed our
operations, capital expenditures and working capital primarily
through public and private sales of our capital stock, borrowings
under credit and lease facilicies and cash generated from opera-
rions. At December 30, 2000, our cash and cash equivalents
totaled $1,024.8 million.

Net cash used in operating activities was $235.0 million,
$71.8 million and $16.2 million for the years ended December 30,
2000, January 1, 2000 and December 31, 1998, respectively.

Cash used in operating activities for the year ended December 30,
2000 was primarily atcributable to a net loss of $283.6 million
and $195.4 million of inventory increases, partially offsec by

an increase in accounts payable of $79.7 million and non-cash
expense items including purchased research and development of
842.2 million and equicy-based expense of $98.4 million.

Net cash used in investing activities for che years ended Decem-
ber 30, 2000, January 1, 2000 and December 31, 1998 was
$68.2 million, $14.0 million and $1.7 million, respectively. The
increase in net cash used in investing activities for the year ended
December 30, 2000 was primarily arcriburable to purchases of
manufacturing and ctest equipment, information systems equip-
ment and office equipment, partially offset by cash acquired in the
Algety purchase. We are currently expanding our production and
research facilities and have executed agreements with our existing
landlords to build-out and improve additional facilicies.

Nert cash provided by financing activicies for the year ended
December 30, 2000 was $1,084.3 million, primarily accribucable
to proceeds from our initial public offering and other private place-
ments. Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended
January 1, 2000 was $326.3 million, primarily attributable co pri-
vate placements, and the issuance of notes payable, offsec in part
by the payment of debt and an increase in restricted cash. Nec cash
provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31,
1998 was $20.4 million, primarily aceriburable o private place-
ments and the proceeds from the issuance of notes payable.

As of December 30, 2000, long-term restricted cash tocaled
$46.3 million, of which $43.5 million represents cash held as secu-
rity under a note payable. This restriction will be released upon
repaymenc of the note thac is due in November 2002. In addicion,
as of December 30, 2000, we had oucstanding irrevocable leccers
of credit aggregaring $2.8 million relating to lease obligations for
various manufaccuring and office facilicies and other business
arrangemencs. These lecters of credit are collateralized by funds in
our operating account. Various portions of the lecters of credic
expire at the end of each respective lease term or agreement cerm.

We conrinue to evaluate our need to acquire additional produc-
tion and administrative facilities to accommodate our expanding
operations. We expect our expenditures associated with chis expan-
sion to be significant over the next several years. In addition, we
have purchased and hold certain critical components in anticipa-
tion of future orders. A significant price increase or a shortage of
these parts could adversely affect our liquidity, capital resources
and results of operations.

Due to competitive economic conditions pressures, we may be
required to sell our product to future customers at lower margins
or be required to provide customers with financing which could
result in reduced gross margins, extended payment terms or
delayed revenue recognition, all of which could have a negative
impact on our liquidity, capital resources and resulcs of operations.

Our liquidity will also be dependent on our ability to manufac-
ture and sell our products. Changes in the timing and extent of
the sale of our products will affect our liquidity, capital resources
and resules of operations. We currently have three customers chac
could provide substancially all of our revenues for che near furure.

The loss of any of these customers, any substantial reduction

in currenc or anticipated orders or an inability to atcrace new
customers, could macerially adversely affect our liquidicy and
results of operations. We plan co diversify our cuscomer base by
seeking new customers boch domestically and internationally.

If cash on hand and cash generated from operations is insuffi-
cient to satisfy our liquidity requirements, we may seek to sell
additional equity or debt securities. To the extent chat we raise
additional capital through cthe sale of equity or debt securities, the
issuance of such securities could resulc in dilucion to our existing
shareholders. If additional funds are raised chrough the issuance of
debe securities, the terms of such debe could impose addicional
rescrictions on our operations. Additional capical, if required, may
not be available on acceprable terms, or ac all. If we are unable to
obtain additional financing, we may be required to reduce the
scope of our planned product development and sales and market-
ing efforts, which could harm our business, financial condicion and
operaring resules. Increasingly, as a resulc of cthe financial demands
of major network deployments, service providers are looking to
their suppliers for financing assistance. From time to time, we may
provide or commict to extend credit or credit support to our cus-
tomers as we consider appropriate in che course of our business.

RECENT ACQUISITIONS

ALGETY TELECOM S.A.

On July 1, 2000, we acquired Algecy Telecom S.A., a French com-
pany that develops and markets high capacity, high speed optical
transmission equipment. Algety, based in Lannion, France, was
formed in April 1999, and was a development stage company with
no revenue.

Ac the initjal closing on July 1, 2000, we delivered to the
Algety shareholders 1,301,822 shares of our Series I convertible
preferred stock, which converted into 15,621,858 shares of com-
mon stock upon the closing of our inicial public offering. We also
delivered 348,402 shares of Series I convertible preferred scock to
our escrow agent to secure potential warranty claims, which con-
verted into 4,180,824 shares of common stock upon the closing of
our injtial public offering. In addition, we placed into escrow
2,275,032 shares of common stock thar will be released contin-
gent upon satisfaction of certain minimum employment terms for
certain Algety employees. We incurred approximately $1.0 mil-
lion of transaction costs relaring to the rransaction.

On November 3, 2000, consistenc wich che terms of the acqui-
sition agreement, the Company completed a second closing in
which an additional 11,385,358 shares of common stock were
delivered to the former Algety stockholders. Total value of all
shares delivered in the firse and second closings was $947.1 million.

We have accounted for the acquisition using the purchase
method whereby the net rangible and identifiable intangible assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are recognized at their estimarted
fair market values at the date of acquisition. The excess of the
aggregate purchase price over the estimarted fair value of net assets
acquired of $876.7 million, based upon che purchase price alloca-
tion, is being amortized on a scraight-line basis over five years.

In addition, $42.2 million of the purchase price was allocated to
in-process research and technology and was expensed immediately.

BAYLIGHT NETWORKS, INC.

On May 19, 2000, we acquired Baylight, a company that designs
optical network access systems and subsystems. Baylight was
formed in February 2000 and was a development stage company
with no revenue. In consideration for all of the outstanding shares
of Baylight, we assumed $0.1 million of Baylight liabilities and
placed in escrow 2,400,012 shares of common stock for release




over the term of chree-year employment agreemencs with che for-
mer Baylight shareholders. We have accounted for the acquisition
using the purchase method. Accordingly, the operating resules of
Baylight are included in our financial results from the date of
acquisicion. The allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of
the assecs acquired and liabilicies assumed is based on an internal
analysis of the fair value of the assets and liabilities of Baylight.
The excess of the aggregate purchase price over the fair value of
nec assets acquired of approximacely $0.1 million is being amor-
tized on a scraight-line basis over five years. We are recognizing
compensation expense over the terms of the employment agree-
ments equal to the fair value of che shares to be issued.

Corvis CANADA, INC.

On July 6, 1999, we purchased all of the outstanding common
stock of Corvis Canada, Inc., a Canadian company formerly known
as Kromahbre, Inc., for 211,928 shares of Series D convertible pre-
ferred stock valued at approximately $1.9 million. Corvis Canada
develops fiber optic technology that we use in some of our prod-
ucts. We accounted for the acquisicion using the purchase method.
Accordingly, the operating results of Corvis Canada have been
included in our resulcs since the dace of our acquisicion of Corvis
Canada. We are amortizing the excess of the aggregate purchase
price over the fair value of net assecs acquired of approximately
$1.7 million on a straight-line basis over five years.

RECENT ACCOUNTING
PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Scandards No. 133 (SFAS
No. 133), “Accounting for Derivative Inscruments and Hedging
Activities.” This Statement requires companies to record deriva-
tives on the balance sheet as assets or liabilities, measured at fair
value. Gains or losses resulting from changes in the value of those
derivatives would be accounted for depending on the use of cthe
derivative and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting. SFAS
No. 133, as amended by SFAS No. 137, “Accounting for Deriva-
tive Instruments and Hedging Activicies — Deferral of the Effec-
tive Date for SFAS No. 133,” will be effective for our fiscal year
ending December 29, 2001. We believe that the adoption of
SFAS No. 133 and SFAS No. 137 will not have a material effect
on our consolidated financial statements.

In September 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for che Transfers and Servicing
of Financial Assets and Excinguishmencs of Liabilities.” SFAS
No. 140 is effective for transfers occurring after March 31, 2001
and for disclosures relating to the securitization transactions and
collateral for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2000. We are
reviewing the provisions of SFAS No. 140.

LITIGATION

On July 19, 2000, Ciena Corporaction (“Ciena”) filed a lawsuit in
the United States Districe Court for the Districr of Delaware alleg-
ing that we are willfully infringing three of Ciena's patents. Ciena
is seeking injunctive relief, an unspecified amount of damages
including treble damages, as well as costs of the lawsuir, including
actorneys’ fees. On September 8, 2000, we filed an answer to the
complain, as well as counter-claims alleging, among other chings,
invalidity and/or unenforceability of the three patents in quescion.
On March 5, 2001, a motion was granted, allowing Ciena to
amend its complaint to include allegations that we are willfully
infringing two additional patents. A trial date has been set for
April 1, 2002. We are currently in the discovery phase of the liti-

gacion. We intend to defend ourselves vigorously against chese
claims and we believe that we will prevail in chis licigacion. An
adverse determination in, or secclement of, the Ciena licigation
could involve che payment of significant amounts by us, or could
include terms in addicion to payments, such as a redesign of some
of our products, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. If we are
required to redesign our products, we have to stop selling our cur-
rent products until they have been redesigned. We believe chat
defense of the lawsuit may be costly and may divert the time and
accencion of some members of our management.

THAT MAY AFFECT
FurTurg RESULTS

FacToRrs
OuR

RisKks RELATED TO OuUR FINANCIAL RESULTS

We bave incurred significant losses since inception and expect to continue to
incnr losses in the future, all of which may adversely affect the market
price of our common stock.

We have incurred significant net losses since inception. As of
December 30, 2000, we had an accumulared deficic of $374.8 mil-
lion. We cannot be certain that we will achieve or maincain prof-
icability. We have large fixed expenses and expect to conrinue to
incur significant and increasing manufacturing, research and devel-
opment, sales and marketing, administrative and other expenses in
connection with the continued development and expansion of our
business. As a resule, we will need to generate significant revenue
to achieve and maintain profitabilicy. We do nat expect to be cash
flow positive before at leasc 2002.

Our varly stage of development makes it difficult to evaluate onr business
and prospects.

We were incorporated in June 1997 and began operations in
August 1997. Because we have only recently begun commercial
sales of our products, our revenue and profic potencial is unproven
and our limited operating history makes it difficulc for you to
evaluate our business and prospects. Further, due to our limited
operating history, we have difficulty accurately forecasting our rev-
enue, and we have limited hiscorical financial data upon which to
base operating expense budgets. You should consider our business
and prospects in light of the heighcened risks and unexpected
expenses and problems we may face as a company in an early scage
of development in a new and rapidly-evolving industry.

The unpredictability of our quarterly results may adversely affect the
trading price of onr common stock.

Our revenue and operating resules will vary significancly from
quarter to quarter due to a number of factors, many of which are
outside of our control and any of which may cause the price of our
common stock to fluctuate. The primary factors chat may affecc us
include the following:

e loss of customers;

e fluctuation in demand for optical network producrs;

the length and variability of che sales cycle for our products;

the timing and size of sales of our products;

our ability to attain and maintain production volumes and
quality levels for our produces;

our ability to obtain sufficient supplies of sole or limited
source components;

changes in our pricing policies or the pricing policies of our
competitors;

increases in che prices of the components we purchase;



new producr introductions and enhancements by our
competitors and us;

our ability to develop, introduce and ship new products
and product enhancements that meet cuscomer requirements
in a timely manner;

che timing and magnitude of proctotype expenses;

our ability to actract and rerain key personnel;

our sales of common stock or ocher securities in che future;

costs relaced to acquisitions of technology or businesses; and

general economic conditions as well as those specific to the
communicacions, Internec and related industries.

Our operating expenses are largely based on anticipated organi-
zational growth and revenue trends and a high percentage of our
expenses are, and will continue to be, fixed. As a result, a delay
in generating or recognizing revenue could cause significant varia-
tions in our operacing results from quarter to quarter and could
result in subsrancial operating losses. It is possible that in some
future quarters our operating results may be below the expecta-
tions of analysts and investors. In chis event, the price of our com-
mon stock will likely decrease.

The long and variable sales cycles for our products may canse revenue
and operating results 1o vary significantly from quarter to quarter, which
may adversely affect the trading price of onr common stock.

Qur products are designed to enable all-optical transmission
and switching of darta traffic over long distances. We expect that
customers who purchase our products will do so as pare of a large-
scale deployment of these products across their networks. As a
result, a customer’s decision to purchase our all-optical nerwork
products will involve a significant commirment of its resources.

A lengchy testing and product qualification process, a portion of
which is funded by us, will precede any final decision to purchase
our products. Throughour this sales and qualification cycle, we
will spend considerable cime and expense educating and providing
information to prospective customers about the uses and features
of our.products.

The timing of deployment of our products may vary widely and
will depend on the specific network deployment plan of the cus-
tamer, the installation skills of the customer, the complexity of the
customer's nerwork environment and che degree of hardware and
sofrware configuration necessary. Customers with substantial or
complex networks have traditionally expanded cheir necworks in
large increments on a periodic basis. Accordingly, we may receive
purchase orders for significant dollar amounts on an irregular and
unpredictable basis. Because of our limited operating history and
the nature of our business, we cannot predict the timing or size
of these sales and deployment cycles. Long sales cycles, as well as
our expectation that customers will tend to place large orders spo-
radically with short lead times, may cause our revenue and results
of operations to vary significantly and unexpectedly from quarrer
to quarter.

We curvently bave three customers and we expect that substantially all
of onr revennie will be generated from a limited number of customers.

The target customers for our products are service providers that
operate backbone communications networks. There are only a
limited number of potential customers in our rarget marker. We
currently have three customers who have signed agreements to
purchase our products. Each of these agreemencs contains signifi-
cant obligations, the breach of which could result in termination
of the agreement. Our agreement with Qwest Communications
Corporacion will terminate if, among other circumstances, our
products do not meet the agreed technical specifications. We expect
that in the future subsrantially all of our revenue will depend
on sales of our optical network products to a limited number of

potencial customers. The rate at which customers purchase products
from us will depend, in part, on the increasing demand for
bandwidch by service providers’ customers. Any failure of service
providers to purchase products from us for any reason, including
any downturn in cheir business, would seriously harm our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

We depend on onr key personnel to manage onr business effectively in a
rapidly changing market. 1f we are unable to retain our key employees, onr
business. financial condition and results of operations conld be barmed.

Our future success depends upon the continued services of our
execucive officers and other key engineering, manufacturing, oper-
ations, sales, marketing and support personnel who have cricical
indusery experience and relationships that we rely on to implement
our business plan. We do not have key person life insurance poli-
cies covering any of our employees. The loss of the services of any
of our key employees, including Dr. David Huber, our founder,
President and Chief Execucive Officer, could delay the development
and production of our products and negatively impact our ability
to mainrain cuscomer relacionships, which would harm our busi-
ness, financial condition and resules of operations.

We do not have significant experience in international markets and may
have unexpected costs and difficulties in developing international revente.

We plan to expand the marketing and sales of our products
internacionally. This expansion will require significant management
accention and financial resources to successfully develop interna-
tional sales and support channels. We have developed a sales and
marketing staff ourside of the United States. International opera-
tions may be subject to certain risks and challenges chat could
harm our resulcs of operarions, including:

e fluctuacions in exchange rates;

e changes in regulatory requirements in the communications

industry;

e expenses associated with developing and customizing our

produces for foreign countries;

o tariffs, quotas and other import restrictions on

communications products;

¢ greater difficulty in accounts receivable collection and longer
collection periods;

o difficulties and costs of staffing and managing foreign
operations;

« reduced protection for intellectual propercy rights;

e potentially adverse tax consequences;

« longer sales cycles for our products;

» compliance with international standards thar differ from
domestic standards; and

* political and economic instability.

Risks RELATED TO THE GROWTH
OF DUR INDUSTRY

The market for all-optical backbone network products is new and uncer-
tain and onr business will suffer if it does not develop as we expect.

Most service providers have made substantial investments in
their current network infrascructure, and they may elect to remain
with current necwork architectures or to adopt new architectures
in limited stages or over extended periods of time. A decision by a
customer to purchase our all-oprical products will involve a signif-
icant capital investment. We will need to convince these service
providers of the benefits of our all-optical necwork products for
future network upgrades or expansions. We cannot be certain chat
a viable marker for our products will develop or be sustainable. If
this market does not develop, or develops more slowly than we




expect, our business, financial condition and results of operations
would be seriously harmed.

The market we serve is bighly competitive and, as an early stage com-
pany, we may not be able to achieve or maintain profitability.

Competition in the backbone network communications equip-
ment marker is intense. This markec has hiscorically been domi-
nated by large companies, such as Alcatel, Ciena, Cisco Systems,
Lucent Technologies, NEC and Nortel Networks. We may face
competition from other large communications companies who may
encer our marker. In addition, a number of private companies have
announced plans for new all-optical products to address che same
network needs that our products address. Due to several factors
including the lengthy sales cycle, testing and deployment process
and manufacturing constraincs associated wich large-scale deploy-
mencs of our products, we may lose any advantage that we might
have by being an early provider of all-optical network products
prior to achieving market penecration. Many of our competitors
have longer operating histories, greater name recognition, larger
customer bases and greater financial, technical and sales and mar-
keting resources than we do and may be able to undertake more
extensive marketing efforts, adopt more aggressive pricing policies
and provide more vendor financing than we can. Moreover, our
competitors may foresee the course of marker developments more
accurately than we do and could develop new technologies chat
compere with our products or render our products obsolete. Due
to the rapidly evolving markets in which we compete, additional
competitors with significane markec presence and financial
resources may enter our markecs, furcher intensifying comperticion.

In order to compete effectively, we must deliver products thac:

* provide extremely high reliabilicy;

increase necwork capabilicy easily and efficiently with
minimum disruption;

operate with existing equipment and nectwork designs;

reduce the complexity of the necwork in which they are
inscalled by decreasing the amount of equipment required;

provide effective network management;

reduce operating costs; and
= provide an overall cost-effective solution for service providers.

In addition, we believe that a knowledge of che infrastructure
requirements applicable to service providers, experience in work-
ing with service providers to develop new services for their cus-
tomers, and an ability to provide vendor financing are important
comperitive factors in our markec. We have limited knowledge of
service providers’ infrastructure requirements and limited experi-
ence in working with service providers to develop new services.
We currently provide only a limited vendor-sponsored financing
program. Many of our competitors, however, are able to offer more
complece financing programs, which may influence prospective
cuscomers to purchase from our competitors rather than from us.

If we are unable to compete successfully against our current and
future competitors, we may have difficulty obtaining customers,
and we could experience price reductions, order cancellations,
increased expenses and reduced gross margins, any one of which
would harm our business, financial condition and resules of
operations.

The communications industry is subject to government vegulations which
could harm onr business.

The Federal Communications Commission, or FCC, has juris-
diction over the entire communications industry and, as a resul,
our products and our customers' products, are subject to FCC rules
and regulations. Current and future FCC rules and regulations
affecting communications services, our products or our customers’

businesses or products could negartively affect our business. In
addition, international regulatory standards could impair our abil-
ity to develop proaducts for internacional service providers in the
future. Delays caused by our compliance with regulatory require-
ments could result in postponements or cancellations of product
orders, which would harm our business, results of operations and
financial condition. Further, we cannot be certain that we will be
successful in obtaining or maintaining any regulacory approvals
that may, in che future, be required to operate our business.

RIsks RELATED T DUR PRODUCT
MANUFADTURING

We bave limited manufacturing experience and unproven manufacturing
capabilities. If we ave unable to adjust onr manufacturing capacity in a
timely manner or if we do not accurately project demand, we will not
achieve or maintain profitability.

Our fucure operating results will depend on our ability to
develop and manufacture our products cosc-effectively. To do so,
we will have to develop manufacturing processes thac will allow us
to produce sufficient quanricies of products ac competitive prices.
We have limited manufacturing experience and have only used our
current facilities for limited quanticies of commercial products.
Furthermore, our current facilities may not be sufficient for pro-
ducing the volume of products required on a timely basis by our
customers. Due to the complexities of the oprical product manu-
facturing process, we may be unable to supplement our internal
manufacturing capability by outsourcing manufacturing of our
products to meet demand.

If we are unable to adjust our manufacturing capacity in a timely
manner or if we do not accurately project demand, we will have
insufficient capacity or excess capacity, either of which will seriously
harm our business. There are numerous risks associated with
adjusting our manufacturing capabilicies, including the following:

o the inability to purchase and install the necessary

manufacturing equipment;

e the scarcity and cost of manufacturing personnel;

« difficulties in achieving adequate yields from new

manufacturing lines; and

e the scarcity and cost of certain components.

Our manufacturing facilities and related capital expenditures
assume a level of customer orders that we may nor realize or, if we
do realize, may not be sustained over multiple quarters. If we do
not receive anticipated levels of customer orders, our gross margins
will decline and we will not be able to reduce our operating expen-
ses quickly enough to prevent a decline in our operating results.

We are dependent on sole sonrce and limited source suppliers for several
key components. If we are unable to obtain these components on a timely
basis, we will be unable to meet our customers’ product delivery require-
ments, which wonld harm onr business.

We currently purchase several key components from single or
limited sources. From time to time, there have been industry-wide
shortages of some optical components due to rapidly increasing
demand. For some of these components, there can be waiting
periods of six months or more berween placement of an order and
receipt of the components. If any of our sole or limited source
suppliers experiences capacity constraints, work stoppages or any
other reduction or disruption in output, they may be unable to
meet our delivery schedule. We currencly have no long-term sup-
ply contracts for certain of our key components. Our suppliers
may enter into exclusive arrangements with our competitors, be
acquired by our competitors, stop selling their products or compo-
nents to us at commercially reasonable prices, refuse to sell cheir
products or components to us at any price or be unable to obtain



or have difficulry obtaining components for their products from
their suppliers, and we may be unable to develop alrernative
sources for the components. Even if alcernate suppliers are avail-
able to us, idencifying them is often difficult and time consuming.
If we do not receive critical components from our suppliers in a
timely manner, we will be unable to manufacture our produces in
a timely manner and would, cherefore, be unable to meet cus-
tomers’ product delivery requiremencs. Any failure to meet a cus-
tomer’s delivery requirements could harm our reputation and
decrease our sales, which would harm our business, financial con-
dition and resulcs of operations.

Some of onr competitors are also our suppliers and if our supply rela-
tionship with them deteriorates, it conld barni our business.

Some of our component suppliers are both our primary source
for those components and major competicors in the marker for
communicacions equipment. For example, we buy some of our key
componencs from Lucent and Alcarel, each of which offers commu-
nications systems and equipment that compete with our products.
Our business, financial condicion and resulces of operations could be
harmed if chese supply relationships were to change in any manner
adverse to us.

RISks RELATED TO OUR PRDDUCTS

Because optical products are complex and are deployed in complex environ-
ments, our products may have defects that we discover only after full
deplayment, which could seriously barm onr business.

Optical products are complex and are designed to be deployed
in large quantities across complex nerworks. Because of the nature
of the products, they can only be fully tested when completely
deployed in large networks with high amounts of traffic. Our cus-
tomers may discover errors or defeces in che hardware or the soft-
ware, or our products may not operace as expected, after they
have been fully deployed. If we are unable to fix defects or other
problems that may be idencified in full deployment, we would
experience:

s loss of, or delay in, revenue and loss of market share;

» loss of existing customers;

e failure to artract new customers or achieve market acceprance;

e diversion of development resources;

e increased service and warranty costs;

e legal actions by our customers; and

e increased insurance costs.

The occurrence of any of these problems would seriously harm
our business, financial condicion and results of operations. Defects,
integration issues or other performance problems in our products
could resulc in financial or other damages to our customers or
could negarively affect market acceptance for our products. Our
customers could also seek damages for losses from us, which, if
they were successful, would seriously harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations. A product liability claim
brought against us, even if unsuccessful, would likely be time con-
suming and costly and would purt a scrain on our management
and resources.

Our business will suffer if we do not respond vapidly to technological
changes.

The market for backbone network communications equipment
is characterized by rapid technological change, frequent new prod-
uct introductions and changes in customer requirements. We may
be unable to respond quickly or effectively to these developments.
We may experience design, manufacturing, marketing and other
difficulcies that could delay or prevent our development, introduc-
tion or marketing of new products and enhancements. The incro-

duction of new products by competitors, market acceptance of
products based on new or alternative technologies or the emer-
gence of new industry standards could render our existing or
fucure products obsolete, which would harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

In developing our products, we have made, and will concinue to
make, assumprions about the industry standards that may be
adopted by our competitors and potential cuscomers. If the stan-
dards adopted are different from those which we have chosen to
support, market acceprance of our products may be significantly
reduced or delayed and our business will be seriously harmed. In
addition, the introduction of products incorporating new technolo-
gies and the emergence of new industry standards could render our
existing products obsolete. In order to introduce products incorpo-
rating new technologies and new industry standards, we must be
able to gain access to the latest technologies of our suppliers, other
necwork vendors and our potential customers. Any failure to gain
access to the latesc technologies would seriously harm our busi-
ness, financial condition and results of operations.

Our business will suffer if our current and future products do not meet
specific customer requirements.

Customers may require product features and capabilicies that
our current products do not have. To achieve market acceprance
for our products, we must anticipate and adape to customer
requiremencs and offer products and services that meet customer
demands. Our failure to develop products or offer services thac sat-
isfy customer requirements would seriously harm our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

We intend to continue to invest in product and technology
development. The development of new or enhanced produces is a
complex and uncertain process that requires the accurate ancicipa-
cion of technological and market crends. We may experience
design, manufacturing, marketing and other difficulties char could
delay or prevent the development, introduction or marketing of
new products and enhancements. The introduction of new or
enhanced products also requires that we manage the transition
from older to newer products in order to minimize disrupcion in
customer ordering patterns and ensure thar adequate supplies of
new products can be delivered to meet anticipated customer
demand. Our inability to effectively manage this transition would
harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our business will be adversely affected if we are unable to protect onr
intellectual property rights from third-party challenges. - -

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark and
trade secret laws and restrictions on disclosure to protect our intel-
lectual property rights. We also enter into confidentiality or
license agreements with our employees, consultancs and corporate
partners and control access to and distribution of our software,
documentation and other proprietary information. Despite our
efforts to protect our proprietary rights, unauthorized parcies may
attempt to copy or otherwise obtain and use our products or tech-
nology. Monitoring unauthorized use of our technology is difficule,
and we cannor be cerrain that the steps we have taken will prevent
unauthorized use of our rechnology, particularly in foreign coun-
tries where the laws may not protect our proprietary rights as fully
as in the United States.

We are involved in an intellectual property dispute and in the future
we may become involved in similar disputes, which conld subject us to sig-
nificant liability, divert the time and attention of onr management and
prevent us from selling our products.

On July 19, 2000, Ciena filed a lawsuit in the United Srates
District Court for the District of Delaware alleging that we are
willfully infringing three of Ciena’s patents. Ciena is seeking




injunctive relief, an unspecified amount of damages including
treble damages, as well as costs of the lawsuit including atcorneys’
fees. We intend to defend ourselves vigorously against chese claims
and we believe that we will prevail in chis licigacion. However,
there can be no assurance that we will be successful in che defense
of the licigation, and an adverse determinacion in che licigation
could result from a finding of infringement of only one claim of a
single patenc. An adverse determination in, or secclement of, the
Ciena litigation could involve the payment of significant amounts
by us, or could include terms in addicion to payments, such as a
redesign of some of our products, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and resules of
operations. We expect that defense of che lawsuit will be costly
and will divert the time and actention of some members of our
management. Further, Ciena and other competitors may use the
existence of the Ciena lawsuit to raise questions in customers’ and
potencial customers’ minds as to our abilicy to manufacture and
deliver our products. There can be no assurance that quescions
raised by Ciena and ochers will not disrupt our exiscing and
prospective customer relationships.

We or our customers may be a parcy to additional licigation in
the future to protect our intellectual property or to respond to
allegacions that we infringe ochers' incelleccual propercy. Any par-
ries asserting that our products infringe upon their proprietary
rights would force us to defend ourselves and possibly our cus-
romers against the alleged infringement. If we are unsuccessful in
any incellectual property licigation, we could be subjecc to signifi-
canc liability for damages and loss of our proprietary rights. Intel-
lectual property litigation, regardless of its success, would likely
be time consuming and expensive to resolve and would divert
managemenc time and ateention. In addicion, we could be forced
to do one or more of the following:

» stop selling, incorporating or using our products thac include
the challenged incellectual property;

» obtain from the owner of the infringed intelleccual property
right a license to sell or use the relevant technology, which
license may not be available on reasonable terms, or ac all; or

» redesign those products that use the cechnology.

If we are forced to take any of these actions, our business would
be seriously harmed.

If necessary licenses of third-party technology are not available 1o us or
are very expensive, our business wonld be serionsly barmed.

We currently license technology, and from time to time we may
be required to license additional technology, from third parties to
sell or develop our products and product enhancements. We cannot
assure you that our existing and future third-party licenses will be
available to us on commercially reasonable terms, if at all. Our
inability to maintain or obtain any third-party license required to
sell or develop our products and product enhancements could
require us to obtain substituce technology of lower quality or per-
formance standards or at greater cost, any of which could seriously
harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

RISKS RELATED TC THE DEVELOPMENT
orF DUR BUSINESS

Our business will suffer if we do not adjust our sales organization and
onr customer service and support operations.

Our products and services require a sophisticated sales effort
targeted ac a limiced number of key individuals within our pro-
spective customers’ organizations. Our success will depend, in
part, on our ability to develop and manage these relationships.
This effort requires specialized sales personnel as well as experi-

enced sales engineers. Competition for cthese individuals is intense
because there are a limiced number of people available wich the
necessary technical skills and understanding of our markec. When
we hire them or contracr for these personnel, they may require
extensive training in our network products. We might not be able
to hire the kind and number of sales personnel and sales engineers
required for us to be successful. If we are unable to adjust our sales,
customer service and support operations, we may not be able to
effectively marker our products, which may prevent us from achiev-
ing and maintaining prohcability.

We believe our future success will also depend in large part
upon our ability to identify, atcract and recain highly skilled man-
agerial, engineering, sales and markecing and finance personnel.
Competition for these individuals is also intense in our industry.
We may noc succeed in identifying, atcracting and retaining per-
sonnel. Further, competitors and other entities may accemprt to
recruit our employees. If we are unable to hire any of these required
personnel and expand our corporate infrastruccure, we may noc be
able to increase sales of our produces, which would seriously harm
our business, financial condition and resules of operations.

To date, two of onr customers bave acquived an equity intevest in our
company, and onr thivd customer bolds a wavrant to purchase onr comnion
stock. 1f we discontinue this practice of selling equity to onr customers, we
may not attract new customers.

Two of our customers have purchased an equity interest in our
company, and our third customer holds a warrant to purchase our
common stock. Although these customers purchased che equicy
interests at fair value and the warrant has an exercise price equal to
the fair value on the date of granc, che opportunicy to invest in our
company provided these cuscomers with an additional incencive to
purchase our products. It is unlikely that we will offer this oppor-
tunity to prospective customers, which may hure our ability to sell
our products.

Owr business will suffer if we fail to properly manage onr growth and
continually improve onr internal controls and systems.

We have expanded our operations rapidly since our inception.
We continue to increase the scope of our operations, as well as
broaden our in-house manufacturing and customer support capa-
bilities, develop new discribution channels and fund greater levels
of research and development. Our growth has placed, and our
anticipated growth will continue to place, a significanc strain on
our management and resources. Qur ability to successfully offer
our products and implement our business plan in a rapidly evolv-
ing market requires an effective planning and management
process. In order to manage our growth properly, we must:

* rerain existing personnel;

« hire, train, manage and retain addicional qualified personnel,
including engineers and research and development personnel;

manage our manufacturing operations, controls and
reporting systems;

effectively manage multiple relationships with our customers,
suppliers and other third parties; and

implement additional operational controls, reporring and
financial systems and procedures.

Failure to do any of the above in an efficient and timely manner
could seriously harm our business, financial condition and resules
of operations.

1f we become subject to unfair biring claims we could incur substantial
costs in defending onrselves or our management’s attention conld be diverted
away from our operations.



Companies in our industry whose employees accepr positions
with competitors frequently claim that their competicors have
engaged in unfair hiring practices. We have received claims of this
kind in cthe past, and we cannot assure you that we will not receive
claims of this kind in the future as we seek to hire qualified per-
sonnel or that those claims will not result in material licigation.
We could incur substantial costs in defending ourselves or our
employees againse such claims, regardless of the merics of che
claims. In addicion, defending ourselves from such claims could
diverc che accention of our management away from our operations.

Any acquisitions we make conld disrupt onr business and seriously
harm our financial condition.

We may, from time to time, consider investments in comple-
mentary companies, products or technologies. We have recently
acquired two companies, and we may acquire additional busi-
nesses, products or rechnologies in the fucure. In the evenc of
any future acquisicions, we could:

e issue stock thar would diluce our current stockholders’

percentage ownership;

incur debr;

assume liabilicies;

incur amorcization expenses related to goodwill and other
intangible assets; or

incur large and immediate write-offs.

Our operation of any acquired business will also involve
numerous risks, including:
* problems combining cthe acquired operations, technologies
or products;

unanticipated costs;

diversion of management’s time and actention from our
core business;

adverse effects on existing business relationships with
suppliers and customers;

risks associated with entering markets in which we have
no or limited prior experience; and

potential loss of key employees, particularly chose of
acquired companies.

We cannort assure you thac we will be able to successfully inte-
grate any businesses, products, technologies or personnel thac we
might acquire in the future. Any failure to do so could seriously
harm our business, financial condition and results of operacions.

We may need additional capital to fund onr existing and future opera-
tions. 1f we are unable to obtain additional capiral, we may be required
to rednce the scope of onr planned product development and marketing and
sales efforts, which wonld barm our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

The development, marketing and sales of new products is
expected to require a significanc commitment of resources. We may
incur significant operating losses or expend significant amounts
of capiral if:

the markec for our products develops more slowly than
anticipated;

we fail to establish market share or generate revenue;

our capital expenditure forecasts change or prove inaccurate;
and

we need to respond to unforeseen challenges or take advantage
of unanticipated opportunities.

As a result, we may need to raise substantial additional capical,
To the extenc cthat we raise addicional capital through the sale of
equity or debt securities, the issuance of such securities could
resulc in dilution to our existing stockholders. If additional funds
are raised through the issuance of debc securities, the terms of such
debt could impose additional restriccions on our operations. Addi-
tional capital, if required, may not be available on acceptable
terms, or at all. If we are unable o obrain additional capital, we
may be required to reduce the scope of our planned product devel-
opment and markecing and sales efforts, which would harm our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURES ABouT MARKET RiIsk

We are exposed to market risk related to changes in interest races
and foreign currency exchange races. We do not use derivative
financial inscruments for speculative or crading purposes.

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

We maintain a portfolio of cash equivalents in a variety of securi-
ties including: commercial paper, certificates of deposit, money
marker funds and government and non-government debc securi-
ties. Substantially all amounts are in money market funds, the val-
ue of which is generally not subject co interest race changes. The
other available-for-sale securities are subject to interest rate risk
and may fall in value if markec incerest races increase, however,
because of the short-term nacure of these invesements, we do not-
believe the risk is significanc. Our long-term debt obligations bear
fixed incerest rates. As such, we have minimal cash flow exposure
due to general interest rate changes associated with our long-term
debt obligacions.

EXCHANGE RATE SENSITIVITY

We have two wholly owned subsidiaries which use a foreign cur-
rency as ctheir functional currency and are cranslated into U.S. dol-
lars. The functional currency of Algecy is the French Franc and
Corvis Canada’s functional currency is the Canadian dollar, respec-
tively. As such, we are exposed to risk related to the adverse move-
ments in foreign currency exchange rates. These exposures may
change over time and could have a material adverse impact on our
financial resulcs. For the year ended December 30, 2000, we recog-
nized a foreign currency ranslacion gain fo $60.2 million as part of
Other Comprehensive Income.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended

(Amounts in thousands. except per share amounts) December 31, January 1, December 30,
1998 2000 2000
Revenue $ - $ - $ 68,898
Cost of revenue - - 42,943
Gross profic - - 25,955
Operating expenses:
Research and development, exclusive of equity-based expense 15,746 41,565 88,874
Sales and marketing, exclusive of equity-based expense 167 3,422 30,871
General and administrative, exclusive of equity-based expense 3,190 18,993 31,127
Equity-based expense: S
Research and development - 126 28,050
Sales and marketing - 4,845 52,417
General and administrative - - 17,891
Amortizacion of intangible assets - 173 46,746
Purchased research and development - - 42,230
Total operating expenses 19,103 69,124 338,206
Operating loss (19,103) (69,124) +(312,251)
Interest income (expense), net (357) (2,146) 28,640
Ner loss (19,460) (71,270) (283,611)
Other comprehensive income: el
Foreign exchange adjustment - — 60,176
Comprehensive loss $(19,460) $(71,270) $:(223,435)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share $  (0.86) $  (2.33) $ (1.80)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 22,638 30,599 157,349

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dnllars in thousands, except per share amounts) January 1, December 30,

ASSETS 2000 2000

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 244,597 $ 1,024,758
Restricted cash 2,103 -
Trade accounts receivable - 16,085
Inventory, net 15,869 219,414
Orther current assets 1,641 26,802
Toral current assets 264,210 1,287,059
Restricted cash, long-term 15,000 46,292
Property and equipment, net 22,355 106,681
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net — 929,204
Other long-term assets, net 5,714 12,600
Toral assets $ 307,279 $:2,381,836

LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilicies: :
15,287 $ 1,438

Notes payable, current portion $
Capital lease obligations, current portion 1,587 . 1,841
Accounts payable 6,823 90,995
Accrued expenses 3,674 20,745
Total current liabilicies 27,371 +:.115,019
Noncurrent liabilities: :
Notes payable, net of current portion 35,807 44,529
Capiral lease obligations, net of current portion 2,964 1,380
Other long-term liabilicies 1,511 4315
Toral liabilities 67,653 165,243

Commitments and contingencies

Redeemable stock - 530,000

Scockholders’ equity: :
Series A convertible preferred stock; $0.01 par value; 1,550,000 shares authorized, 1,550,000 issued and

outstanding at January 1, 2000; no shares auchorized, issued or outstanding at December 30, 2000 16 ‘ —
Series B convertible preferred stock; $0.01 par value; 6,685,931 shares auchorized, 6,328,955 issued and :

outstanding at January 1, 2000; no shares authorized, issued or outstanding at December 30, 2000 63 -
Series C convertible preferred stock; $0.01 par value; 3,270,819 shares auchorized; 3,120,118 issued and

outstanding at January 1, 2000; no shares authorized, issued or outstanding at December 30, 2000 31 -
Series D convertible preferred stock; $0.01 par value; 273,314 shares authorized; 211,928 issued and

outstanding at January 1, 2000; no shares authorized, issued or outstanding at December 30, 2000 2 : =
Series F convertible preferred stock; $0.01 par value; 1,946,906 shares authorized; 1,898,406 issued and

outstanding at January 1, 2000; no shares authorized, issued or outstanding at December 30, 2000 19 B
Series G convertible preferred stock; $0.01 par value; 573,989 shares authorized; 292,825 issued and :

outstanding ar January 1, 2000; no shares authorized, issued or outstanding at December 30, 2000 3 PRE e
Series H convertible preferred stock; $0.01 par value; 3,186,710 shares authorized, 2,685,954 issued and : ‘ o

outstanding at January 1, 2000; no shares authorized, issued or ourstanding at December 30, 2000 27 L

Series I convertible preferred stock; $0.01 par value; no shares authorized; no shares issued and o
outstanding as of January 1, 2000 or December 30, 2000 _ : _

Common stock — $0.01 par value; 425,121,094 shares aurhorized; 61,114,020 shares issued and

ourstanding as of January 1, 2000; 348,039,489 issued and ourtstanding as of December 30, 2000 609 o 3‘,478
Additional paid-in capital 331,303 2,497,773
Stockholder note receivable (1,224) g -
Accumulated other comprehensive income: i

Foreign currency translation adjustment - 160,176
Accumulated deficit (91,223) (374,834)

Toral stockholders’ equity 239,626 ,,_2;186,5’93’
Total liabilities, redeemable stock and stockholders’ equity $ 307,279 '$2,381,836 -

See ing notes to ¢ idated financial

N

s



I

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Convertible Preferred Stock

Additional

Stockholder

Accumulared
Other

Total

All Series Comman Stack Paid-in Note Comprehensive Accumulated  Stockholders
(Dollars in thousands) Shares  Amount Shares  Amount Capital Receivable Income Deficic Equity
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 1997 1,500,000 § 15 21,600,000 § 216 8§ 2,769 S - S - $ 493) § 2,507
Privace Placement —

Series A preferred stock 50,000 - - - 100 - - - 100
Private Placement —

Series B preferred stock 6,328,955 63 - - 13,544 - - - 13,607
Issuance of common stock - - 1,200,000 10 - - - - 10
Exercise of stock oprions — - 1,146,012 il " 22 - - - 33
Issuance of warrants - - - - 236 - - - 236
Nert loss — - - - - - - (19,460) (19,460)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 1998 7,878,955 78 23,946,012 237 16,671 - - (19,953) (2,967)
Private Placement —

Series C preferred stock 3,075,736 31 - - 28,103 - - - 28,134
Private Placemenc —

Series D preferred scock 211,928 2 - - 1,936 - - - 1,938
Private Placement —

Series F preferred stock 1,898,406 19 - - 46,017 - - - 46,036
Private Placement —

Series G preferred stock 292,825 3 - - 9,997 - - - 10,000
Private Placement —

Series H preferred stock 2,685,954 27 - - 216,273 - - - 216,300
Exercise of stock options

and warrants 44,382 i 37,168,008 372 2,604 (1,224) - — 1,753
Issuance of warrants - - - - 9,576 - - — 9,576
Equity-based expense - - - 126 - - - 126
Nec loss — - - - - - - (71,270) (71,270)
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2000 16,088,186 161 61,114,020 609 331,303 (1,224) - (91,223) 239,626
Exercise of stock oprions

and warrants 352,576 4 6,111,073 61 47,244 - - - 47,309
Privace Placement —

Series H preferred stock 496,710 5 - - 40,000 - - - 40,005
Acquisition of Algety

Telecom S.A. 1,501,822 13 11,385,358 114 916,942 - - - 917,069
Initial public offering

and concurrent

private placemence, net - - 31,902,778 319 1,066,118 - - - 1,066,437
Equity-based expense 213,633 2 - - 98,356 - - - 98,358
Conversion of preferred stock (18,452,927) (185) 237,526,260 2,375 (2,190} - - - -
Collecrion of

shareholder note - - - - - 1,224 - - 1,224
Foreign exchange adjustment - - - - - - 60,176 - 60,176
Nect loss - - - - - - - (283,611) (283,611)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 30, 2000 — § — 348,039489 $3,478 § 2,497,773 $ - $ 60,176 §$(374,834) $ 2,186,593

See accompanying notes to consolidated linancial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

Cas FLows

Year Ended

{Dallars in thousands) December 31, Jannary I, Decenber 30,
1998 2000 2000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Ner loss $(19,460) $ (71,270)  § (283,611)
Adjuscments o reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,128 4,937 54,301
Equity-based expense - 4,971 98,358
Purchased research and development - - 42,230
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: :
Increase in accounts receivable - - (16,085)
Increase in inventory, net - (15,869) (195,384)
Increase in other current assets (48) (1,465) (29,125)
Increase in accounts payable 1,762 4,737 79,725
Increase in other current liabilicies 380 2,207 14,591
Net cash used in operating activities (16,238) (71,752) (235,000)
Cash flows from (used in) investing activirties:
Purchase of property and equipment (1,543) (14,180) (90,659)
Cash acquired in business combination - 37 22,496
Increase (decrease) in deposits and ocher long-term assets (201) 167 =
Net cash used in investing activities (1,744) (13,976) (68,163)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in restricted cash - (17,103) (29,189)
Proceeds from issuance of note payable 5,000 49,091 43,500
Proceeds from stockholder note payable 1,653 8,347 -
Proceeds from equity offerings 13,717 290,470 1,071,443
Proceeds from stock options and warrants exercised 33 1,752 47,309
Proceeds from repayment of shareholder note - - 1,224
Payment of notes payable and capital lease obligations - (6,272) ©(49,958)
Net cash provided by financing acrivities 20,403 326,285 1,084,329
Cash effect of foreign exchange adjustment -~ - (1,004)
Ner increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2421 240,557 780,161
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning 1,620 4,040 244,597
Cash and cash equivalents — ending 3 4,041 $ 244,597 $ 1,024,758
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid % - $ 564§ 7;220
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Financed leasehold improvements $ 30 $ 3,164 $ 2,105
Obligations under capirtal lease 2,001 3,000 =
Issuance of warrants under capirtal lease obligation 49 94 =
Conversion of stockholder note payable - 10,000 -
Stockholder note received for exercise of stock options - 1,224 -
Purchase business combinations consideration paid with preferred :
and common stock - 1,888 947,069
Issuance of stock for intellectual property - - 35,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated tinancial statements.




SIGNIFICANT
POLICIES AND

[. SUMMARY OF
ACCOUNTING
PRACTICES

(A} NATURE OF BUSINESS AND BaAsSIs OF
PRESENTATION

Corvis Corporation (the “Company"”) was incorporated on June 2,
1997 to design, manufacture and market products that enable a
fundamental shift in che design and efficiency of backbone com-
municacions networks by allowing for the transmission, switching
and management of traffic entirely in the optical domain. In July
2000, the Company commenced its planned principal operations,
including production, shipment and delivery of its commercial
products. Accordingly, the Company is no longer considered a
development stage encerprise and previous disclosures related to a
development stage enterprise are no longer required. The accom-
panying consolidated financial stacements include the accounts of
the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
In 1999, the Company changed its year end from a calendar year
end to a year ending on the Saturday closest to December 31.

On February 28, 2000 and July 21, 2000, the Company declared
a 3-for-1 and a 4-for-1 split of its common stock, respectively.
All share and per share amounts of common stock in the accom-
panying consolidated financial statements have been recroacrively
adjusted to reflect che stock splics. ’

(8) CasH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers short-term, highly liquid investments
with an original macurity of three months or less to be cash equi-
valents. Cash and cash equivalencs include cash in banks and invesc-
ments in overnight repurchase agreements, certificates of deposir,
money market funds and government and non-government debc
securities. As of January 1, 2000 and December 30, 2000, invest-
ments in overnight repurchase agreements totaled $13.1 million
and $0.8 million, respectively, and investments in commercial
paper totaled $231.5 million and $1,011.5 million, respectively.
The Company considers these investments as available-for-sale. As
such, the securities are stated at their fair market value. Unrealized
gains and losses on available-for-sale securicies are recognized as a
component of Other comprehensive income (loss). As of Decem-
ber 30, 2000, che fair value of the marketable securities approxi-
mated the carrying value.

As of December 30, 2000, restricted cash of $46.3 million is
comprised of approximately $2.8 million supporting outstanding
leceers of credit and $43.5 million pledged as collateral under the
terms of a long-term note.

As of January 1, 2000, restricted cash of $17.1 million is com-
prised principally of cash restricted under long-term working
capital facilities.

{(C) REVENUWE AND COST @OF REVENUE

Revenue from product sales is recognized upon execution of a con-
tract and che completion of all delivery obligations provided thac
there are no uncertainties regarding customer acceptance and col-
lectibility is deemed probable. If uncertainties exist, revenue is
recognized when such uncertainties are resolved.

Revenue from installation services is recognized as the services
are performed unless the terms of the supply contract combine prod-
uct acceptance with installation, in which case revenues for instal-

lation services are recognized when the terms of acceprance are
satisfied and inscallation is completed. Revenues from installation
service fixed price contracts are recognized on the percentage-of-
completion method, measured by the percentage of costs incurred
to date compared to estimated total costs for each contrace.
Amounts received in excess of revenue recognized are included as
deferred revenue in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Costs of revenues include the costs of manufacturing the Com-
pany's products and other costs associated with warranty and other
contractual obligations, inventory obsolescence costs and overhead
related to the Company's manufacturing, engineering, finishing
and installation. Warrancy reserves are determined based upon
actual warranty cost experience, estimates of component failure
rates and management's industry experience.

(D} INVENTORY

Inventory is stated ar che lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or marker
(net realizable value). The Company records a provision for excess
and obsolete inventory wherever such an impairment has been

identified.

(E£) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Internal network equipment, test and manufacturing equipment,
furniture and fixcures, and leasehold improvements are stated at
cost or estimated fair market value if acquired in a purchase busi-
ness combinaction. Depreciation is calculated using the straighe-line
method over estimated useful lives ranging between three and sev-
en years for internal network equipment, test and manufacturing
equipment, and furniture and fixcures. Leasehold improvements
and assets acquired under capital leases are amorrized over the
shorter of the lease term or che estimated useful life of the assecs.

(F} Goapwill.

The Company has classified as goodwill the cost in excess of fair
value of the net assets of companies acquired in purchase business
combinations. Goodwill is being amortized using the scraight-line
method over five years.

(53) RECOVERY OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company's policy is to review its long-lived assets, including
goodwill and other intangibles, for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
asser may not be recoverable. The Company recognizes an impair-
ment loss when the sum of the expected future undiscounted

cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assec. The mea-
surement of the impairmenct losses to be recognized is based upon
the difference between the fair value and the carrying amount

of the asset.

(H) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

(1) INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts for income taxes under che assec and lia-
bility method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
the future tax consequences attribucable to differences between the
financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities and are
measured using the enacted tax rates and laws in effect when the
differences are expected to be recovered or settled.



(1) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The assets and liabilicies of the Company’s self-contained foreign
operations for which the functional currency is the local currency
are generally translaced into U.S. dollars ac current exchange races
and revenue and expenses are translated using average exchange
rates for the period. Resulcing translation adjustmencs are reflecced
as a component of other comprehensive income (loss).

(K} EARNINGS (LOss) FErR COMMDON 5HARE

The computations of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per commaon
share are based upon the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Dilucive earnings per share
give effect o all potencially dilutive common securicies. Potentially
dilutive securicies include convertible preferred stock, stock
options and warrants.

(L) UsSES OF ESTIMATES

The preparacion of consolidated financial stacements in conformicy
with generally accepred accounting principles requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions thae affect che reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of concingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements,
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during che
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimaces.

(M} STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

The Company accounts for its stock options in accordance with
the provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” which permits encities to recognize as expense over
the vesting period the fair market value of all scock-based awards
on the date of grant. Alcernatively, SFAS No. 123 also allows enci-
ties to apply the provisions of APB Opinion No. 25 and provide
pro forma nec income disclosures for employee stock options
granted as if che fair value based mechod defined in SFAS No. 123
had been applied. The Company has elected to apply the provi-
sions of APB Opinion No. 25 and provide the pro forma disclo-
ures of SFAS No. 123. Stock options and warrants granted to
other than employees are recognized at fair markect value.

(N} CONCENTRATIONS

Substantially all of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents are
custodied at one major U.S. financial institution. Deposits held
with banks exceed the amount of insurance provided on such
deposits. Generally, these deposits may be redeemed upon demand
and, therefore, in the opinion of management, bear minimal risk.

During 2000, the Company has relied on one customer, a share-
holder, for all of its revenue. The Company expects thac a signifi-
cant portion of its future revenue will continue to be generated by
a limited number of customers. The loss of any one of these cus-
tomers or any substantial reduction in orders by any one of these
customers could marerially adversely affect the Company’s finan-
cial condition or operating results.

(0) EQUITY INVESTMENTS

During 2000, the Company has made strategic equity invesements
in five companies for a cotal of $4.2 million. Because the Company
does nort have significanc influence over any one of these entities,
the Company accounts for these investments using the cost method.

(P) RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made in the December 31, 1998
and January 1, 2000 consolidated financial statemencs to conform

to the December 30, 2000 presentation. Such reclassifications had

no effect on net loss or total stockholders’ equity (deficic).

2. INVENTORY

[NVENTORIES ARE COMPRISED OF THE FOLLOWING (in thousands):

January 1, 2000 December 30, 2000

Raw materials $ 13,467 $ 131,983
Work-in-process 4,173 50,161
Finished goods — 51,119
17,640 233,263
Less reserve for excess inventory
and obsolescence (1,771) (13,849)
Inventory, net $ 15,869 $ 219,414

]

3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING (in thousands):

Jannary 1, 2000

December 30, 2000

Test and manufacturing equipment $15,657 $..78,855
Furniture, fixcures and incernal
network equipment 4,140 20,209
Leasehold improvements 5,678 23,650
Toral 25,475 122,714
Less accumulated depreciacion
and amortization (3,120) (16,033)
Property and equipment, net $ 22,355 $106,681

4. NOTES PAYABLE

A SUMMARY OF NOTES PAYABLE AS OF JANUARY 1, 2000 AND DeceMBEiR 30, 2000 15 AS FOLLOWS
(in thousands):

January 1, 2000 December 30, 2000

Note payable due

November 7, 2002 $ - $ 43,500
Equipment note due

April 2001 5,117 -
Equipment notes due

May 2002 5,427 S
Equipment note due )

May 2002 2,615 . -
Leasehold improvements loan S

due May 2009 1,181 1,102
Working capital facility due .

August 2002 36,587 ; =
Other 167 - 215365

$ 51,094 $ 45,967

Less current portion (15,287) (1,438)
Notes payable, net of current portion $ 35,807 $.44,529

During 1999, the Company executed long-term notes for
equipment financing wich a lender for approximately $6.1 million.
The notes bore interest at the rate of 14.91%, and were collateral-
ized by the underlying equipment. The debt was repayable in
36 monthly installments of principal and interest beginning June
1999. In connection with the issuance of the notes, the Company




issued 19,679 warrancs to purchase Series C convertible preferred
stock to the lender. The warrants had an exercise price of $9.147
per share and expired three years from issuance, or upon an initial
public offering. The fair markec value of the warrants, approxi-
mately $0.1 million, was recognized as deferred financing fees.

In August 2000, chis note was repaid in full.

In January 1999, the Company executed a long-term collateral-
ized equipment note wich another lender for $3.0 million. The
note bore interesc ac a race of 11%. The debt was repayable in 36
monthly installmencs of principal and interesc beginning June 1,
1999. In connection with the issuance of che notes, the Company
issued 32,798 warrants to purchase Series C convertible preferred
stock to the lender. The warrants had an exercise price of $9.147
per share. The fair value of the warrants, approximately $0.2 mil-
lion, was recognized as deferred financing fees. In November 2000,
this note was repaid in full.

In July 1999, the Company entered into a loan agreement with
a landlord for tenanc improvements associated wich the lease of a
new building in the amount of §1.2 million. As of December 30,
2000, che Company has drawn the entire $1.2 million commit-
ment. The debe bears incerest at a race of 10.0%. The debt is
repayable in 120 monthly inscallments of principal and incerest
which began June 1999.

During 1999, the Company obrained a cemmicment for an
aggregate of $40.0 million of debr financing from a syndicate of
lenders. As of January 1, 2000, the Company had drawn the entire
$40.0 million commitment. The debc bore interest at a rate of
8.5%. The debt was repayable in 36 monthly installmencs of prin-
cipal and interest beginning September 1999 and with aggregate
balloon payments of 14% ac marturicy. In connection with the
issuance of che debe, cthe Company issued 641,121 warrants to
purchase Series E convertible preferred stock to the lender. The
warrants have an exercise price of $9.147. The fair value of the
warrants, approximately $3.7 million, was recognized as deferred
financing fees. In November 2000, this facility was repaid in full.

In November 2000, the Company executed a long-term note
payable with a lender for approximately $43.5 million. Interest
associated with the note is due monthly while associated principal
is due November 2002. The note bears interest at 6.5% so long as
the Company maintains a cash balance with che lender of $347.0
million chrough November 2001 and $231.0 million through
November 2002. If cash balances deposited with the lender drop
below these minimum levels, the noce will bear interesc ac LIBOR
plus .80%. In addicion, che Company pledged a certificace of
deposit with a carrying value of $43.5 million as collateral under
the agreement.

5. EQuiTyYy

In December 1999, the Company issued 292,825 shares of Series
G Convertible Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase price of
$10.0 million in a privace placement transaction with a scrategic
investor. If certain minimum purchase commitments were not met
by the holder of the Series G Converrible Preferred Stock on or
before March 2000, the Company had the right to repurchase the
shares at a price of $44.40 per share. In May 2000, the Company
waived its right to repurchase the shares.

On August 2, 2000, the Company sold 31,625,000 of common
stock in an initial public offering and 277,778 shares of common
stock in a concurrent privace placement for proceeds of $1,066.4
million after deducting underwricer discounts and commissions
and offering expenses. Upon completion of che IPO, all outstand-
ing shares of convertible preferred stock automacically converred
into 237,526,260 shares of common stock at the following racios:
Series A Preferred, 24-co-1; all other Preferred Stock, 12-to-1.

6. ACQUISITIONS

(A) BaYLIGHT NETWORKS, INC.

On May 19, 2000, the Company acquired Baylight Networks, Inc.
("Baylight™), a company that designs network systems and sub-
systems. Baylighe, based in Palo Alto, California, was formed in
February 2000 and was a developmenct stage company with no rev-
enue. In consideracion for all of the outscanding shares of Baylight,
the Company assumed $0.1 million of Baylight's liabilicies and
agreed to issue 2,400,012 shares of common stock over the term
of three-year employment agreements with the former Baylight
shareholders. The Company accounted for the acquisition as a pur-
chase. Accordingly, the operating results of Baylight are included
in the Company's financial results from the date of acquisicion.
The allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed has been based on an internal
analysis of che fair value of the assets and liabilities of Baylighe.
The excess of the aggregate purchase price over che fair value of net
assets acquired of approximarely $0.1 million is being amortized on
a straight-line basis over five years. The Company will recognize
compensation expense over the term of the employment agreements
equal to che fair value of the shares to be issued.

(8) ALGETY TELECDOM 5.A.

On July 1, 2000, the Company acquired Algety Telecom S.A.
("Algecy™), a French company that develops and markets high-
capacity, high-speed optical transmission equipment. Algery, based
in Lannion, France was formed in April 1999, and was a develop-
ment stage company with no revenue. The acquisition price on the
inicial closing date equaled 1,301,822 shares of Series I convertible
preferred stock. On November 3, 2000, consistent wich che terms
of the acquisition agreement, the Company completed a second
closing at which ctime an addicional 11,385,358 shares of common
stock were delivered to the former Algery scockholders. The tocal
value of all shares delivered in che firsc and second closing was
$947.1 million. In addition, 2,275,032 shares of common stock
has been placed into escrow to be released contingent upon satis-
faction of certain minimum employment cerms for certain Algecy
employees. The Company incurred approximately $1.0 million of
transaccion costs related to the acquisition.

The Company accounted for the acquisition as a purchase.
Accordingly, the operating results of Algety are included in che
Company's iinancial resules from che date of acquisition. The allo-
cacion of the purchase price to the fair value of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed has been based upon an independent third-
party valuacion. Based upan the resules of the valuation, the
Company allocated $20.1 million to tangible assets, $6.0 million
to liabilities and $1.3 million to identifiable incangible assets.

In addition, the Company allocated $42.2 million of the purchase
price to in-process technology, which is included in operating
expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
The excess of the aggregate purchase price over the fair value of
net assets acquired of $876.7 million is being amortized on a
straight-line basis over five years.

Under the terms of the acquisition agreement, the Company
granted cerrain former Algety shareholders the right to pur cerrain
shares of common stock back to the Company at che scock’s chen
fair market value. The put right is available during a period from
June 2001 to December 2001 and is enforceable only if no ocher
liquidity sources are available to those shareholders. The fair mar-
ket value of the common stock put to the Company cannor exceed
$30 million. Stock associated with this put right has been classi-
fied as redeemable stock in the consolidared balance sheer as of
December 30, 2000.

The following unaudited pro forma data summarizes the results
of operations for the period indicated as if the Algety acquisition



had been completed as of the beginning of the periods presented.
The unaudited pro forma data gives effect to actual operating
resules prior to the acquisition, adjusted to include the pro forma
effect of amortization of intangibles. These pro forma amounts do
not purport to be indicative of the resules thar would have aceually
been obrained if the acquisition occurred as of che beginning of
the periods presented or that may be obtained in the future (in
chousands, except per share data).

Year Endded
Decomtber 31, 1998 Jannary 1. 2000 December 30, 2000
Revenues $ - $ - $ 68,898
Net loss (19,460) (198,110)  .(385,148)
Basic and diluced
net loss per share $  (0.86) $ (647 $..(245)

7.51T0CK OPTIONS

In July 1997, the Company adopted the 1997 Stock Oprion Plan
(the “Plan”) pursuant to which che Company's Board of Directors
may grant options to purchase common stock to employees,
officers, directors and consultants. The Company has reserved
103,600,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the Com-
pany’s Stock Option Plan. Scock options are granted with an exer-
cise price equal to the estimated fair value of the common stock at
the date of grant. The stock options have a 10-year term, become
fully exercisable when granted, and ownership vests over four years
from the dace of granc. Common stock associated with the exercise
of options prior to vesting is placed into escrow and released to
the employee as the shares vest. Prepayments made by employees
are not refundable in the event of termination prior to vesting.

As of December 30, 2000, 43,874,203 shares of common stock
have been issued through the exercise of options under the Plan,
of which 29,336,010 shares have vested.

The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25. Had compensation
cost for the Company's plan been determined based on the fair
value at the date of grant, consistent wicth the method of SFAS
No. 123, the Company’s net loss would have been increased to the
pro forma amounts indicated below (in thousands):

Year Ended
Jannary 1, 2000

December 31, 1998 December 30, 2000

Nee loss:
As reported $(19,460) $(71,270) $ (283,611
Pro forma (19,506) (71,953) (290,634)

The per share weighted-average fair value of stock options
granted during 1998, 1999 and 2000 was $.001, $0.489 and
$10.62, respectively, on the date of grant with the following
weighted-average assumptions:

Year Ended
January 1, 2000

December 31, 1998 December 30, 2000

Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 4.56% 6.33% 5.00%
Expected life 4 years 4 years 3 years
Volacility 70% 70% 130%

The following is a summary of options granted:

Number
Outstanding

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

December 31, 1997 6,528,000 $ .01
Granted 26,240,400 .02
Exercised (1,146,012) 0t
Cancelled - -
Decemnber 31, 1998 31,922,388 02
Granced 21,583,800 A0
Exercised (37,168,008) .07
Cancelled (68,400) .06
January 1, 2000 16,269,780 .39
Granced 43,744,848 58.18
Exercised (5,560,183) 52
Cancelled (2,212,506) 4.64

December 30, 2000 52,241,939 $6.72

The following table summarizes information about outstanding
and exercisable stock oprions at December 30, 2000:

Weighted
Averape

Range of Number Remauining Number
Exercise Prices Ourstanding Contract Life Exercisable
$0.01 — § 0.34 7,196,061 8.1 7,196,061
$1.01 — § 3.36 32,263,898 9.4 23,489,951
$9.03 - $21.00 9,767,016 9.5 2,800,872
$21.63 — 103.81 3,014,964 9.8 -

52,241,939 9.2 33,486,884

8. WARRANTS

During 1998 and 1999, che Company issued warrants to purchase
140,497 shares of Series B preferred stock and Series C preferred
stock, convercible inco 1,685,964 shares of common stock in assoc-
iacion witch cercain lease agreements. The warrancs are immediately
exercisable and expire seven years from the date of issuance. On
December 30, 2000, associated warrancs to purchase 1,685,964
shares of common stock remain outseanding with a weigheed
average exercise price of $0.27.

During 1998 and 1999, in connection with certain debr facili-
ties, the Company issued warrants to purchase 1,052,683 shares of
Series B preferred stock, Series C preferred stock and Series E pre-
ferred stock, convertible into 12,632,196 shares of common stock.
The warrants are immediately exercisable and expire berween three
and seven years from the date of issuance. On December 30, 2000,
associared warrants o purchase 8,853,912 shares of common stock
with a weighted average exercise price of $0.54 remain outstanding.

In September 1999, cthe Company entered into a series of agree-
ments with a strategic investor. Under a stock purchase agree-
ment, the Company agreed to issue 164,948 shares of Series F
convertible preferred stock for aggregate proceeds of approximarely
$4.0 million. Concurrently with the stock issuance, the Company
entered into an exclusive license agreement wich the investor for
the use of certain intellectual property and a non-exclusive license
for certain other rechnology. As consideration for che license, the
Company agreed to make quarterly payments of $0.3 million over
a four-year period. In addition, the Company granted the strategic
investor a warrant to receive common stock valued at $35.0 mil-
lion upon the consummation of a qualifying initial public offering
(“IPO"). As part of the agreement, the Company had cthe right to




accept ownership in the license in full if the qualifying IPO ook
place. Afrer the Company's initial public offering in July 2000,
the Company accepted ownership of the license and recorded an
incangible asset valued ac $35.0 million, which is being amorrtized
ratably over a three-year life.

In November 1999, the Company issued warrants to purchase
up to 5,270,856 shares of common stock at $2.85 per share to a
strategic investor. A certain percent of the warrants were immedi-
ately exercisable, with che remaining amount contingent upon cer-
tain future purchasers of the Company's products by che scracegic
investor. These warrants were to expire in June 2001 if these con-
ditions were not met. Of the total 5,270,856 shares of common
stock committed in this warrant, the righes ro purchase 2,635,428
shares expire on December 31, 2004 and che rights to purchase
the remaining 2,635,428 shares expire on June 30, 2006. In 1999,
the Company recorded equity-based sales and marketing expense
of approximately $1.8 million for the estimated fair value at granc
date of the warrants which were immediately exercisable. In June
2000, the Company waived the purchase requirements associated
with the remaining warrants, resulting in an equity-based sales
and marketing expense of approximately $19.5 million for the
estimated fair value at che date the warrants became exercisable.
On December 30, 2000, all warrants associated with the agreement
remain outstanding.

In December 1999, the Company issued warrants to purchase
281,162 shares of Series G convertible preferred stock ac $32.01
per share to another strategic investor. The warranes were immedi-
ately exercisable and would have expired upon the IPO. In Decem-
ber 1999, the Company recorded equiry-based sales and markering
expense of approximarely $3.1 million for the estimated fair value
at grant date of the warrants issued. These warrants were exercised
in full during 2000.

Also, in December 1999, the Company issued to this strategic
investor, the right to purchase up to an additional $30.0 million
of stock at a price equal to the most recencly completed financing
round subject to meeting certain minimum purchase commic-
ments of the Company’s product, and an additional $5.0 million
of common stock in the event of a qualified public offering. In
June 2000, the Company waived the minimum purchase commit-
ments associated with the additional stock purchase righes and
recorded equity-based sales and marketing expense of $10.5 mil-
lion. These stock purchase rights were fully exercised in 2000.

In December 1999, the Company issued to anocher strategic
investor the right to purchase 124,177 shares of Series H Convert-
ible Preferred Stock at a price equal to $80.53 per share subject
to meeting certain purchase commitments and an additional
$5.0 million of common stock in the Company's Initial Public
Offering. In May 2000, the Company waived the minimum pur-
chase commitments associated with the Series H stock purchase
rights and recorded equity-based sales and markering expense
of $3.5 million. Both scock purchase rights were fully executed
in 2000.

9. EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

During 2000, the Company established the Corvis Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (che “Plan”). Under the Plan, the Company
may issue up to 2,000,000 shares of common stock in each Pur-
chase Plan year, up to a total of 10,000,000 shares during the life
of the Plan. Eligible employees choose to participate in the Plan
during offering periods by authorizing payroll deductions up to
15% of their salaries, subject to limitations imposed by the Inter-
nal Revenue Code. The first offering period began in July 2000.
Subsequent periods will be six months long, with che first subse-
quent period beginning on January 1, 2001. As of the last busi-
ness day of each offering period, called an “exercise date,” the

participant’s accumulated payroll deductions as of that dace are
used to purchase shares of common stock. The purchase price per
share of common stock purchased as of this date is the lower of
either (1) 85% of the fair marker value of a share of common stock
on the first business day of the offering period or (2) 85% of the
fair markec value of a share of common stock on the exercise dace.

10. Basi¢c AnD DirnuTen NET